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100.00
( 7,671 )
2024

AB Cayman Master Trust -Global High
Income Equity Fund
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2024
C )
Alphabet, Inc. - Class C 14,862 | 99.89 | 1,484,553 141.80 | 2,107,432 | 3.99
Microsoft Corp. 4,963 | 108.23 537,155 397.58 | 1,973,190 | 3.74
T:(':"pMO"'S International, 19,062 | 97.38| 1,856,291 | 90.85 | 1,731,783 | 3.28
Stellantis NV 70,520 | 13.43 | 946,934 22.14 | 1,561,563 | 2.96
Coca-Cola Co. (The) 25,527 | 53.99 | 1,378,259 59.49 | 1,518,601 | 2.88
Netflix, Inc. 2,685 | 372.52 | 1,000,205 | 564.11 | 1,514,635 | 2.87
Watsco, Inc. 3,844 | 208.38 | 1,146,958 | 390.98 | 1,502,927 | 2.85
Allianz SE (REG) 5,547 | 238.86 | 1,324,083 | 267.80 | 1,485,473 | 2.81
Industria de Diseno Textil SA 33,871 | 31.39 | 1,063,346 42.91 | 1,453,560 | 2.75
10 | crown castle, Inc. 13,264 | 108.97 | 1,445,346 | 108.25 | 1,435,828 | 2.72
11 | comcast Corp. - Class A 30,074 | 39.77 | 1,195,979 46.54 | 1,399,644 | 2.65
12 | Adobe, Inc. 2,261 | 384.00 | 868,432 | 617.78 | 1,396,801 | 2.65
13 | Broadcon, Inc. 1,145 | 559.08 | 640,146 | 1,180.00 | 1,351,100 | 2.56
14 | Restaurant Brands 17,287 | e8.13 | 1,177,713 |  78.08 | 1,349,769 | 2.56
International, Inc.
15 | serviceNow, Inc. 1,712 | 470.81 | 806,022 | 765.40 | 1,310,365 | 2.48
16 2(‘)?20“ Telegraph & Telephone 984,850 | 1.03 | 1,016,291 1.27 | 1,246,620 | 2.36
17 | cuE Group, Inc. 5,033 | 187.10 | 1,110,060 | 205.84 | 1,221,249 | 2.31
18 | visa, Inc. - Class A 4,408 | 238.31 | 1,050,474 | 273.26 | 1,204,530 | 2.28
19 | Abbvie, Inc. 7,250 | o1.04| 667,412 164.40| 1,193,380 | 2.26
20 f;ge"ty National Financial, 23,642 | 42.85 | 1,013,060 |  50.03 | 1,182,809 | 2.24
21 | Nordea Bank Abp 95,735 | 11.53 | 1,103,813 12.32 ] 1,179,732 | 2.23
22 | sanofi SA 11,514 | 85.00| 978,651 | 100.89 | 1,161,695 | 2.20
23 | Home Depot, Inc. (The) 3,281 | 319.49 | 1,048,238 352.96 | 1,158,062 | 2.19
24 | National Grid PLC 85,933 | 12.57 | 1,080,368 13.37 | 1,148,925 | 2.18
25 | Texas Instruments, Inc. 7,128 | 178.99 | 1,275,855 | 160.12 | 1,141,335 | 2.16
26 | Roche Holding AG 3,330 | 257.86 | 861,002 | 286.34| 956,100 | 1.81
27 | TELUS Corp. 52,903 | 20.17 | 1,067,282 17.91| 947,528 | 1.79
28 | Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV 32,502 | 24.63| 800,403 28.11| 913,509 | 1.73
29 | AltriaGroup, Inc. 22,346 | 48.83 | 1,001,168 40.12 | 896,522 | 1.70
30 | BAE Systems PLC 60,002 | 11.13| 668,103 14.92| 894,997 | 1.69
MSC1/S&P GICS
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2023 2024

2014 30 30,793,468 4,543,576,203 10.24 1,511

2015 30 23,059,262 3,402,394,108 9.75 1,439

2016 30 21,292,285 3,141,676,652 10.04 1,481

2017 30 24,091,053 3,554,634,870 10.91 1,610

2018 30 16,975,556 2,504,743,288 10.65 1,571

2019 30 13,699,543 2,021,367,570 10.35 1,527

2020 30 10,203,576 1,505,537,639 9.23 1,362
10

2021 30 14,518,643 2,142,225,775 10.33 1,524
11

2022 30 15,124,305 2,231,591,203 9.04 1,334
12

2023 30 14,944,708 2,205,091,665 10.21 1,506

2023 16,420,200 2,422,800,510 10.27 1,515

16,688,496 2,462,387,585 10.51 1,551

16,796,467 2,478,318,706 10.67 1,574

15,879,949 2,343,086,475 10.50 1,549

16,302,495 2,405,433,137 10.96 1,617

16,561,955 2,443,716,460 11.25 1,660

16,189,490 2,388,759,250 11.06 1,632

14,944,708 2,205,091,665 10.21 1,506

10 14,472,470 2,135,412,949 9.89 1,459

11 15,294,268 2,256,669,243 10.56 1,558

12 15,830,291 2,335,759,437 10.97 1,619

2024 15,786,549 2,329,305,305 10.97 1,619
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2014 %0 15,656,336 | 2,310,092,377 8.84 1,304

2015 %0 7,708,771 1,137,429,161 4.88 720

2016 20 12,732,300 | 1,878,650,865 5.91 872

2017 %0 15,382,775 | 2.269,728,451 6.82 1,006

s018 %0 10,100,544 | 1,490,335,267 5.20 767

2015 20 7,369,206 1,087,326,345 4.81 710

2020 %0 4,019,006 593,004,335 2.96 437

10 4,503,733 664,525,804 3.90 575
2021 30 .503, :525, '

11 3,971,193 585,949,527 3.66 540
2022 30 971, .949, '

12 4,875,904 719,439,635 4.87 719
2023 30 875, 1439, '

2023 4,696,461 692,962,821 4.37 645

4,983,161 735,265,406 4.63 683

5,149,821 759,856,089 4.79 707

5,005,223 738,520,654 4.66 688

5,493,336 810,541,727 5.17 763

5,514,464 813,659,163 5.39 795

5,203,398 767,761,375 5.09 751

4,875,904 719,439,635 4.87 719

10 4,700,333 693,534,134 4.71 695

11 4,920,447 726,011,955 5.16 761

12 5,208,457 768,507,830 5.46 806

2024 5,004,701 751,723,133 5.36 701
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2014 30 22,896,304 2,224,604 ,897 10.24 995

2015 30 21,501,696 2,089,104,783 9.52 925

2016 30 52,708,377 5,121,145,909 9.38 911

2017 30 68,177,860 6,624,160,878 10.27 998

2018 30 69,522,025 6,754,759,949 10.20 991

2019 30 87,387,726 8,490,591,458 9.84 956

2020 30 95,924,284 9,320,003,433 8.48 824
10

2021 30 74,685,631 7,256,455,908 10.32 1,003
11

2022 30 47,334,356 4,599,006,029 8.90 865
12

2023 30 44,629,936 4,336,244 ,582 10.39 1,009

2023 49,439,451 4,803,537,059 10.04 975

50,220,210 4,879,395,604 10.26 997

50,168,652 4,874,386,228 10.41 1,011

47,804,157 4,644,651,89%4 10.23 994

48,045,831 4,668,132,940 10.67 1,037

47,847,663 4,648,878,937 10.93 1,062

46,526,929 4,520,556,422 10.73 1,043

44,629,936 4,336,244 ,582 10.39 1,009

10 42,861,834 4,164,455,791 10.04 975

11 44,494,414 4,323,077,264 10.71 1,041

12 45,515,863 4,422,321,249 11.11 1,079

2024 44,873,410 4,359,900,516 11.11 1,079
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r014 %0 4,839,839 470,238,757 10.30 1,001

2015 %0 2,633,849 255,904,769 7.42 721

2016 20 12,625,328 1,226,676,868 8.03 780

2017 %0 22,761,117 2,211,470,128 8.71 846

s018 %0 10,871,468 1,056,271,831 7.37 716

2015 20 5,668,247 550,726,879 7.20 700

2020 %0 2,838,275 275,766,799 4.11 399

10 2,864,251 278,290,627 5.34 519
2021 30 864, :290, '

11 2,305,258 223,978,867 5.64 548
2022 30 »305, 978, '

12 2,652,340 257,701,354 7.49 728
2023 30 652, 701, '

2023 2,478,011 240,763,549 6.42 624

2,624,523 254,998, 655 6.85 666

2,705,319 262,848,794 7.16 696

2,586,378 251,292,486 7.09 689

2,784,569 270,548,724 7.68 746

2,809,136 272,935,654 7.93 770

2,750,049 267,194,761 7.77 755

2,652,340 257,701,354 7.49 728

10 2,586,057 251,261,298 7.35 714

11 2,558,426 248,576,670 7.72 750

12 2,625,843 255126 ,906 7.93 770

2024 2,540,383 246,823,612 8.08 785
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2023 2024

2013 10 2014 30 1.175 173

2014 10 2015 30 0.180 27

2015 10 2016 30 0.180 21

2016 10 2017 30 0.685 101

2017 10 2018 30 0.815 120

2018 10 2019 30 0.180 21

2019 10 2020 30 0.180 21
10

2020 10 2021 30 1.700 251
11

2021 10 2022 30 0.180 27
12

2022 10 2023 30 0.695 103

2023 0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.530 78

10 0.015 2

11 0.015 2

12 0.015 2

2024 0.015 2
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2013 10 2014 30 1.296 191

2014 10 2015 30 1.296 191

2015 10 2016 30 0.779 115

2016 10 2017 30 0.732 108

2017 10 2018 30 0.696 103

2018 10 2019 30 0.300 44

2019 10 2020 30 0.286 4z
10

2020 10 2021 30 0.132 19
11

2021 10 2022 30 0.132 19
12

2022 10 2023 30 0.132 19

2023 0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

0.011 2

10 0.011 2

11 0.011 2

12 0.011 2

2024 0.011 2
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2013 10 2014 30 1.402 136

2014 10 2015 30 0.624 61

2015 10 2016 30 0.624 61

2016 10 2017 30 0.624 61

2017 10 2018 30 0.582 o7

2018 10 2019 30 0.120 12

2019 10 2020 30 0.120 12
10

2020 10 2021 30 0.680 66
11

2021 10 2022 30 0.120 12
12

2022 10 2023 30 0.120 12

2023 0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

0.010 1

10 0.010 1

11 0.010 1

12 0.010 1

2024 0.010 1
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2013 10 2014 30 1.296 126

2014 10 2015 30 1.296 126

2015 10 2016 30 1.296 126

2016 10 2017 30 1.296 126

2017 10 2018 30 0.738 2

2018 10 2019 30 0.552 o4

2019 10 2020 30 0.522 51
10

2020 10 2021 30 0.192 19
11

2021 10 2022 30 0.192 19
12

2022 10 2023 30 0.192 19

2023 0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

0.016 2

10 0.016 2

11 0.016 2

12 0.016 2

2024 0.016 2
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2013 10 2014 30 8.61
2014 10 2015 30 3.03
2015 10 2016 30 4.82
2016 10 2017 30 15.49
2017 10 2018 30 5.09
2018 10 2019 30 1.13
2019 10 2020 30 9.08
200 10 - 20 30 30.34
021 10 2022 30 10.75
02 10 2023 30 20.63
2013 10 2014 30 715
2014 10 2015 30 30.14
2015 10 2016 30 37.07
2016 10 2017 30 27.78
2017 10 2018 30 13.55
2018 10 2019 30 1.73
2019 10 2020 30 32.52
2020 10 200 30 36.22
021 10 2022 30 2.17
02 10 - 2023 30 36.67
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2013 10 2014 30 1056
2014 10 2015 30 0.94
2015 10 2016 30 5.08
2016 10 2017 30 16.14
2017 10 2018 30 4.99
2018 10 2019 30 235
2019 10 2020 30 12.60
200 10 - 20 30 29.72
021 10 2022 30 12.60
02 10 2023 30 18.09
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2013 10 2014 30 13.69
2014 10 2015 30 15.38
2015 10 2016 30 25.69
2016 10 2017 30 24.61
2017 10 2018 30 6.91
2018 10 2019 30 5.18
2019 10 2020 30 35.67
200 10 - 20 30 34.60
021 10 2022 30 9.21
02 10 2023 30 36.21

100x
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2013 10 2,165,080 1,488,810 3,007,780
2014 30 2,165,080 1,488,810 3,007,780
2014 10 1,133,980 1,777,870 2,363,890
2015 30 (1,133,980) (1,777,870) (2.363,890)
2015 10 579,900 822,790 2,121,000
2016 30 (579,900) (822,790) (2,121,000)
2016 10 953,920 866,440 2,208,480
2017 30 (953,920) (866,440) (2,208,480)
2017 10 188, 740 803,520 1,593,700
2018 30 (188,740) (803,520) (1,593,700)
2018 10 121,300 391,410 1,323,590
2019 30 (121,300) (391,410) (1,323,590)
2019 10 133,030 350,740 1,105,880
2020 30 (133,030) (350,740) (1,105,880)
10
2020 10 529,310 230,350 1,404,840
2021 30 (529,310) (230,350) (1,404,840)
11
2021 10 589,060 320,040 1,673,860
2022 30 (589,060) (320,040) (1,673,860)
12
2022 10 31,950 241,910 1,463,900
2023 30 (31,950) (241,910) (1,463,900)
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2013 10 915,230 1,285,710 1,770,140
2014 30 (915,230) (1,285,710) (1,770,140)
2014 10 249,950 440,740 1,579,350
2015 30 (249,950) (440,740) (1,579,350)
2015 10 844,790 268,690 2,155,450
2016 30 (844,790) (268,690) (2,155,450)
2016 10 952,480 851,380 2,256,550
2017 30 (952,480) (851,380) (2.,256,550)
2017 10 197,320 509,970 1,943,900
2018 30 (197,320) (509,970) (1,943,900)
0 412,500 1,531,400
3818 0 30 0 (412,500) (1,531,400)
2019 10 14,000 187,530 1,357,870
2020 30 (14,000) (187,530) (1,357,870)
10
2020 10 0 203,130 1,154,740
2021 30 © (203,130) (1,154,740)
11
2021 10 0 68,280 1,086,460
2022 30 0 (68,280) (1,086,460)
12
2022 10 0 85,380 1,001,080
2023 30 © (85,380) (1,001,080)
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2013 10 1,792,420 648,490 2,236,340
2014 30 (1,792,420) (648,490) (2,236,340)
2014 10 1,149,880 1,126,640 2,259,580
2015 30 (1,149,880) (1,126,640) (2,259,580)
2015 10 4,160,720 801,070 5,619,230
2016 30 (4,160,720) (801,070) (5,619,230)
2016 10 3,885,900 2,879,420 6,625,710
2017 30 (3,885,900) (2,879,420) (6,625,710)
2017 10 2,687,410 2,496,350 6,816,770
2018 30 (2,687,410) (2,496,350) (6,816,770)
2018 10 3,946,180 1,883,810 8,879,140
2019 30 (3,946,180) (1,883,810) (8,879,140)
2019 10 4,937,680 2,510,320 11,306,500
2020 30 (4,937,680) (2,510,320) (11,306,500)
20230 10 1,519,200 5,620,360 7,205,340
2021 30 (1,519,200) (5.620,360) (7,205,340)
202%1 10 910,450 2,799,590 5,316,200
2022 30 (910,450) (2,799,590) (5.,316,200)
12
2022 10 63,700 1,083,170 4,296,730
2023 30 (63,700) (1,083,170) (4,296,730)
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2013 10 311,170 165,000 469,740
2014 30 (311,170) (165,000) (469,740)
2014 10 78,080 192,730 355,090
2015 30 (78,080) (192,730) (355,090)
2015 10 1,294,930 77,750 1,572,270
2016 30 (1,294,930) (77,750) (1,572,270)
2016 10 1,844,520 802,790 2,614,000
2017 30 (1,844,520) (802,790) (2,614,000)
2017 10 193,180 1,331,770 1,475,410
2018 30 (193,180) (1,331,770) (1,475,410)
2018 10 12,140 700,410 787,140
2019 30 (12,140) (700,410) (787,140)
2019 10 55,000 151,030 691,110
2020 30 (55,000) (151,030) (691,110)
10
2020 10 0 154,620 536,490
2021 30 © (154,620) (536,490)
11
2021 10 0 127,940 408,550
2022 30 ) (127,940) (408,550)
12
2022 10 0 54,430 354,120
2023 30 ) (54,430) (354,120)
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77/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
FRA ()
FRA
KY-FID_ABTrust@intertrustgroup.com
() OFAC
EU
() OFAC EU
() OFAC EU

CIMA CIMA
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2017 18
i
FATCA
2010 FATCA 2010
30
IRS
IRS 1986 1471 (d)(4)
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23 103

2024 31
147.55 97.16



2023 30

23,008,126

EDINETOOOO
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2023 30

Ooooooooooooooooooad

50,756,497

3,394,849
135,919
25,570

7,489,121

20,055
3,773

50,917,986

7,512,949

870
445,161
104,620

41,364
8,136
2,142

428

94,846

128
65,684
15,437

6,103
1,200
316
63
13,995

697,567

102,926

50,220,419

7,410,023
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28,694,504 4,233,874 4,296,730 6.68 986
1,705,303 251,617 354,120 4.82 711
4,875,904 719,440 1,001,080 4._87 719

14,944,708 2,205,092 1,463,900 10.21 1,506

10.39 1,009
7.49 728
4.87 719

10.21 1,506
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2023 30

631,691 93,206
631,691 93,206
105,323 15,540
5,543 818
332,599 49,075
39,798 5,872
27,717 4,090
24,220 3,574
22,544 3,326
20,413 3,012
10,000 1,476
6,175 911
4,046 597
598,378 88,291
33,313 4,915
6,232,118 919,549

(1,140,789) (168,323)

4,043,219 596,577
1,675,150 247,168
10,809,698 1,594,971

10,843,011 1,599,886
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2023 30

33,313 4,915
5,091,329 751,226
5,718,369 843,745
10,843,011 1,599,886
(385,896) (56,939)
(49,023) (7,233)
(140,694) (20,759)
(1,036,219) (152,894)
(1,611,832) (237,826)
753,935 111,243
(10,612,170) (1,565,826)
(9,858, 235) (1,454,583)
(627,056) (92,522)
50,847,475 7,502,545

50,220,419 7,410,023
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10
15
a
1 11 111
b
2023 30
2023 30 2023 30

63,700 411,300
(1,083,170) (7.416,364)
(1,019,470) (7,005,064)
(54,430) (247,967)
(54,430) (247,967)
(85.380) (431,147)
(85.380) (431,147)
31,950 342,635
(241,910) (2,516,692)
(209,960) (2,174,057)
(9,858,235)

2023 30 100
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10,000
2023 30 10,000
2023 30
0.01
0.19
0.85
2023 30 105,323 5,543
8,136 428
466,456 5,553
30
15,000
10,000 1,000
2023 30 24,220
20,413 8,157
8,274

16,883 19,238
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0.05
2023 30 27,717
2,142
0.60
2023 30 332,599
104,620

2023 30
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0.05 25,570
(0.89) (445,161)
(0.84) (419,591)
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2023 30

25,570 445,161
25,570 445,161
(1,139,712) 1,675,155
(1,139,712) 1,675,155

2023 30
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1,060 (1,060) 0 0 0
24,510 (24,510) 0 0 0
25,570 (25,570) 0 0 0

263,329 (1,060) 262,269 0 262,269
181,832 (24,510) 157,322 0 157,322
445,161 (25,570) 419,591 0 419,591
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2023 30
0 25,570 0 25,570
0 (445,161) 0 (445,161)
0 (419,591) 0 (419,591)
50,756,497
50,336,906
2023 30
2023 30
2023 30
2023 30
5.70
0.00 *

1.06
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1.06

(0.08)

6.68

18.13% **

28,695

1.08%
0.06%

2023

30

3.61

0.00 *
1.34

1.34

(0.13)

4.82

36.62% **

1,705

1.08%
0.05%

2023

30

3.66

0.00 =
1.34

1.34

(0.13)

4.87
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36.96%

4,876

1.08%
0.05%

2023 30

9.04

0.01 *
1.86

1.87

(0.70)

10.21

20.57%

14,945

1.08%
0.06%
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
September 30, 2023

Assets
Investments in AR Cayman Master Trust-Global Hngn Inecma Eq.!rnr
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Fund {"Master Fund™) (cost 323,008.126) . 5 50,756.497
Receivable for investment securiies sold . . ., .. oo vvevr i rrarraas 135,918
Unsrealized appreciation on forward foreign currency contraets, , ... ... 25 570
TR RN L . ey oo e ol N5 B v R 50,817 886
Liabilities
Dhue b CuUBtOHIEM. ..« cveci e ima ey d s arvo
Unrealized depreciation on forward foreign currency contracts. . .. .. .. 445 161
Distribution feepayable. . ......... ... ... i 104, 620
Professional fees payable .. ., .. 41,364
Investment Management fee pnynblu ........................... B136
Agent Company feepayable. . ... ... ... ... . oo, 2142
Management feepayable ... ... ... .. .. iiiiiiiiiiiiaaias 428
ACCrusd EXPBIERSE. . . ... ... ocii il iaaaiaiiaaeiaaaa e B4 B46
Tobml R . - e oo wm s A S S e S 697, 657
N AR . o i i e A e e e E B e ek e 5 50,220,419

Net Asset

Value In

Units Het Asset Cffered

Class MNet Assets Outstanding Value Curmrency
ALY 3 28654504 4, 296,730 3 6.68 ALID 10.39
ALBR 5 1,705,303 354120 % 4 82 AD 745
USER 5 4,875904 1,001,080 3 4.87 5 4.87
Usus 5 14,944 708 1,463,900 3 10.21 5 0.1

Sof mobeg i nanca! Shelenenis

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND {(NOM JPY CURRENCY)

]
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Investment Income

Dividend income distributions fom Master Fund ... ...... 3 631,691 L3 631,601
Expenses

Investment Managementfee. ., ... ................... 105,323

Manegarnnnt a0 s ssnl il s s hal el L e 5,543

R R . S o A T R TR 132,589

Professionalfees .. . . .. . . ... .. ... ... 38,758
.ﬁ.aantﬂ:rnpan,rha 2T

Administrative fee. . 24,220

Printing fee | 22,544

Tmshragmc-_.'he 20,413

Trustee fea . 10,000

Ragmuanfm 8,175
M'r:ullan-mln................................. 4,046

Total expenses. . S88.378
Met investment income . . 33,313

Realized and l.'nreallzed Gain ILnssl nn lnvesiment ami
Foreign Currency Transactions
et realized gain (loss) on:

Investrment in Master Fund . 6,232,118

Foreign currancy tmnsu:hm: 1wl (1,140,785
Met change in unrealized ammhm tdaprac'mm}

Investments in Master Fund . o 4,043,249

Fareign currency dmnrmatld ltsm and ﬁabliluls 1,675,150
Met gain on investrnent in Master Fund and fumm :unm:y

transactions. . ..... B 10,809,608
Net Increase In Net Assets from Opmllurﬁ s 5 10,843,011

Sob rokeg 1B inant! chablemenis

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUMD (NON JPY CURRENCY)
4
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended
September 30, 2023
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations
Netimestmentincame . . . .. ... ... L. s 5 33,313
Met realized gain on investment in Master Fund and foreign
curreney FANSACHONS. . . .. .. ... i a e 5,081,328
et change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on
investment in Master Fund and foreign curmnl:y
denorminated assets and liabilies. | ek T 5,718,389
et increase in net assets from opﬂlﬂm R 10,843,011
Distributions to Unithalders
Cltrm MR- e i e e A (385.856)
CIREE ALUBR &y o nie v s v s o Wb A 48,023
Class USVBR . B A N ep b P Tk ST {140,654
Class USAIS . {1.036.219)
Total Distributions tu Urﬂhddnrs ...................... (1,611,832)
Unit Transactions
Subscriptions . . 753,935
Redermptions _ . LmhE s St B il B R e (10.612170)
TntulLlMTmnﬁ:lJnns {9.858,235)
Total decreasze., (627,058)
Het Assets
Bognming of year. . . ... ... e 50,847,475
el e e e e e ] 50,220,419

Sod foked B et ol is

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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NMOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023

1. Organization

AB Cavman Trust (the “Trest”) is an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trost established on Novemnber 1, 2000 and anended with a
sugrplemmental trust deed filed on August 9, 200 1 under the Trusts Act (Revised ) of the Civman [slands and commenced operations on
January 31, 2001, The Trust operates as a series trust currently comprised of one portfolio: Global High Income Equity Fund (Mon
JPY Currency ). This report relates to Global High Income Equity Fund (Mon JPY Cumency) ithe “Sub-Fund™). The registered office
of the Sub-Fund is o'o Intertrust Trustees (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) One Nesous Way Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Tslamnds.

On December 6, 2021, Coporation Service Company (*CSC™) ammounced that a conditional agreement had been reached on a
recommiended public offer for all Esued and cutstanding ordmary shares of Intertruest Group of which the Trustee 5 a wholly owned
subsicdiary. In November 2022, CSC closed on #s acquisition of Intertnist Group.

The Sub-Fund is regulated a2 a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cavman Islands and accordingly is
regulated by the Cavinan [slands Monetary Authorty,

Currently the Sub-Fund has available for issue four classes of Unils (Note 3), Class ALVAU Units designated to Avstralian Dollar
(AUD), Class ALVBR Units designated to Brazilian Real (BRL), Class US/BR Units designated to BEL and Class US/US Units
designated to United States (US.) Dollars (5). Each currency 1n which the Units are offered 15 known as the offered curmency
(" Offered Currency™). The Offered Currency for Class AUAL and AUBR is AUD. The Offered Curmrency for Class US/BR. and
USUIS s US. 8.

AllianceBemstein L.P, serves as Manager/Investment Manager (the “ManagerTnvestment Manager™ L

The Sub-Fund invests substantially afl of its assets m the AB Cayman Masier Trust - Global High lnceme Equity Fund (the “Master
Funed ), @ fund affilisted wiath the ManagerInvestment Mamager. The Master Fund has only one class of Units. The Sub-Fund's
investment obpective (throwgh its mvestment m the Master Fund), 15 to seek to masmize current income and long-term growth of
capital by primarily mvesting in a diversified portfolio of global stocks across a range of industrics. There can be no assurance that
the Sub-Fund will achieve its investment ohjective or generale investment relums.

The Sub-Funid will terminate on Seplember 30, 2028, unless the ManagerTrvestment Manager determines in consultation with the
Trestee that it 1= in the best mterest of Unitholders to termanate the Sub-Fund prior to such date.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

B iy of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared m accordance with accoumting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America CULE. GAAP™) and are expressed in 1.5, & The Sub-Fund iz an investment company umder U8, GAAP and follows the
accounting and reporting guidance agplicable to investment companies.

Valratfon of Invesiment
The Sub-Fund records its investment in the Master Fund st fair value based on the net asset value per Unit, At September 30, 2023,
the Sub-Fund owned all of the issued shares outstanding of the Master Fund,

Forvward Forvign Curvency Conlroacty
Forward foreign cwrrency conlracts are valued at the difference between the forward foreign exchange rates at the dates of entry into
the contracts and the Forward rates at the reporting date,

Cisdr anad Casl Fquudealenis
The Sub-Fund considers all highly ligued investments, with original maturities of less than 90 days, as cash equivalents.

Foreigh Cirvency

Irvestment securnities and other azsets and labilities denomimated in foreign currencies are transkated into U5, $ amounts at the date of
valuation, Purchases and sales of investment securities and income and expense iteins denomimsted in foreign curencies are iranslated
into U8, § amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
[
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The Sub-Fund does not isolate the portion of the resulis of operations resulting from changes in foreign exclange rates on investments
froen the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized
gain'{loss) and wet change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on mvestments in the satement of operations.

Reported net realized gaing or losses on foreign currencies arise from sales of foreign currencies, comency gains or losses realized
between the trade amd settlement dates on securities transactions, and the difference bebween the amounits of dividends and interest
recorded on the Sub-Fund's books and the U5, 5 equivalent of the amountz actually received or paid. Reported net unrenlized foreren
exchange gains and losses arise from changes m the fair valies of assets and labilities, other than nvestments in securities, and
securities sold, not vet purchased at v ear-end, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

Revenue Recognition

Secumities transactions are recorded on & trade-date basis, Dividend income and expense are recognized on the ex-dividend date and
interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basiz, Realized gains and losses on investment tramsactions are determined
by the first in, first ot method, Discounts which are expected to be realized and premiums on investments are amortized over the
remmining life of the respective nvestments wng the effective interest methed. The meome and expense reflected in the statement of
operations do not include those ncome and expense amounts eamed or incurmed by the Master Fund. Such armounts, to the extent they
have nol been distributed by the Master Fund, are included in the value of the Sub-Fund®s investment n the Master Fund.

Allocation af Tneome and Expenses

The Sub-Fund allocates income and cxpenses to cach class and series pro rata based on the net asset value per share of the applicable
class or serics ol the begmning of the calculation period Profit and loss recognized through share clazs hedging specific to the
designated currency of cach ¢ lass as desonbed i Mote 5 is allocated to the class being hedged.

Tncome Taxes

In accordance with 1.8, GAAP requirements regarding accounting for imcentainties in income taxes, management has analvzed the
Sub-Fund's tax positions taken for the open tax period and has concluded that mo provision Far income tax is required in the Sub-
Fumd's financial satements,

The Sub-Fund s nol sulject to tax under current Civinan Dslands tax laws but the Master Funid miav be afvject to laxes iposed by
coumtries i which it mvests. Such taxes are generally based on meome and‘or capital gains camed or repatriated. Tases are acorued
and applied to net investment meome, net realized gams and net inrealized gam (loss) a5 such ncome and'or gams are camed.

Use of Extimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformmity with U5, GA AP requires management to make estinsates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if amy. at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenucs and expenses recorded during the reporting year, Acteal results could differ
from those estimates and such differences could be material,

Tndemmijffoation and Waorranties

In the ordinary course of s business, the Sub-Fund has entered imto contracts or agreements that contain mdemmnifications or
warranties. Future events could occur that lead to the execution of these provisions against the Sub-Fund. The maximum exposure to
the Sub-Fund under these provisions is unknown as this would invelve fubire claims that have not vet ocoured,

3. Unit Transactions

Deseription of Unity

The number of Units authorized to be issued is unlimited and shall be withom par value. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial
interest in thee Sub-Fund with the reult that the amount payvable to a Unitholder upan temmination of the Sub-Fund will equal itz share
of the net aszset value attribatable to the relevant Class of Units divided by all Units of the Class then outstanding. All Units of a Class
convey, upon issue, the same rights 32 to repurchase and distnbutions. Each of the Units has equal rights and privileges with each
other Unit. meludng the right 1o one vote per Unit.

The Sub-Fund currently offers, and in the fiture may offer, without consent of the Unitholders, various Classes of Units with differing
fee structures and subscription requeements to meet the needs of certain classes of investors or to conform to market practice or
requirements in certain junisdiclions.

The Manager/Tnvestment Manager neay, ab any time at its discretion, temporarily discontinue, cease indefinitely or limit the issue of
Units to mvestors pesident or established in ceram countries or temitories,  The ManagerTnvestment Mamager may also prohibit
certain investors from acquiring Units if necessary for the protection of the Unitholders as a whole and each Sub-Fund

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Initial Subscription af Enits

Units were initially offered a3t AUD 10 per Class AUALU Unit and Class ALVBR Unit and LULS. $10 per Class US/BR Unit and Class
US/MUIS Unit. The minimumn initial investment iz 100 Units and the minimum subsequent investment is 10 Units fior Class ALVATI,
Class ALBR, Class US/BR and Class LIS/US,

Subsequend Subseripons of Units

Units will be available For purchase in the Offered Currencies at ther respective net assel valwes per Unit {plus amy applicable sales
charge) on amy Dealing Dav. Dealing Day = each business diay (A day which 5 a Bank Business Day in the United Kingdom and
Japan and business day for the New York Stock Exchange and‘or amy other day which the ManagerInvestment Manager determimes,
“Busness Dy ™)

Repurclace of Units
Unithelders may redeem thear Unitz on amry Dealing Day by transmitting an irevocable repurclmsze order by Facsimibe or mail 1o the
adminiztrator of the Sub-Fund.

The Manager/Tivestment Manager will endeavor to ensure, for sy Dealing Dary, that an appropriate level of hquidity = maintained in
resprect of each class so that repurchase of Units mury, under monmal croumstances, be made promptly on such date to Unitholders
requesting repurchase. However, the ManagerTovestment Manager may limit the repurchase of Units in the event the relevant Sub-
Fumd receives, as of amy Dealmg Day, requests to redeom meore tham 1020 of the Units of the Sub-Fund outstanding as of such date, in
which caze Units of the Sub-Fund mary be redeemed on a pro rata basis. Ame part of a repurchisse request to which effect is nol given
by reasen of the exercise of this power by or on behalf of the ManagenTovestment Manager will be treated as if a request has been
made i respect of the next Dealing Day and all following Dealing Days (in relation to which the Manager/ Investment Manager has
the same power) until the ongmal request has been satisfied in full. In addition, under cerlam circumstances, the Trustee, In
comsultation with the ManagerInvestment Manager, may suspend the right of Unitholders to redeem Units.

Distribadions

The ManagerInvestment Manager intends to declare a monthly distribation az of the 15h of each month (the “Record Date™), The
Manager/ Tnvestiment Manager intends to declare and pay monthly distributions from () realized and unreahzed profits, meludmg (1)
dividend profits, (11} capital gams and (i) profits atiributable to the currency managament, and (b)) available capital, stiributable o the
relevant Class of Units.

The Manager/Investment Manager will determine if and to what extent distnibutions paid mclude realized and wnrealized profits
and'or are paid out of available capital, attributable to the relevant Class of Units,

Unit transactions for the year ended September 30, 2023 were a8 follows:

Wear Ended Wear Ended
Seplember 30, 2023 September 30, 2023
Class ALVAL
Units zold 63,700 8 411,300
Units redecrned (1,083,170} (7,416.364)
Net decrense (L019.4700  § {7005, 064)
Class ALVBR
Units redeerned (54,4300 (247.967T)
Net decrense (54.430) 5 {247.967T)
Class US/BR
Units redeerned (853801 (431,147
Met decrease {85380y % (431.147)
Class US/US
Units sold 31,950 % 342,635
Units redecmied (241.510% (2.516.697)
Net decrease (209.5960)  § (L174,087)
Total amount of Unil iransacions: 5 (9. 558,235)

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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The ManagerInvestment Mmager has appointed Mizuho Securities Co., Lid. as distinbuter (in this capacity, the “Distributor”) in
Japan. As of September 30, 2023 there was one mwestor that individually owned 100% of the Sub-Fund s net assets. Transactions by
the Distributor and/or investors holding a significant percentage at the Sub-Fund can impact other investors.

4. Fees and Expenses

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other pasty or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions.

Thistee Frex

The Trustee shall be entitled to receive a fee of 11,8, $10,000 per annum payable cut of the proceeds of subscription for the Units of
the Sub-Fund, The Trustee shall alzo be entitled to receive out of the asets of the Sub-Fund, a fee for extraordinary Trustee services
and amy direct out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Trustee on behalf of the Sub-Fund,

For the vear ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund incwred ULS. 3100000 of Trestes Fees expense, none of which was payable at
September 30, 2023,

Manager Tnvestment Manager Fee

The Manager/Investment Manager is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Manager (“Management
Fee™) of the Sub-Fund a fee equal to 0.01%% per anmurm of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of each Business Day
in each month.

The ManagerInvestment Manager is entitled to be paid ot of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Investment Manager
{“Investment Management Fee™) of the Sub-Fund a fee of 0,19%6 per anmum of the averaze of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of
each Business Day m each month, Unitholders indirectly pay the fees and expenszes related to the Master Fund includmg
Manager/Tnvetment Manager Fee of 0.85% and other operating expenses inchiding, but not limited to Admistration Fee, Trustee
Fee and Custodian fee.

The ManagarInvestrnent Manager shall also be entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for amy out-of-pocket
expenses and disbursements imcurred by the Manager Investment Manager on behalf of the Sub-Fund.

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund mcurred U5, 8105323 and 118, 55,543 of lnvedment Management Fec and
Management Fee expense, respectively, of which 1.8, $8136 and U5, 5428 were payable and inchuded within Investment
Management fee payable and Management fee payable in the statement of assets and liabilities, respectively. Additionally, the Sub-
Fumd incurred Investment Management and Manmgement Fees of ULS, 3466456 and 115, 55,553, respectively, through its investment
in the Master Fumd.

Admindstrater and Frangler Agent Fees

The Trustes entered into an administration agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. to act as administrator and transtfer agent
of the Sub-Fumd (the “Administrator and Transfer Agent™). For its fund accounting administration services in respect of the Sub-Fund,
the Administrator and Transfer Agent is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund, a fee pavable in U5, § monthly in
arvears within 30 calendar days of the end of the relevand month, The fee for the fund accounting administration services is
LS. S15000 per anmen and other transactional charges. The fee for ransfer agpency services is US 510,000 per anim plus
US. 51000 per Unil clazs and any other transactional charges. For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund incurred
U8, 824,220 of adimamstrstive fees and U8, 520413 of transfer agency fees, of which U8, 83,157 and ULS. 58,274, respectively,
were payable and meluded within accreed expenses i the staterment of assets and Labilities. Additionally, the Sub-Fund incurred
administrative and transfer agency fees of US. 516,883 and U.S. 319,238 respectively, trough its investment in the Maser Fund.

Agent Company Fee

The ManagerInvestment Manager as appointed AllianceBemnstein Japan Ltd. as the Agent Company in Japan. The Agent Company
iz entitled to be paid out of the azsets of the Sub-Fund for iz services as Agent Comgpany (“Agent Company Fee”) of the Sub-Fund a
fee of 0.05% per anmun of the average of the net aszet value of the Sub-Fund as of each Business Day in each month,

For the vear ended Seplember 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund meurred US, 527,717 of Agent Company Fees, of which U5, 32,142 was
payable and included within Agent Company Fee payable in the statement of assets and habalities.

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Distributor Fee

The Distributor 15 entitied to be paid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Distributor C*Distribution Fee™) of the Sub-
Fund a fee of 0.60%% per annum of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of each Business Day in each month. Other
Distrabutors ey be appointed in the fisture,

For the vear ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund incurred US, 5332599 of Distribution Fees, of which U.5. 3104,620 was
payvable and incleded within Distribution Fee payable in the statement of assets and labilities.

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Sub-Fund uses derivatives to eam income and enhance retums, to hedge or adjust the risk profile of its Pertfolio and its Unit
Clazaes, to replace more traditional direct investments, of to oblain exposure to otherwise naccessible markets,

The Sub-Furd enters into denvatives which may represent off-balance sheet risk. Off-balance sheet risk existz when the maximum
potential loss on a particular investment is greater than the value of such investment as reflected in the statement of assets and
liabilities.

Certain derrvative apgreements allow counterparties to over-the-coumter (*OTC™) denvatives to require collateral or terminate
dertvative contracts prior o maturity i the event the Sub-Fund’s net assets decline by a stated percentage or the Sub-Fund fails to
mieel other credit-risk conlingent terms in the agreement, which would cause an accelerated pavment of amy net labilite owed 1o the
coumterparty.

The principal types of derivatives utilized by the Sub-Fund, as well as the methods in which they may be used are:

Forvward Forvign Currency Conlrocts
Durmng the vear ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund entered into forward foreigh cuavency contracts to hedge exposare to the
designated currency of cach respective Unit Class versus the ULS. 5 as detailed below:

s Class AUAL: Buying AUD forward foreign currency confracts against the ULS, £, in the AUD amount equal to the extent
possible to approximately 100% of the 115, § exposure of the net asset value (excluding unrealized currency gain or loss)
attribastable to Class ALVALL

= Class AUBR: Buying BRL forward foreign currengy contracts against the ULS, 5, in the BEL amount equal to the extent
possible o approximately 1000 of the U8, § exposure of the net asset value (excludine unrealized currency gain or loss)
attributabile to Class ALBR.

& Class US/BR: Buying BRL forward foreion currency contracts against the US. £, in the BRL amount equal to the extent
possible to approximately 100% of the US. § exposure of the net asset value (excluding unrealized currency gain or loss)
attributable to Class US/BR.

= Class USATS: No forward foreign curmency contracts,

A forward foreign currency contract i a commiment to purchase or sell a foreign cwrency at a future date at a negotisted forward
rale,

Fluctuations in the value of open forward foreign cuimency contracts are recorded as unrealized appreciation {(depreciation ) of forwand
foreign currency contracts in the statement of assets and liabalities and as net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
foreign curreney denommated aseets and habilities in the satement of eperations. The gun o boss ansing Fom the difference between
the origmal contract and the closing of such contract would be mcluded in net realized gain or loss on foreigm cumency transactions in
the staternent of operalions.

Risks may arise from the potential inability of & counterparty to meet the tenms of a contract and from unanticipated movements in the
value of a foreign currency relative to the U8, § The face o contract amount, in 1.5, §, reflects the total exposure the Sub-Fund has
in that particular currency contract.
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At September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund had the following open forward foreign currency contracts:

Forward Forelgn Cuwrrency Contracts

Unrealized

Appreciation

So of Nel Assels {Depreciation)

Warious Appreciated Contracls 0.05% 5 25,570
Warious Depreciated Contracts {0892 (15,1610
Total Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts (B4 £ (419.591)

The Sub-Fund typically enters into Intemnational Swaps and Denvatives Association, Inc. Master Agreements (ISDA Master
Agreement™y with its OTC derivative contract comnterparties in order to, among other things, reduce its credit risk to OTC
coumterparties, ISDA Master Agreements inc hede provisions for general obligations, representations, collateral and evemtz of default or
termination, Under an 1SDA Master Agreemend, the Sub-Fund tvpically mav offset with the OTC counterparty cerain derivative
financial instrument's payables and'or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment (close-out
netting) in the event of default or termmation. In the event of a default by an OTC counterparty, the returm of collateral with market
value in excess of the Sub-Fund's et liability, held by the defaulting party, may be delaved or denied

The Sub-Fund's ISDA Master Agrecments may contain provisions for early termmation of OTC denivative transactions i the event
the net assets of the Sub-Fund decline below specific levels (“net asset contingent features™). If these levels are triggered, the Sub-
Fund's OTC counterparty has the right to terminate such transaction and require the Sub-Fund to pay or receive a settlement ammount
in connection with the terminated transaction. I OTC derivatives were held at vear end. please refer to netting arrangemenits by the
OTC counterparty table below for additional details,

Durmng the vear ended September 30, 2023, the Sub-Fund had the following derivatives grouped by derivative type:

Al Derivatives Liakility Derivatives
Statenent of Statement of
Aspets amid Aszets amd
Lialsilitiex Liabilities
Derivative Type Location Fair Value Location Fair Walue
Foreign exchange conbracts, . .. ... 000 oo o Unnealized Unrealized
appreciation on depreciation on
forward fordgn forward foreign
owrency contracts 23570 currency contracts 445,161
Fealized Chunge in
Location af Gain or Galn ar Unreablzed
{Loss) om Derivatives Within (Loss) an Appreciaion
Derivative Type Statement of Op erations Derivatives (e rec il o)
Fortign exchange contracts, . . ... ... .0 . 0. o Netrealized gain (loss) on foreign

aumency trnsactions, Net change in

aprealazed W\eﬁﬂjuL{dq:r:daan':

on foreign aumency denominaled nsels

and lishilies (1.139.712) 1,675,155
B T e S e s 5 (1, 15,7120 5 16751558

For financial reporting purposes, the Sub-Fund does not offset derivative assets and denvative liabalitics that are subject to neltmg
arrangements in the datement of assels and labildies.

All OTC derivatives held at vear end were subject to netting arrangements. The following table presents the Sub-Fused's derivative
assets and liabilities by OTC counterparty net of amounts available for offset under ISDA Master Agreements (“MA™) and net of the
related collateral received/pledged by the Sub-Fund as of September 30, 2023, Exchange-traded denvatives and centrally cleared
swaps are not subject to netting arrangements amd az =uch are excluded from the table,
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Derivative Awel Dervaties Avallshls LIS T N Amaust of
——Subjectto 3 MA fog Offmt Nt Amowe | Rewbed e dwes
Erown Brethers Hamman & Co ] L0460 [] {50803 ¥ & 1 -b- ] 4-
Cinbank, HA MELT (34,5805 3 -0 -
L D R S L i 25570 i (25,57 i [ -0- 1 0
Dierhwatioe L iah livks Dby miives Availsh s Ul e N Amaun of
A for Offint livAmeety o Pl | _Derbote Lishllite:
Emwn Brothers Hammen & Co [ M [] {1,080} [] FLFR i -0 [ M e
Cilbink, HA 138 232 (M 550 157,327 -0 157,322
oy P e H 445 | 6] H (25,5704 5 418508 i 0 H 41501

6. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with ULS. GAAP regarding fair value measurernents, fair value is defmed as the price that the Sub-Fund would receive
1o sell an assel o pay to transfer a liability in an orderly iransaction between market participants at the measurement date. U8, GAAP
establishes a framework for measuring far value, and a three-level hierarchy for fair value measuraments based upon the transparency
of inputs to the vahwation of an asset or liability, Inputs may be observable or unobservable and refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Obzervable mputs reflect the assumglions market participants would wuse m pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained
from sources independent of the Sub-Fund, Unobservable mputs reflect the Sub-Fumd's own assumgdions about the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or linbility based on the best information available in the circumstances. Each
investment is assigned a level based wpon the observability of the mputs which are significant to the everall valuation.

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs & summarized below:

=  Level 1 - quoted prices m active markets for identical mvestments

& Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (ncluding quoted prices for sumilar mvestments, interest rates, prepayment
speeds, credit risk, ete.)

& Level 3 - significant unobservable mputs (mcluding the Sub-Fund’s own assumptions in determining the far value of
Investments)

The Sub-Fund uses the net assel value as a practical expedient to determmine the fair value of the Master Fund. The
Manager/Trvetment Manager reserves the right 1o adijust the reported net asset value if it is deemned 1o be not reflective of fair vahie
Because of the inherent uncertamty of valuation of imvestments in the Master Fund therr estimated values may differ significanthy
froam the values that would have been used had a ready madket for the Master Fund existed, and the diference ¢ould be materal.

The following table summanizes the valuation of the Sub-Fund's mvestments following the fair value hierarchy levels as of September
30, 2023;

Imvestnieni s in Secirites Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Ttal
(eher Financial Instrumenis®;
Acels

Forward Fordgn Cuwmency Contracts ., ... ... ... . i 0= i 15570 1 - 5 15570
Linhikities

Forveard Forgign Currency Contracts, ... .00 0.0 - {448 161) - (45,161)
Lol o e e s e § - § {49801y % -0 §  (esen
Imvestments @ NAY . .. oo i e 50756497
Tofad Investmyemb® . . . .. ociwbviniaannn canans § 50336906

* Otfwer finoicial isiraments e derivative instriments, sucl as fiduees, forvards and swops, wiich are valved of the iwealized
appreciation jdepreciation) on Bie rmirement. Ofher fincncial instriments ey alvo Include swaps witl ippfront premicns, opfiooe
written amed swaptions written wiich cre volned af merket v,

The Sub-Fund's investment in the Master Fund exceeds 5% of net assets and the Sub-Fund is able to redeem from the Master Fund on
A daily basis. As of September 30, 2023, the Master Fund has no redemption restrictions. In addition, the Sub-Fund through its
investment in the Master Fund did not held any mvestment that exceeded 526 of the Sub-Fund's net assets. The Master Fund's
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investment objective 15 to seck bo maximize cumrent income and long-term growth of capital by primarily investing in a diversified
portfolio of global stocks across a range of industries,

7. Financial Highlights
The financial highlights represent the Sub-Fund’s financial performance for the y ear ended September 30, 2023,

The per share operating performance and ratios are computed based wpon the average Unils outstanding and average nel assets,
respectively, for the vear ended September 30, 2023,

Unitholder's performance may vary based on timing of Unit transactions and cumency management specific o the designated
currency of each respective Unit Class. Total retum is computed based on the change m the net asset value per unit duning the year,
inc uding reinvestments of distributions, Total investiment retem is based on net asset value of offered currency.

Ratio of operating expenses to average net assets does nol include amy expense of the Master Fund.

Year Ended
Seplember 30,
2023

et azset value, beginning of

I s e e S5.70
Income From Investment

Operations
Hetimvestment income . . . ... 0.00"
ek realized and unrealized

gain on investment and
foreign currency ransactions 1.06
et increase in net asset value

fom operations . .. ... .... 1.08
Less: Distributions
Distributions to Unitholders . . . {0.08)
Met asset value, end of year . . $6.68
Total Retum
Tolal investrment return based
on net assetvalue ., ... ... . 18.13%"
RatiosiSupplemental Data
et azsets, end of year (000
Ratio to average net assals of
Expenses . .. ........... 1.08%
Met investrment income, . . . 0.06%

* Amrouirid £x less then S0 005,
*% Toted return bered on reporting currency is 18 558%
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Year Ended
September 30,
2023

Met asset value, baginning of

year . . 53.61
Income From Investment

Operations
et imvestment income . . . _ . . .00
Met realized and unrealzed

gain on investment and

foreign currency transactions 1.24
Metincrease im net asset value

from operabtions . .. ... ... . 1.3
Less: Distributions
Distributions to Unitholders . . . {0.13)
Met asset value, end of year , . §4.82
Total Retum
Total investrment return based

on net assetvalue , .., ... 36.62%"

RatiosiSupplemental I:Ilala
et assets, end of year (000's

omitted) .. ..o 51,705
Ratio to average net assels of
Expenses .. x 1.08%
Met i |m-'nﬂrnnnt income. . . .. 0.05%

* Amound is desy them 50003,

#% Toted retrrn besed on reporting curvency s 37.38%

‘!'eu' Endead
September 30,
2023

Het asset value, beginning of

yoar | . $3.68
Income Frnm lnvmrrm

Operations
Met imvestment income . . . _ . . 0.00°
Mot realized and unrealzed

gain on investrmant and

foreign currency transactions 1.34
Netincrease in net asset value

from operations . .. ... .... 1.24

Less: Distributions

Distributions to Unitholders - . . (0.13)
et azset value, end of year |, . 54.87
Total Retum
Total investment return based

on net asset value . ... . _ .. 36.96%
Ratios/Supplemental Data
Met assets, end of year (000's

omitted) . 54,876
Ratio to wngn net assets of

Expenses . . e 1.08%

Met |mmmt mcun‘a ..... 0.05%:

® Amround £x less thern S0 005,
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Class USIUS

Year Ended
September 30,
2023

Met asset value, beginning of

T e e Tt 58.04
Income From Investrment

Operations
Mot investment income . . ... . 0.01
Met realized and unrealized

gain on investmeant and

foreign currency transactions 1.86
Met increase in net asset value

Fomoperations . .. ... ... 1.87
Less: Distributions
Distributions to Unitholders _ . . { -EEI
Met aszet value, end of year , . 510.21
Total Retum
Total investrment return based

on netassetvalue. . ... ... 2057%
RatiosiSupplemental Data
et assets, end of year (D00's

omitted) . 514,845
Ratio to mrtrugi mt aﬂm nl‘

Expenzes . . . 1.08%

Met |m:irnmt -n:-oml ..... 0.06%

8. Risks Involved in Investing in the Sub-Fund

Crrrency Risk

Underlymg investments of the Master Fund may be denominated in one or more currencies different tham that in which the Sub-Fund
iz denominated. Thiz means currency movements in such underlying investments mary significantly affect the net asset vahse in respect
of the Sub-=Fund's Umis. Investments by the Master Fund that are denommated m a particular curmency are subject to the risk that the
vilue of such cummency will change in relation to one or more other currencies. Among the factors that may affect currency values are
trade balances, the level of short-term interest rates, differences in relative values of smmilar assets in different currencies, long-term
opportunities for nvestment and capital appreciation and political developments. The Master Fumd 15 not lenited i the percentage of
its azsets that may be denominated m currencies offier than the U5, &,

Country Rishs

The Master Fund invests in securitics of issuers located in vanous countries and geographic regions. The economies of individual
coumiries may differ Gvorably or unfavarably from each other in such regpects a8 growth of gross demestic product o gross nationl
product, rate of miflation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency mnd balance of payments position, [ssuers in general are
subject to varving degrees of regulation with respect to such matters as insider rading rules, restnictions on markel manipulation,
Unithelder proxy requirements and tmely disclosure of mformation. The reporting, accounting and auditing standards of issuers may
differ, in some cases significantly, from country to country m important respects and less information from country o coumbry may be
available to investors in securities or other assefs. Nationalization, expropriation or confiscatory taxation, cumrency blodiage, political
changes, govemment regulation, pelitical or social instability or diplematic developments could affect adversely the economy of a
coumtry of & fimd's investments in such country, In the even of expropriation, nationalization of other confiscation. a fimwd could lose
itz entire investment i the coumtry mvolved In addition, lsws @ coumtries govemning business organizations, bankmgptey ad
insolvency may provide limited profection Lo security holders such as the Master Fusid,

The Master Fund may trade its securilies in a variety of markets with mamy different brokers and dealers. The failure of a broker or
dealer may result in the complete loss of the Master Fund's assets on deposit with such broker or dealer depending on the regulatony
niles govermning such broker or dealer. In addition, brokerage commissions in certain countries may be higher than in others, and
securilies markels i cerlam coumntries may be less liquid, more volatile and less subject to govemmental supervision tha in olthers,

The secuntics markets of many countries are also relatvely small, with the myonty of markel capitalzation and trading volume
concentrated in a limated number of companies representmg a small number of ndustnies. Consequently, a fund invested i equity
securities of companies in such countries may experience greater price volatility and significantly lower liquidity than a fimd invested
solely in equity securitics of companies in countries with relatively larger securities markets. These smaller markets may be subject to
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greater influence by adverse events generally affecting the market, and by large imvestors radmg significant blocks of securities.
Sccurities settlements may in some mnstances be subject to delay s and related administrative uncertaintics,

Certain courdries require govermmental approval prior to investments by foreign persons or limit mvestment by foreign persons to only
a specified percentage of an issuer's outstanding securities or a specific class of securities that may have less advamageous terms
(including price) than securities of the compary aviilable for purchase by nationals. These restrictions of controls may at times limit
or prec hede mvestment in certain securities and ey increase the costs and expenses of the Master Fund. In addition, the repatriation
of investment income, capital, or the proceeds of sales of securties from certam countries i1s controlled under regulations, including in
some cases the need for centain advance govermment notification or ssthority, If deterioration occurs iIn a country’s balance of
pavments, the country could impose temporary restrictions on foreign capital remittances. The Master Fund also could be adversely
affected by delays in, or a refusal to grant, any required govemmental approval for repatriation, 2s well as by the application of other
restrictions on investment. Investing in local markets may require the Master Fund to adopt special procedures that may ivelve
additional costs to the Master Funid, These factors may affect the liquidiy of the Master Fund's investments in any country and the
Manmager/Tnveztment Manager will momitar the effect of any such factor or factors on the Master Fund's investmenis,

Derivatives Rixk

The Sub-Fumd may use derivatives, which are financial contracts whose value depends on, or are derived from, the value of an
underlying asset, reference rate, or index. The ManagerInvestment Manager will sometimes use derivatives as part of a srategy
designed to reduce other risks. Generally, however, the Sub-Fund or Master Fund may use derivatives as direct imvestments to cam
incoame, hedge crrency exposure, enhance vield and broaden portfolio diversification. In addition to other nsks such as the credit risk
of the counterparty, dervatives involve the nsk of difficulties in pricing and valustion and the nsk that changes m the vale of the
dervative mary not correlate perfectly with relevant underbying assets, rates, or indices.

Cross-Class Lisbity Rick

The Sub-Fund may enter into currency derivative transactions mcluding forward foreizn currency contracts in respect of a particular
Unit Class i ovder to redice exposire to the relevant Offered Currency versus the base currency of the Sub-Fund. Although the Sub-
Fuged will typically enter into forward foreign currency contracts with only these counterparties that agree to limit ther recourse (o the
particilar Unit Class on behall of which such Forward foreign curency contract was entered, given that there 1 no legal segregation of
liabilities between the various Unit Classes withan the Sub-Fund, there 15 a risk that, under centain circumstances, curency denivative
transactions in relation to a particular Desagnated Currency in respect of a particular Unit Class could result in labalities which mizht
affect the net asset value of the other Unit Classes of the Sub-Fund, in which case assets of the other Unit Classes of the Sub-Fund
may be used to cover the lizbilities inowred by the Unit Class,

Markei Risk

Market rigk iz the potential for changes m the value of investment positions due to market changes, including interest and currency
rale movernens as well as Muctuations in the prices of investment positions. Market risk is directly impacied by the volatility and
liguidity of the markets in which the underly ing financial inetruments are traded. The Master Fund attempts to manage market risk in
vartous ways, ncluding through diversifymg exposures, placing limitations on position sizes and hedging in related securities or
dervative financial mstruments, The ability to manage market risk may be constramed by changes m liquidity conditions, relative
prices, volatilities and correlations between investment positions and the instruments used to hedge such investment positions,

Creait Risk

Credt risk 15 the risk that counterpartics may fail to fulfill their obligations or that the collateral value becomes madequate. The Sub-
Fund and Master Fund atternpt to mimimize their credit risk by monitoring the credit exposure with, and the credit worthiness of,
coumterpartics,

(O Balance Sheet Risk

The Sub-Furd and Master Fund may enter into investment iransactions which may present offi-balance sheet risk. OIT balance sheet
rigk exiets when the maximum potential Joss on a particular investment is greater than the value of such mvestment, a8 reflected in the
slatemnent of assets and Habilities, (HT-balance sheet risk generally arizes from the use of derivative financial instruments.

8. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2022, the Financial Accomting Standards Board issued an Accounting Standards Update, ASU 2022-(k3, “Refercnce
Rate Reform (Topic 848) — Defierral of the Sunset Date of Topic 8487, ASU 2022-06 is an amendment to ASU 2020-04, which
provided oplicnal guidance to ease the potential accounting burden due to the discontinuation of the LIBOR and other mterbank-
offered bazed reference rates and which wag effective az of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022, ASU 202206 extends the
effective period through December 31, 2024, Management is currently evaluating the impact, if sy, of applying ASU 20:22-06,
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10. Subsequent Events

Mamagement has evaluated the possibility of subsequent events existing in the Sub-Fund's financial statements up to December 19,
2023, the date the financial statements were availtable to be issued.

From October 1, 2023 to December 19, 2023, the Sub-Fund paid U5, $1,838.375 of Uit redemptions and paid distributions totalmg
US 5190852
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2022 30
2022 30
52,920,955 7,808,487
29,215,803 4,310,792
300,000 44,265
384,218 56,691
137,993 20,361
7,400 1,092
53,750,566 7,930,896
300,223 44,298
2,232,739 329,441
108,487 16,007
95,068 14,027
8,888 1,311
7,304 1,078
2,340 345
468 69
147,574 21,775
2,903,091 428,351
50,847,475 7,502,545
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30,277,419 4,467,433 5,316,200 5.70 841
1,474,558 217,571 408,550 3.61 533
3,971,193 585,950 1,086,460 3.66 540

15,124,305 2,231,591 1,673,860 9.04 1,334

8.90 865
5.64 548
3.66 540

9.04 1,334
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2022 30

809,646 119,463
809,646 119,463
134,285 19,814
7,068 1,043
424,056 62,569
38,635 5,701
35,338 5,214
26,818 3,957
25,660 3,786
25,387 3,746
10,000 1,476
5,460 806

1,100 162
733,807 108,273
75,839 11,190
6,298,090 929,283
(3,441,751) (507,830)
(12,792,155) (1,887,482)
(738,717) (108,998)
(10,674,533) (1,575,027)

(10,598, 694) (1,563,837)
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2022 30

75,839

2,856,339

(13,530,872)

11,190

421,453

(1,996, 480)

(10,598, 694)

(1,563,837)

(534,306) (78,837)
(65,563) (9,674)
(148,049) (21,845)
(295,506) (43,602)
(1,043,424) (153,957)
13,250,156 1,955,061

(25,590, 984)

(3,775,950)

(12,340,828)

(1,820,889)

(23,982,946)

74,830,421

(3.538,684)

11,041,229

50,847,475

7,502,545
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2022 30

2010 11 2011
2011 31

1-9005

2021 12

2022

2022 11

2021

2023 30
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2022 30
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2022 30

2022 30 2022 30
910,450 7,030,341
(2,799,590) (21,337,348)
(1,889,140) (14,307,007)
(127,940) (563,242)
(127,940) (563,242)
(68,280) (291,928)
(68,280) (291,928)
589,060 6,219,815
(320,040) (3,398, 466)
269,020 2,821,349
(12,340,828)

2022 30 100
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2022 30
2022 30
0.01
0.19
0.85
2022 30
597,642
30
15,000
10,000
2022 30
25,660
12,704
17,528
0.05
2022 30

2,340

8,888
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10,000

7,068

7,115

1,000
25,387
10,556

17,148
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0.60

2022 30 424,056
95,068

2022 30
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2022 30

0.27 137,993

(4.39) (2,232,739)

(4.12) (2,094,746)
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2022 30

137,993 2,232,739
137,993 2,232,739
(3,443,335) (738,591)
(3,443,335) (738,591)

2022 30
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110,371 (110,371) 0 0 0

27,622 (27.622) 0 0 0

137,993 (137,993) 0 0 0
N

1,920,156  (110,371) 1,809,785 0 1,809,785

312,583 (27,622) 284,961  (284,961) 0

2,232,739 (137,993) 2,094,746  (284,961) 1,809,785
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2022 30

0 137,993 137,993
0 (2,232,739) (2,232,739)
0  (2,094,746) (2,094,746)

52,920,955

50,826,209

2022 30
2022 30

2022 30
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2022 30

7.46

0.01
(1.68)
(1.67)

(0.09)
5.70

(12.76)% *
30,277
1.04%

0.11%
22.71

2022 30

3.86

0.00
(0.11)
(0.11)

(0.14)
3.61

9.14% *

1,475

1.04%

0.11%
3.36

2022 30

3.90

141/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.00
(0.11)
(0.11)

(0.13)
3.66

(3.18)%

3,971

1.04%
0.11%

2022 30

10.33

0.01
(1.12)
(1.11)

(0.18)
9.04

(10.97)%

15,124

1.04%
0.10%
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2019 2022 CoviD-19

2022 30
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2020-04
2020-04

2022 12 31

2022 12 15

184,830
151,112
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
September 30, 2022

Assels
Investments in AR Cayman Master Trust-Global High Income Equity
Fund {("Master Fund™) (cost 320215803) ................... ... 5 52,920,555
Cash collateral due frombroker . ... .0 verrnerrarrrrrensras 300,000
Receivable for investment securities sold and foreign currency
transachions - .. .. ... ... iiaeiiiec i 384,28
Unrealized appreciation on forward foreign currency contracts. . ... ... 137,893
Recoivablaforunits sold. .. ... ..o ooiiaiiiiiiin i _7.400
TORRL BT i i, 0 0 e 53, 750,565
Liabilities
Dee to Custodian, . 300,223
Unrealized daprmn‘lmn m fﬂﬁ'ﬂ.rd hmm currmr:y :mmu ........ 2232735
Payable forunits redeemed. . . .. ... ... .. e e 108,487
Drstribution feapayable. . . ... ..o o iiiiaiiaiiiiaiaaiianias 95,068
Investmant Management feepayable . .. .. .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 8,888
Payable for investment securities purchased ... .. ................ 7,304
Agent Company fee payable. . .. ... ... ... iiiiia i 2,340
Management fes pa.}.mbla .................................... 488
Accrued expenses. . 147,574
Total liabilities . 2803091
NBRASSIS . ... vveeessssssensee i ees it enesresreniress B 50,847 475
Het Asset
Value In
Units Net Asset Offered
_L'.I_a'ss Nt Assets Qutstandl Value f.:l.ll'mr_h.:
ALAL : 30277419 5,316,200 3 5.70 AUD 8.90
ALBR 1.474 558 408,550 3.61 ALD 564
USBR 3 871,183 1,086,460 % 5.66 3 3.66
LSS 3 15, 124,305 1,673,860 ! .04 9,04

Sof mobeg i nanca! Shelenenis

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND {(NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended September 30, 2022

Investment Income

Dividend income distributions fomMasterFund .. ........ 3§ B09,646 5 809,846
Expenses

Investment Managementfee. ., ... ................... 134,285

Manegarnnnt a0 s ssnl il s s hal el L e 7.068

BT e e e i S ok S i e 424 056

Professionalfees .. . . .. . . ... .. ... ... 38,635

Agent Company fee . 35,338

Printing fea . 26818

Trmsl’ﬂ-ra.wwm 25,660

Adrinistrative fes. . 25,387

PODIRTBIOH T oo & e s s i 5,480

Miscallenmonis W= coon el o s g il i gl 1,100

Total expenses. . 733,807
Met imvestment income . ‘e 75,838

Realized and l.'nreallzed Gain ILnssl nn lnvesiment ami
Foreign Currency Transactions
et realized gain (loss) on:

Investrment in Master Fund . 6,298,090

Foreign currancy tmnsu:hm: el i (3,441,750
Met change in unrealized ammhm.fdmnuuum on:

Investments in Master Fund . o {12, 792.155)

Fareign currency dmnn'matld ltsm and ﬁablilm Vs (738717
Met loss on mvestment in Master Fund and Fm'ngn cumqr

transactions. . ..... ik {10,674.533)
Nét Decrease in Met Assm from an s 5 {10,598, 684)

Sob rokeg 1B inant! chablemenis

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUMD (NON JPY CURRENCY)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended
September 30, 2022
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations
Netimestmentincame . . . .. ... . L. s 5 75,838
Met realized gain on investment in Master Fund and foreign
curreney FANSACHONS. . . .. .. ... .. c e e 2,856,338
et change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on
investment in Master Fund and foreign mrmnl:y
denominated assets and liabiliies. | ek T R (13.530.872)
et decrease in net aszets fom npamtrms SR (10,598 684)
Distributions to Unitholders
Cltrm MR- e i e e A (534, 306)
CIREE ALUBR &y o nie v s v s o Wb A (65.563)
Class USVBR . B A N ep b P Tk ST {148.049)
Class USAIS . (295 508)
Tutul[hstnbuhmstﬂt.lrﬂhdm...................... (1. 043424)
Unit Transactions
Subscriptions . | 13,260,156
Redemptions . . e e (25,580,884)
Total Unit Transactions . . {12, 340.828)
Tnmln:h:masn........._......................... (23,882 946)
Het Assets
Bagmnmingofyear. . .. . ... . i it b 74,830,421
N O o cnnin o i e A e e . 50,847,475

Sod foked B et ol is

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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NOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2022

1. Organization

AB Civman Trust (the “Trust™ is an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trust established on November 1, 2010 and amended with a
sugrp lemental trust deed filed on Awgust 9, 2001 under the Trusts Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and commenced operations on
January 31, 2011, The Trust operales as a series inst cumently comprized of ene portfolio: Global High Income Equity Fund (Won
JPY Currency ). This repert relates to Global High Income Equity Fund (Non JPY Currency) (the “Sub-Furd™). The registered office
of the Sub=Fund is ¢'o Intertrust Trustees (Cavoean) Limited (the “Trustee™) Ome Nexs Way Grand Cavman KY 12005, Cayman
Islamds.

On December 6 2021, Coporation Service Company (°CSC™) announced that a conditional agreement had been reached on a
recommiended public offer for all ssued and cutstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust Group, a related party of the Trustee, CSC and
Intertrust Group anticipate that the transaction will close in the second half of 2022, subject to customary closing conditions and
regulatory approvals.

On 7 Movemnber, 2022, CSC and Intertrust Group announced that CSC will complete their scquisition of Intertrust Group after
receiving all necessary regulatory and stakehobder approvals, and satisfying all conditions of the offer.

The Sub-Fund is regulated as a mutsal fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revizion) of the Cayman Tslands and accordingly is
regulated by the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority,

Curently the Sub-Fumd has available for ssue four classes of Units (Note 3), Class AUVAU Units designated to Australian Dollar
(AUD), Class AUBR Units designated to Brazilian Real (BRL), Class US/BR Units designated to BRL and Class USUS Units
designated to United States (US) Dollars (3. Each currency in which the Units are offered is known as the offered curmrency
(Offered Currency™). The Offered Currency for Class ALVAU and AUEBR is AUD. The Offered Currency for Class US/BR and
USUS isUS. 8.

AllianceBemnstein L.F, serves as Manager/Tnvestment Manager (the “ManagenTnvestment Manager™,

The Sub-Fund invests subztantially all of itz asselz m the AB Cavman Master Trust - Global High Income Equity Fund (the “Master
Fund™), a fund affiliated with the Manager/Tnvestment Manager., The Master Fumnd has only one class of Units. The Sub-Fund's
investiment objective (through its myestment m the Master Fund), 15 to seek lo muanize current mcome and long-term growth of
capital by primarily mvesting in a diversified portfolio of global stocks across a range of industries. There can be no assurance that
the Sub-Fund will achieve its investment objective or gemerate investment retums.

The Sub-Fund will terminate on Seplember 30, 2023, unless the Manager/Tnvestment Manager determines in consultation with the
Trestee that it iz in the best mterest of Unitholders to terminate the Sub-Fund prior to such date,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared o accordance with accoumting prmciples generally accepted in the United States of

America CULS, GAAP”) and are expressed in U5, 5, The Sub-Fund i an investment compamy umder U8, GAAP and follows the
accounting and reporting gaidance applicable Lo investiment companies,

Valuation of Investment
The Sub-Fund records its investment in the Master Fund st fair value based on the net asset value per Unit, At September 30, 2022,
the Sub-Fund owned all of the issued shares outstanding of the Master Fund.

Ferward Forelgn Currency Contracts
Forward foreign currency contracts are valued at the difference between the forward foreign exchange rates at the dates of entry into
ihe contracts and the forward rates at the reporting date.

Casfr and Cash Equivalenis
The Sub-Fund considers all highly liqusd mvestments, with original maturities of less than 90 diys, s cash equivalents.

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Foreign Currvency

Irvestment securnties and other azsets and labilities denommated m foreign curencies are transkated mto U8, § amounts at the date of
valuation, Purchases and sales of investment securities and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into 115, § ampounts oo the respective dates of such tranzactions,

The Sub=Fund does net isolate the portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exclange rabes on investments
from the fluctations arising from changes in markel prices of securities held. Such fMuctuations are included with the net realized
gain'{loss) and net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on vestments n the statement of operations.

Reported net realized gains or losses on foreign currencies anse from sales of foreion currencies, cumency gains or losses realized
between the trade and settlement dates on securities transactions, and the difference between the amounts of dividends and interest
recorded on the Sub-Fund's books and the U5, § equivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Reported net unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses anse from changes m the fair valees of assets and lmbilities, other than investments in securities, and
gecurities sold, not vel purchased at vear-end, resulting from changes in exchange rates,

Revenue Recognilion

Securities trarsactions are recorded on a trade-date basis, Dividend income and expense are recogmzed on the ex-dividend date and
interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis. Realized guins and losses on imvestment transactions are delermined
by the first in, first out method. Discounts which are exqpected to be realized and premiums on investments are amortized over the
remaining life of the respective mvestments using the effective ntered methed. The meome and expense reflected in the statement of
operations do not mclude those meome and expense amounts camed or ncumed by the Master Fund. Such amounts, to the extent they
have not been distributed by the Master Fund, are included in the value of the Sub-Fund®s imvestment in the Master Fund.

Allocation af Tncomie aid Expesises

The Sub-Fund allocates income and expenses to each class and series pro rata based on the net asset value per share of the applicable
clazs o seriex at the begmning of the caleulation period Profit and loss recognized through dhare clis hedging specific to the
designated currency of cadh class a= descnibed in Note 5 is allocated (o each clazs,

Income Taves

In accordance with U8, GAAP requirements regarding accounting for uncertambies m income taxes, managernent has anabyzed the
Sub-Fund's txx positions taken for the open tax peniod and has concluded that no provision for income tax 5 required in the Swh-
Fumd’s financial statements,

The Sub-Fund iz not subject to tax under curment Cayman Islands tax laws but the Master Fund meay be sulbject to taxes imposed by
coumiries in which it invests, Such taxes are gemerally based on income and/or capital gains camed or repatrated. Taxes are accred
and applied to net investment income, net realized gains and net unrealized gain (los=) a5 such income and'or gams are camed.

Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U_S. GA AP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities, if any, at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses recorded during the reporting year, Actual results could differ
fromn these estimates and such differences could be material,

Indemmiffoaion and Worranties

In the ordinary course of #ts business, the Sub-Fund has entered into contracts or agreements that contain indemnifications o
warranties. Future events could occur that lead to the execution of these provisions against the Sub-Fund. The maxinum expesure (o
the Sub-Fund under these provisions is unknown as this wold involve future claims that have mot vet ocourred,

3. Unit Transactions

Deseviption of Unils

The number of Units authorized to be issued is unlimited and shall be without par value. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial
interest in the Sub-Furd with the resalt that the amount payvable to a Unitholder upon tenmination of the Sub-Fund will equal its share
af the net asset value attributable to the relevant Class of Units divided by all Units of the Class then outstanding, All Units of a Class
convey, upol issue, the same rights a2 to repurchase and distnibutions, Each of the Units has equal rights and privileges with each
other Unit, incleding the right to one vote per Unit,

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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The Sub-Fund currently offers, and in the future may offer, without consent of the Unithelders, various Classes of Units with differing
fee structures and subscription requirements to meet the needs of certain classes of investors or to conform o market practice o
requirements in cenain jurisdictions.

The Manager Tnvestment Manager may, ab any time at its discretion, temporarily discontinue, ceaze indefinitely or limit the is=ue of
Units to mvestors resident or established in certam countries or temitories.  The ManagerTnvestment Manager may also prohibit
certain investors from acquiring Units if necessary for the protection of the Unitholders as a whele and each Sub-Fund

Initial Subseription of Enits
Units were initially offered st AUD 10 per Class ALVAL Unit and Class AUBR Unit and U8, $10 per Class US/BR Umnit and Class
USUS Unit. The minimemn initial investment is 100 Units and the mimimum subsequent investment is 10 Units for Class AUAT,
Clasg ALVBR, Clazs USBR and Clazs US/US,

Subsequent Subseriplons of Units

Units will be available for purchase in the Offered Currencies at their respective net asset valees per Unit {plus any applicable sales
charge) on amy Dealing Day. Dealing Day i each business div (A day which & 8 Bank Business Day in the United Kingdom and
Japan and business day for the Mew York Stock Exchange and’or any other day which the ManagerInvestment Manager determmes,
“Business Day ™)

Reprorelrave of Unils
Unithelders may redeem ther Umits on any Dealing Day by transmitting an mrevocable repurchase order by facsimile or mail 1o the
admimistrator of the Sub-Fund.

The ManagerTnvestment Manager will endeavor to ensure, for any Dealing Day, that an appropriate level of liquidity & meaintained in
respect of each class 2o that repurchase of Units mey, under pormal cercumstances, be made promptly on such date to Unitholders
requesting repurchase. However, the ManagenTovestment Manager may limat the repurchase of Usits in the event the relevant Suh-
Fussd recerves, as of any Dealing Day, requests to redeem more than 108 of the Units of the Sub-Fund oulstanding az of such date, in
which cage Units of the Sub-Fund miy be redesmed on a pro rata basis, Ay pail of a repurchase request Lo which effect is nol given
by reason of the exercise of this power by or on behalf of the ManagenTrvestment Manager will be treated a5 if a request has been
miade m respect of the nexd Dealng Day and all followmg Dealng Days (in relation to which the Manager/ Investment Manager has
the same power) until the origimal request has been satisfied in full In addition, under certam circumstances, the Trustee, in
consultation with the ManagerTnvestment Manager, mav suspend the right of Unitholders to redeemn Units.

Distribadfons

The ManagerInvestment Manager intends to declare a monthly distribation az of the 15th of each month (the “Record Date™), The
Manager/Invesiment Manager intends to declare and pay monthly distributions from (a) realized and unrealized profits, ncluding (1)
dividend profits, (1) capital gams and (i) profits attributable to the curency management, and (b)) avalable capital, attributable to the
relevant Class of Units.

The Manager/Investment Manager will determine i and to what extert distributions paid mclude realized and wnrealized profits
and'or are paid oat of available capital, atributable to the relevant Class of Units.

Unit transactions for the year ended September 30, 2022 were as follows:

“ear Ended ear Ended
September 30, W23 Seplember 30, 2022
Class AU/AL
Units sold Q10450 & 7.030,341
Units redecmed (2,799 5%} (21.337.348)
Met decrease (1.BED 140} & (14.307.007)
Class AL/BR
Units redecmed (127940) & {563,247
Net decrense (1270400 % (563.242)
Class US/BR
Uhits redeemed (68280} % {20] 928)
Net decrease (68.280) § {291.928)

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2022 Seplember 30, 2022
Class USUS
Units sold 580060  $ 6,219,815
Units redesmed (320,040 3, 300 466)
Net Increase 2694020 5 2.H2L.349
Total amoant of Undt transactions: S (12.340,828)

The Manager/Investrment Mmager has appointed Mizuho Securities Co, Lud, a= distributor (in this capacity, the “Distributor”) in
Japan. As of September 30, 2022 there was one mvestor that ndividually owned 10026 of the Sub-Fund's net assels Transactions by
the Distributor and/or investors holding a sigmficant percentage at the Sub-Fund can mmpact other mvestors.

4. Feas and Expenses

Partiez are considered tobe related if one party has the ability to controd the other party or exercise significant influenc e over the other
party in making financial or operational decizsions.

Trustee Feex

The Trustee shall be entitled to recerve a fee of U.S. S10.0040 per annum payable can of the proceeds of subscription for the Units of
the Sub-Fund. The Trustee shall also be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund, a fee for extraordinary Trustee services
and any direct out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Trustee on behalf of the Sub-Fund,

For the vear ended September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund incuered ULS, 810,000 of Trstee Fors expenze, none of which was payable at
Septemnber 30, 2022,

Meanager-Tuve stimend Manager Fee

The Manager/Investment Manager 15 entilled to be paid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for i1s services as Manager (Management
Fee™) of the Sub-Fund a fee equal to 000126 per anmum of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of cach Business Day
in exch month,

The ManagerInvestment Manager i entitled to be paid ot of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Investment Manager
(“Investment Management Fee™) of the Sub-Fund a fee of 0. 19% per anmum of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of
each Busimess Diy o each month. Unitholders indirectly pay the feess and expenses relsted to the Master Fund mcludmg
Manager/Investment Manager Fee of 0.85%0 and other operating expenses including, but not limited to Admmistration Fee, Trustec
Fee and Custodian fee.

The ManagenTnvestinent Manager shall also be entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for amy out-of-pocket
expenzes and disbursements incurred by the Managen Tnvestment Manager on behalf of the Sub-Fund,

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund mowrred U5, $134,285 and U5, 37,068 of Investment Management Fee and
Mamagemend Fee expense, mespectively, of which US. S8.888 and U8, 5468 were pavable and mchided within Investrent
Management fee payable and Management fee payable in the statement of assets and liabilitics, respectively. Additionally, the Sub-
Fusd incurred Investment Mamagement and Management Fees of U8, $597,642 and 118, 57,115, respectively, through its imvestment
in the Master Fumd.

Admirdstrater and Frangler Agent Fees

The Truster entered into an administration agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Lo act 28 administrator and transfer agent
of the Sub-Fussd (the “Administrator and Transfer Agent™). For = fund accounting administration serviaces in respect of the Sub-Fund,
the Admimstrator and Transfer Agent 15 entitled Lo be pad out of the assels of the Sub-Fund, a fee pavable i US. § moenthly in
arrears within 30 calendar days of the end of the relevand month, The fee for the fund sccounting admmnistration services 1s
175, §15,000 per anmen and other transactional charges. The fee for ransfer agency services is U8 $10,000 per annum plus
US. 51,000 per Unit class and any other transactional charges. For the vear ended September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund incurred
115, 525,387 of administrative fees and U.5. 325680 of transfer agency fees, regpectively, of which US. 510,556 and $12,704,
respectively, were pavable and included within accrued expenses m the staterment of assets and liabilities. Additionally, the Sub-Fund
incurred administrative and transfer agency fees of U8, £17,528 and 108, £17,148, respectively, through its mvesdment in the Master
Fuand,

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Agent Compary Fee

The ManagerInvestment Manager fns appointed AllianceBemstein Japan Ltd. as the Agent Company in Japan. The Agent Company
is entitled to be paid cut of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Agent Comgpany (“Agent Company Fee™) of the Sub-Fund a
fee of 0.05% per anmun of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of each Business Day in each month,

For the vear ended Seplember 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund mcurred U8, 535,338 of Agent Company Fees, of which U5 52 340 was
payvable and incleded within Agent Company Fee payable in the statement of asszets and habilities.

Distributor Fee

The Distributor is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund for its services as Distributor (*Distribution Fee™) of the Sub-
Fusud a fee of 0.60% per annum of the average of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund as of each Business Day in each month. Other
Distribators sy be appointed in the fisre,

For the vear ended September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund incwred U5, 5424,056 of Distribution Fees, of which US. 505068 was
pavable and included within Distribution Fee payable in the statement of assets and Babilities,

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Sub-Fund uses derivatives to eam income and enhance retums, to hedge or adjust the risk profile of its Portfolio and its Unit
Classes, to replace more traditional direct investments, of Lo obtain exposure to otherwise maccessible markets,

The Sub-Fund enters o derivatives which muy represent off-balance sheet risk. Off-balance sheet risk exists when the masirmm
potential loss on a particular investment is greater than the valie of such investment as reflected in the statement of asscts and
liabilities.

Certain derivative agreements allow coumterparties to overdhe-coumer derivatives to require collateral of terminate dervative
Ccomracts prior o maturity in the event the Sub-Fud's net assets decline by a stated percentage or the Sub-Fund Gails to meet other
credit-risk contingent e in the agreement, which would caise an accelearated payment of any net liability owed to the ¢oumterpaty.

The principal types of derivatves ulilized by the Sub-Fund, as well as the methods in which they may be used are:

Forward Foreign Cwrrency Condracis
During the vear ended September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund entered into forwanl foreign cumrency contracts to hedge exposure to the
designated currency of each respective Unit Class versus the LLS. § as detailed below:

¢ Class AWWALL Buying AUD forward foreign currency confracts against the ULS. 5, in the AUD amount equal to the edent
possible to approwimately 100% of the U5, § exposure of the net asset value (excluding unrealized curvency gain or loss)
attribatable to Class ALVALL

& Class AUBR: Buying BRL forward foreign currency contracts against the U8, %, in the BEL amount equal to the extent
possible to approximately 100% of the US. § exposure of the net asset value (excluding unrealized currency gain or loss)
attribudable to Class ALVBR,

+ Class USBR: Buyving BRL forward foreign curmency confracts against the ULS, % in the BRL amwount equal to the extent
possible to approximately 1000 af the 115, § exposure of the net asset value (excluding unrealized civency gain of loss)
attribustable to Class USBER.

o Clags US/UIS: No forward foreign curmeney conbracts,

A forward foreign currency contract 5 a commatment to purchase or sell a foreien curency at a fulure date ab a negotisted forward
rale.

Fluctuaticns in the valwe of open forward foreign currency contracts are recorded as unrealized appreciation or depreciation of forwand
foreign currency contracts m the statenment of assets and liabilities and as net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation of foreign
currency denoaminated aszets and liabilities in the staterment of operations. The gain or loss arizing from the difference between the
onginal eontract and the clesing of such contract would be mcluded in net realized gain or less on foreign curency ransactions in the
statement of operations.
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Risks may arise from the potential inability of a counterparty to meet the terms of a contract and from unanticipated movements in the
value of a foreign currency relative to the 1.5, $. The face or contract amount, in 115, §, reflects the total exposure the Sub-Fund has
in that particular curvency contract.

Al September 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund had the following open forward foreign currency contracts:

Forward Forelgn Currency Coniracts

Unrealized
Appredation’
o of Net Assels {Deprecation)

Warious Appreciated Contracts 0.2 %% & 137903
Warious ciated Contracis (4350 (2.232.735)
Total Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts (4.121P 5 (2.004.746)

The Sub-Fumd typically enters into International Swaps and Denvatives Association, Inc. Master Agreements (ISDA Master
Agreement”} with its over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative contract coumterparties in order Lo, smong oiler things, reduce its credit
risk to OTC counterparties. [5DA Master Agreements include provisions for general obligations, representations, collateral and eveniz
of default or termination. Under an [3DA Master Agresment, the Sub-Fund tvpically may offeet with the OTC counterparty certain
dervative financial mstrument’s payables and/or receivables with collateral held and'or posted mnd create one single net payment
{close-oul netting) in the event of default or termmation. In the event of a default by an OTC counterparty, the retum of collateral with
market value m excess of the Sub-Fund's net liability, held by the defaulting party, may be delayed or denied.

The Sub-Fund's [3DA Master Agreements may contain provisions for early termination of OTC derivative transactions in the event
the net assets of the Sub-Fund decline below specific levels (“net asset contingent featmres™), If theze levels are triggered, the Sub-
Fuged's OTC counterparty las the right to terminate such tranzaction amd require the Sub-Fund to pay o receive a settlement amwount
in conneetion with the terrmnated transaction IF OTC dervatives were held at vear end. please refer to netting arrangerments by the
OTC counterparty table below for additional details,

Durmng the vear ended Septembrer 30, 2022, the Sub-Fund had the following derivatives grouped by derivative type:

Asel Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Statement af Stutement of
Asoris and Asgers amd
Limliliriex Linbilities
Derivative Type Locatlon Value Loztion Falr Vahse
Foreign exchange confracts. . .. .. ... ...... Unrealized Unrealized
apprecialion on tepredintion on
Torward foreign forward foreign
auTeney contracts 1 137,94 CUImEnCy Contracts 13 213179
bl e T R R ST 5 137,503 b 1.2132.738
Realized Change in
Location af Gain or Caln ar Unirenlized
{Logs) on Derivatives Within (Laoss) an Appredation or
Dtm':_._un Tvpe Stﬁmmtnl‘gzlrnﬁul: Derivatives (Depreciagion)
Foreign exchange conbracts, . _ . .. .. __..... Wt realized gain (loss) on fordgn

currency trnsactions, Net change in

unrealized appreciation/depreciaion on

foregn currency denomminated asets

anel liabilies 3 3, 443.335) 5 (738.591)
Totsl $ {3 443,335} 5 {T36.591)

For financial reporting purposes, the Sub-Fund does nol offeet derivative asets and denvative habilities that are subject to neltmg
arrangements in the datement of assets and habiliies.
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All OTC derivatives held at yvear end were subject to netting arangements. The following table presents the Sub-Fund's derivative
assets and liabilities by OTC counterparty net of amounts available for offset under ISDA Master Agreements (“AMA™) and net of the
related collateral receivedpledged by the Sub-Fund as of September 30, 2022 Exchange-traded derivatives and centrally cleared
swaps are not subject to netting arangements and as such are excluded from the table,

T R p— Dierbvatives Availahlo Callasrs] Nt Amatsg of
Commtrparty Sishject t0a MA fas Offist Nt Amaniemis o vbiund * Drrivathe At
Browe B rethers Humimen & Co ] [ICEL] ] (L1371) ] B [] ] ] ol
Cinbank. Ha arhid XL FE] = 0- -

T P —— 1 (R [ (R RET] i I i -l ] +[J-
D hrative L s lities Dierivatbves Availabln Callasral N Amang of
Comstmparty Subject tna MA fux Difist Nl Amoianty Plediged® hervartive Lish il
Brown Brathers Higmimn & Co ] 1,529,156 ] [TIEELY] [] 1EI9,TES ¥ 0 ] |E09, 185
Ciibank. Hi Ji5aE (LA FF)] il (3345461} .
i FE— [—— 1 FEAFRET] [ [EET AN 1 LOH_ 40 1 {59011 1 [OEREE]

*The aciucd colfateral receivedpledzed meay be more Hhan the amonn reporied die o overcollateralization,

6. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with U.S. GAAP regarding fair value measurements, fair value is defined as the price that the Sub-Furd would receive
to =zell an asset or pay o transter a liability in an orderly transaction between market participanis al the measurement date. UL5. GAAP
establighes a framework for measuring fair value, and a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency
of inputs to the vabiation of an aszet or liability, Inputs may be obzervable or unobservable and refer broadly to the assumptions that
mark el participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Obzervable inputs reflect the azsumglions market participants would use o pricing the asset or liability based on market data obvtained
from soirces independent of the Sub-Fisd, Uniobzervable mputs reflect the Sub-Fimd's awn assumjions about the assumptions tat
markel participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the bed nformation available in the circumstances. Each
investment 15 assigied a level based upon the ohservability of the mputs which are sigmificant to the overall valuation.

The three=tier hierarchy of inputs & summmarized below:

¢ Level | — quoted prices in active markets for identical mvestments

o Level 2 — other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments, interest rates, prepayment
speeds, credit risk, ete.)

=«  Level 3 - significant unobzervable mputz (neluding the Sub-Fund's own sseumption: in détermining the far value of
investments)

The Sub-Fund uses the net asset value as a practical expedient to determine the fair value of the Master Fund. The
Manager/Investment Manager reserves the right to adjust the reported net asset value if it 15 deemned Lo be not reflective of far vakue.
Because of the inherent uncertamty of valiation of ivestments in the Master Fund their estimated values may differ significanthy
froam the values that would have been used had a ready market for the Master Fund existed, and the difference could be material.

The follewing table summanzes the valuation of the Sub-Fund's investmendts following the fair value hierarchy levels as of Seplember
30, 2022:

Investmeni s in Securites Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Oiher Finamcial Tnstroments®:
Adelx

Forward Foreign Qurrency Contracts, ... .., . ... % -0~ 5 157 ooy 5 - % 137,993
Linkbilities

Forvward Foreign Qureney Contracts . . 0000000 - (2.252.73) - (2.232.739)
ol s B b e S5 T T e e R e 5 Al § (2094, T46) 5 - 5 (200446
Imvestmenis ol MAY . ... ... . ... .. .00 iiaan S20M0.055

Totul Investmenis . . . ... ........

5§ 0836200

* Ohther fumicial instrements are devivative instruments, sucl as fishires, forwerds and swaps, which are valved of te wwealized
appreciaiondepreciaion on the ingrument. Other financial ingtruments mey also include swaps with upfrom preminms, options

written amd sviapiions written which ave valued of market vealue,
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The Sub-Fund's investment in the Master Fund exceeds 5% of net assets and the Sub-Fund is able to redeem from the Master Fund on
1 daily basis. As of September 30, 2022, the Master Fund has no redemption restrictions. In addition, the Sub-Fund through its
investment in the Master Fund did not held any mvestment that exceeded 5% of the Sub-Fund's net assets. The Master Fund's
investment objective iz to seek o maximize cument income and long-tenm growth of capital by primarily investing in a diversified
portfelio of global stocks across a range of industries

7. Financial Highlights

The fnancial highlights represent the Sub-Fumnd’s financial performance For the vear ended September 30, 2022,

The per share operating performance and ratios are computed based upon the average Units outstanding and average net asseis,
respectively, for the year ended Seplember 30, 2022

Unitholder's performance may vary based on timing of Unit transactions and currency managemnent specilic to the designated
currency of each respective Unit Clazs. Total retum is computed based on the change m the net asset valie per unit during the year,
inc luding reinvestments of distributions. Total investment retum is based on net asset value of offered currency.

Ratio of operating expenses to average net assets does not include amy expense of the Master Fund.

Class AUTAL

Year Ended
September 30,
2022

Met asset value, beginning of

year | . 57.45
Income From Investment

Operations
Metinvestment income . . . ... 0.01
Het realized and unrealized

lorss on irvestrent and
foreign currency transactions {1.68)

Net decrease in net assot

value from operations | .. . {167}
Less: Distributions
Distributions to Unitholders . . . 0,
et azset value, end of year . . 55.70
Total Retum
Total investment return based

on netassetvalue . ... _.. {12.78)%"

Ratios/Supplemental Data
Mot assets, end of year (000's

omitted) . £30.277
Reatio to wmgﬂ et assets of

Expanzes .. RN 1.04%

Mat |msh'nant income. . _ .. 0.11%

* Toteal retrn besed on reporting currency 5 {22.71)%
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Year Ended
September 30,
2022

Met asset value, baginning of

year . . 53,85
Income From Investrment

Operations
et investment income . . . _ . . 0.00
ek realized and unrealeed

less on investment and
foreign currency transactions {011}

Met decrease in net asset

value from operations | . ... {0.11)

Less: Distributions.
Distributions to Unitholders . . . {014}
Met asset value, end of year , . $161
Total Retum
Total investrment return based

on net assetvalue , .., ... 8.14%"

RatiosiSupplemental I:Ilala
et assets, end of year (000's

omitted) .. ..o 51475
Ratio to average net assels of

Expenses .. x 1.04%

Met i |m-'nﬂrnnnt income. . . . . 0.11%
* Totel retvrn based on reporiing currency is (3 361 %,

Year Ended
September 30,
2022

Met asset value, beginning of

year | e i $3.80
Income From lnmtmm

Operations
Metinvestment income . , .. . 0.00

Het realized and unrealized
los= on investment and

foreign currency transactions 011
Net decrease in net asset

value frem operations | . .. . 011
Less: Distributions

Distributions to Unitholders . . . 10.13)

et asset value, end of year . . 5366
Total Retum
Total investment return based

onnetassetvalue. ... .... (3.18)%
Ratios/Supplemental Data
Met assets, end of year (000's

omitted) . 53871
Ratio to waruga nu aﬂ-m r:-F

Expenses . . i 1.04%

et |malrnmt mm:lma ..... 011%

AB CAYMAN TRUST-GLOBAL HIGH INCOME EQUITY FUND (NOM JPY CURRENCY)
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Class USIUS
Year Ended
September 30,
2022
et a:sat value, beginning of
yea 1 ; 510,23
Inr.'nme me Inmu'mi
Operations
het imsestment income . . . _ . . 0.01
Het realized and unrealized

less on investent and

foreign currency transactions {1.12)
Net decrease in net asset

value from operations | . _ . . 1.11
Less: Distributions

Digtributions to Unitholders . . . {0.18)

et azset value, end of year . . 50,04
Tolal Retum
Total investment return based

onnetassetvalue . ... .. (10.971%

Ratios/Supplemental Data
Het assets, end of year (000's

omitted) . 515124
Reatio mwmga et assets of

Expenzes . . i 1.04%

Met mmshﬂmt muun'e ..... 0.10%

B. Risks Involved in Investing in the Sub-Fund

Carrency Rivk

Underlying investments of the Master Fund may be denominated in one or more currencies different tham that in which the Sub-Fund
i denominated. Thiz means currency movernents in such underlving investments mery significamly affect the net assel vahee in respect
of the Sub-Fund's Umts. Investments by the Master Fund that are denommated moa particular currency are subject to the risk that the
value of such curmency will change in relation to one or more other currencies. Among the factors that may affect currency values are
trade balances, the level of short-term imterest rates, differences in relative values of smmilar asscts in different currencies, long-term
opportunitics for mvestment and capital appreciation and political developments, The Master Fumd is not lented in the percentage of
its azeets that may be denominated in currencics other than the U8, £

Country Risks

The Master Fund invests in securiies of issuers located in vamous counbries and geographic regions. The economies of individual
coumtries may differ Gvorably or unfavorably from each other in such respects a5 growth of gross domestic product o gross national
prodhuct, rate of miflation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency and balance of payments position, Issuers in general are
subvject to varyving degrees of regulation with respect to such matters as insider rading rules, restrictions on market manipulation,
Uhnitholder prosy requirements and tinsely disclomire of informmtion. The reporting. aceeunting and auditing standards of issiers may
differ. in some cases significantly, from country o country @ important respects and less mformation from coumbry (o counbry may be
avinlable to investors m secunties of other assels. Mationalization, exprogriation o conliscatory txalion, cumency blodkage, political
changes, govemment regulation, political or social mstability or diplomatic developments could affect adversely the economy of a
coumbry or a fimd's imvestments i such country. In the event of expropriation, nationalization or other confiscation, a fumd could lose
its entire investment in the country mvelved In addition, laws in coamtries govemning business organizations, banknptcy and
insolvency may provide limited protection to security holders such as the Master Fund,

The Master Fund may trade ils securiies in a varsety of markets with many different brokers and dealers. The failure of & broker or
dealer may result in the complete loss of the Master Fund's assets on deposit with such broker or dealer depending on the regulatory
rules gowvemning such broker or dealer. In addition, brokerage commizzions in ceriain countries may be higher than in others, and
securities markets in certam countries may be less liquid, more volatile and less subject to govemmental supervision than in others,

The securitics markets of mamy countries are also relatively small, with the majonty of market capitalzation and trading volume
concentrated i a limited number of companies representing a stmall rumber of indostries, Consequently, a fund invested in equity
seonrities of companies in such countries may experience greater price volatility and significantly lower liquidity than a fund invested
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solely in equity securities of companics in countries with relatively larger sccurities markets. These smaller markets may be subject to
greater influcnce by adverse events gencrally affecting the market, and by large investors trading significant blocks of securities.
Secumities settlements may in some nstances be subject to delays and related administrative uncertainties,

Certain courdries require governmental approval prior lo investments by foreign persens or limit mvestment by foreign persons to only
a specified percentage of an ssuer's outstanding securities or a specific clags of secunities thal miry have less advamageous terms
(including pricey than securities of the compary available for purchase by nationals. These restrictions or controls mary at times limit
or prec hude mvestment in certain secunties and may increase the costs and expenses of the Master Fund. In addition, the repatriation
of investment ncome, capital, or the proceeds of sales of securties from cerain countries is controlled under regulations, ncluding in
some cases the need for certain advance govermnment notification or muthority, If deterioration occurs in a country’s balance of
pavments, the country could impose tlemporary restrictions on foreign capital remittances, The Master Fund alzo could be adversely
affiected by delayvs in, or a refusal to grant, anyv required governmental approval for repatriation, 2 well as by the application of other
restrictions on investrmend. [nvesting in local markets may require the Master Fund to adopt special procedures that may involve
additional costs to the Master Fund, These factors may affect the liquidiy of the Master Fund's investments in any country and the
Mamager/Tovestment Manager will momitor the effect of any such factor or factors on the Master Fund's investments,

Derivatives Risk

The Sub-Fund may use derivatives, which are financial contracts whose value depends on, or are derived from, the value of an
undertying asset, reference rate, or index. The ManagenInvestment Manager will sometimes use derivatives as part of a srategy
designed to reduce other nisks. Generally, however, the Sub-Fund or Master Fund may use denivatives as direct mvestments o esm
ingome, hedge currency exposure, enhance vield and brosden portfolio diversification. [n addition to othier nsks such as the credit sk
of the coumterparty, derivatives involve the risk of difficulties in pricing and vahustion and the nisk that changes n the vale of te
dertvative mary not correlate perfectly with relevant underly ing assets, rates, or ndices.

Cross-Class Liabdity Risk

The Sub-Fund may enter imo curmency derivative transactions mcluding forward foreign curmency contracts in respect of a particular
Unit Class m order to reduce exposure to the relevant Offered Currency versus the base currency of the Sub-Fund. Although the Sub-
Fumd will typically enter into forward foceign currency comtracts with only these courterparties that agree o limil ther recoiirze Lo the
particular Unit Class on behalfl of which such forward foreign currency contract was entered, given that there 15 no legal segregation of
liabilsties between the varous Unit Classes withan the Sub-Fund, there 15 a risk that, under cerlain circumstances, curency denvative
transactions in relation to a particular Designated Currency inrespect of a particular Unit Class could result in liabalities which might
affect the net asset value of the other Unit Classes of the Sub-Fund, in which case assets of the other Unit Classes of the Sub-Fund
mury beused to cover the liabilities incurred by the Unit Class,

Market Risk

Marked rigk is the potential for changes m the value of investment positions due to market changes, mcluding interest and currency
rate movenens as well a5 Muctuations in the prices of mvestment positions. Market rsk 5 directly impacted by the volatility and
liguidity of the markets in which the underly mg finamcial iretruments are traded. The Master Fund attermpts to manage market risk in
varous ways, including through diversifyimg exposures, placing imitstions on position sizes and hedging in related sccurities or
derivative financial mstruments, The ability to manage market risk may be constramed by changes in liquidity conditions, relative
prices, volatilities and correlations between myvestment positions and the instruments used to hedge such investment pesitions,

Beginning late in 2009 and continumg into 2022, the cutbreak of a novel coronavirus, which causes the disease known as COVID-19,
expanded into a global pandemic. Growing turmoil from the spread of this coronavirus, and the potential for an enduring and
significant adverse impact on global economies, have driven sharp increase in volatility across markets and a strong flight to a quality.
The Sub-Fund’s management will continue to monitor the evolving situation and its impact on the financial position of te Sub-Fund,

European Instability - Recent events in Ukraine have integjected uncertainty into the global financial markets, especially Europesan
markets, A number of coumtres, ncludmg the United States and European Urion, have imposed sanctions on Buszia and individuals
and busineszes affiliated with that country. It is possible that the Master Fund might suffer from the imposed sanctions ereating
liabilsty and compliance risks to the Master Fund. The long-tenm impact of these sanctions and the Ukrammian conflict remains unclear
and may result m a negative impact to the Mader Fund®s performance. The Master Fund did not have ecposure to Russian or
Ukrainian securitics as of September 30, 2022 or subsequent to the vear end.

Crelt Risk

Credit risk iz the risk that counterparties may Fail to fulfill their obligations or that the collateral value becomes inadequate, The Sub-
Fusud and Masgter Fund atternpt to misirmize their eredit rigk by momitoring the eredit exposure with, and the credit worthiness of,
coumterparties,
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QfF Balance Sheed Risk

The Sub-Fund and Master Fund may enter nto investment transactions which may present off-balance sheet risk. Off balance sheet
risk exists when the maximum potential loss on a particular investment is greater than the value of such investment, as reflected in the
statement of as=ets and liabilities, CiT-balance sheet rigk genverally arizes from the w=e of dervative financial instruments.

9. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 1sazed an Accounting Standards Update, AST 2020-0d, “Reference Eate
Reform {Topic 848) — Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting.” ASU 2020-04 provides optional
guidance to ease the polential accounting burden due to the discontinuation of the LIBOR and other mterbank-offered based reference
rates, ASLY 2020-04 is effective as of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 Management is curvently evaluating the impact, if
any, of applying ASU 2020-04,

10. Subsaquent Events

Mamngement has evaluated the possibility of subzequent events existing in the Sub-Fund's fmancial statements up to December 15,
2022, the date the financial satements were available 1o be issued.

From October 1, 2022 to Decomber 15, 2022, the Sub-Fund received 118, $184,830 of Unit subscriptions, paid 1.5, 31,617,167 of
Unit redemptions md paid distributions totaling U5, $151.112
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2024

52,607,816 7,762,283,251
620,749 91,591,515
51,987,068 7,670,691,883

1,438,500

950,010

4,037,910

314,220
10.97 1,619
5.36 791
11.11 1,079
8.08 785
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2023 12 Partners” capital
attributable to AllianceBernstein Unitholders 44 .49 6,564
286,609,212
2023 12 4449 6,564
2022 12 44 .65 6,588
2021 12 41.61 6,140
2020 12 41.12 6,067
2019 12 40.17 5,927
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2023 12 7,252 107
27 54
2023 12
3,100
2,810
1,340
2023 12
2023 12
( )
1992 28 23,656 92.79"
1993 22,267 6.58"
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1997 22 14,288 3.14=

1992 27 5,591 6.94*

80
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1994 25 3,119 6.93"
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12 31
2022 2021

1,130,143 166,753 1,285,700 189,705

1,511,916 1,503,554 1,522,431 224,635 1,503,957 221,909

112,226 16,559 65,897 9,723

1,881,496 277,615 2,059,842 303,930

AB 314,247 46,367 340,158 50,190
127,040 18,745 185,653 27,393

47,870 7,063 63,839 9,419

169,648 25,032 209,579 30,923

19,751 2,914 90,326 13,328

516,536 76,215 613,025 90,452

44,424 6,555 30,461 4,495

189,258 27,925 169,175 24,962

3,598,591 530,972 3,001,763 456,190

310,203 45,770 41,531 6,128

52,250 7,709 74,899 11,051

371,898 54,874 421,980 62,263

551,351 81,352 - -

179,568 26,495 262,303 38,703

11,138,931 1,643,549 10,510,088 1,550,763

389,828 57,519 265,957 39,242

- - 3,828 565

3,322,903 490,294 3,603,558 531,705

AB 162,291 23,946 94,962 14,012
247,309 36,490 38,260 5,645

173,466 25,595 219,047 32,320

427,479 63,075 490,735 72,408

55,529 8,193 87,000 12,837

415,878 61,363 369,649 54,542

990,000 146,075 755,000 111,400

107,952 15,928 _ _

6,292,635 928,478 5,927,996 874,676

14

368,656 54,395 421,169 62,143

45,985 6,785 42,850 6,323

285,979,913 271,453,043 4,648,113 685,829 4,336,211 639,808
(4,270) (630) (8.333) (1,230)
AB (95,318) (14,064) (119,470) (17,628)
(129,477) (19,104) (90, 335) (13,329)

AB 4,465,033 658,816 4,160,923 613,944
12,607 1,860 — _

4,477,640 660,676 4,160,923 613,944

11,138,931 1,643,549 10,510,088 1,550,763
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12 31

2022 2021 2020
2,971,038 438,377 3,194,524 471,352 2,595,436 382,957
416,273 61,421 452,017 66,695 459,744 67,835
607,195 89,592 652,240 96,238 529,781 78,169
123,001 18,162 38,734 5,715 50,923 7,514
(102,413) (15,111) (636) (94) (16,401) (2,420)
105,544 15,573 108,409 15,996 104,703 15,449
4,120,728 608,013 4,445,288 655,902 3,724,186 549,504
66,438 9,803 3,686 544 15,650 2,309
4,054,290 598,210 4,441,602 655,358 3,708,536 547,194
1,666,636 245,912 1,716,013 253,198 1,494,198 220,469
629,572 92,893 708,117 104,483 569,283 83,998
34,762 5,129 34,364 5,070 27,355 4,036
215,556 31,805 197,486 29,139 189,787 28,003
641,635 94,673 555,608 81,980 491,070 72,457
6,563 968 2,710 400 1,855 274
17,906 2,642 5,145 759 6,180 912
26,564 3,920 5,697 841 21,372 3,153
3,239,194 477,943 3,225,140 475,869 2,801,100 413,302
815,096 120,267 1,216,462 179,489 907,436 133,892
39,639 5,849 62,728 9,256 45,653 6,736
775,457 114,419 1,153,734 170,233 861,783 127,156
(56,356) (8,315) 5,111 754 (4,169) (615)
831,813 122,734 1,148,623 169,479 865,952 127,771
3.01 444 4.18 617 3.19 a7
3.01 444 4.18 617 3.19 471
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12 31
2022 2021 2020

) ) ( ) ( ) ) )
775,457 114,419 1,153,734 170,233 861,783 127,156
(47,208) (6,966) (7.839) (1,157) 23,882 3,524
_ — 4,458 658 (216) (32)
(47,208) (6,966) (12,297) (1,814) 24,098 3,556
1,215 179 457 67 (854) (126)
(45,993) (6,786) (11,840) (1,747) 23,244 3,430
24 4 24 4 24 4
6,922 1,021 15,743 2,323 (4,280) (632)
6,946 1,025 15,767 2,326 (4,256) (628)
(95) (14) (59) (9) (187) (28)
6,851 1,011 15,708 2,318 (4,443) (656)
(39,142) (5,775) 3,868 571 18,801 2,774
(56, 356) (8,315) 5,111 754 (4,169) (615)
792,671 116,959 1,152,491 170,050 884,753 130,545

176/315



AB

AB

AB

AB
AB

AB

AB

AB

EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12 31
2022 2021 2020
( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) )
42,850 6,323 41,776 6,164 41,225 6,083
8,318 1,227 11,486 1,695 8,660 1,278
(10,715) (1,581) (10,605) (1,565) (8,376) (1,236)
25 4 117 17 23) ®)
(385) 7 76 11 290 43
AB 5,892 869 _ _ _ _
45,985 6,785 42,850 6,323 41,776 6,164
4,336,211 639,808 4,229,485 624,061 4,174,201 615,903
823,495 121,507 1,137,137 167,785 857,292 126,493
(1,059,105) (156,271)  (1,049,287) (154,822) (828,503) (122,246)
2,521 372 11,586 1,710 (2,147) (317)
(38,286) (5,649) 7,290 1,076 28,642 4,226
AB 583,277 86,063 _ _ _ _
4,648,113 685,829 4,336,211 639,808 4,229,485 624,061
(8.333) (1,230) (8.316) (.227) (9,011) (1,330)
607 90 941 139 802 118
3,456 510 (958) (141) (107) (16)
(4,270) (630) (8.333) (1,230) (8.316) (1,227)
(119,470) (17,628) (57,219) (8.443) (76,310) (11,260)
(210,568) (31,069) (261,825) (38,632) (148,624) (21,929)
40,346 5,953 (7,348) (1,084) (28,696) (4,234)
198,783 29,330 215,484 31,795 194,840 28,749
(4,240) (626) (9,690) (1,430) 1,556 230
(169) (25) 1,128 166 15 2
(95,318) (14,064) (119,470) (17,628) (57,219) (8,443)
(90,335) (13,329) (94,203) (13,900) (113,004) (16,674)
(45,993) (6,786) (11,840) 1,747) 23,244 3,430
6,851 1,011 15,708 2,318 (4,443) (656)
(129,477) (19,104) (90,335) (13,329) (94,203) (13,900)
4,465,033 658,816 4,160,923 613,944 4,111,523 606,655
12,607 1,860 _ _ _ _
12,607 1,860 — - - _
4,477,640 660,676 4,160,923 613,944 4,111,523 606,655
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12 31
2022 2021 2020
( ) ( ) ( ) ) ( ) )
775,457 114,419 1,153,734 170,233 861,783 127,156
34,762 5,129 34,364 5,070 27,355 4,036
199,390 29,420 216,425 31,934 195,642 28,867
66,617 9,829 44,985 6,638 61,028 9,005
40,857 6,028 4,454 657 10,405 1,535
73,194 10,800 1,882 278 (854) (126)
99,861 14,734 98,773 14,574 98,798 14,578
7,400 1,092 _ - _ _
14,604 2,155 22,580 3,332 (2,914) (430)
(18,474) (2,726) 249,521 36,817 (658,612) (97,178)
35,410 5,225 (360,789) (53,234) (182,684) (26,955)
(10,331) (1,524) (27,000) (3,984) 7,597 1,121
23,295 3,437 (312,325) (46,084) 279,276 41,207
(12,113) (1,787) (45,197) (6,669) (55,125) (8,134)
(5,487) (810) (6,578) 971) 69,160 10,205
(45,432) (6,703) 38,161 5,631 7,169 1,058
110,112 16,247 214,139 31,596 861,502 127,115
(8.424) (1,243) 35,877 5,294 10,666 1,574
(150,285) (22,175) 50,545 7,458 46,885 6,918
(109,182) (16,110) (114,769) (16,934) (115,656) (17,065)
1,121,231 165,438 1,298,782 191,635 1,521,421 224,486
_ _ _ _ (4,079) (602)
(62,308) (9,194) (61,931) (9,138) (41,504) (6,124)
40,282 5,944 (3,793) (560) (13,552) (2,000)
(22,026) (3,250) (65,724) (9,698) (59, 135) (8,725)
235,000 34,674 80,000 11,804 115,000 16,968
(25,411) (3.749) 16,192 2,389 (12,633) (1,864)
(1,069,820) (157,852)  (1,059,892)  (156,387) (836,879) (123,481)
3,843 567 313,699 46,286 (219,033) (32,318)
1,590 235 (2,346) (346) (867) (128)
AB
AB
178 26 3,402 502 147 22
AB D) (210,568) (31,069) (261,825) (38,632) (148,624) (21,929)
(42,661) (6,295) _ _ _ ~
(2,131) (314) (2,186) (323) 306 45
(1,109,980) (163,778) (912,956)  (134,707)  (1,102,583) (162,686)
(56,234) (8,297) (17,982) (2,653) 23,032 3,398
(67,009) (9,887) 302,120 44,578 382,735 56,473
1,376,026 203,033 1,073,906 158,455 691,171 101,982
1,309,017 193,145 1,376,026 203,033 1,073,906 158,455
78,434 11,573 5,263 777 18,858 2,782
55,473 8,185 55,656 8,212 59,791 8,822
2022 2021 2020
4,080 280
60 1,085,141 160,113 13,235 1,953 18,389 2,713
5,072 748 - - _ _
296,750 43,785 1,642 242 437 64
13,191 1,946 - - _ _
231,385 34,141 7,800 1,151 4,400 649
589,169 86,932 - - _ _
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2022 12 31 EQH
AB
3.5 EQH
AB AB
AB
100,000 AB
2022 12 31
AB
EQH 59.9
AB 39.4
0.7
100.0
AB AB
EQH 2022 12 31 AB 61.3
2.
GAAP
AB AB
VIE VOE
2022
AB
AB

ASC 606

AUM

AUM
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AUM
AB
AUM
2022 4 AB EURONEXT - SCGLY SocGen
BRS
24
2
12b-1
12b-1
30
NAV 12b-1
NAV
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NAV
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2022 12 31

(i)
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VOE VOE
VIE VOE
2022 2021 12 31 2 6,710
2,340
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
1 1,490 2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31

AB

AB

AB
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100%

AB
2022 7 1 AB
100% AB
AB
2022 11 22 AB SocGen
BRS
1 5,980
€Y @
24
2022 12 31
6 6,610 2000
9,190 1 5,980
1 1 9 30
1
2022 9 30
2022 4 AB SocGen
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30 90
360
24
AB
2022 3
AB AB
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2022 2021
560 100
6 2 2,890
9 24 2022
2021 2020 4 60
140 2016
24
5 20
5 10 3 300
24
2022 12 31 3 1,020
2 9,500
1,520
2021 12 31 4,150
2,630
1,520
2022 12 31 3 2,790 2021 12 31
5,380 2022 12 31 3,290 2021 12 31 2,750
2022 2,660 2021 570 2020 2,140 1 3
4,700 4 4,600 5 2,500
2022 4 2014 CPH
560 2021 2020 4 2016

100 150
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1
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250,000
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2022 2021
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(vi)
5 5,140
50
100,000
100
2020
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AB
AB 3
AB
AB
AB
AB
2022 2021 12 31
AB
AB
AB
AB
)]
1934
18 AB
AB
2022 4
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2022
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340
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10 AB

20

AB

AB

AB

AB

AB

470

340

AB

AB

380

EDINETOOOO

o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AB
AB
AB
AB
AB
AB
AB AB
AB AB
AB AB
AB
12 31
2022 2021
5.2 5.6
211.8 262.3
2.3 2.6
1 92.7 117.9
10b5-1 10b-
SEC
AB
AB 12
2021
12 2021
AB
5,774
AB
AB
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AB AB

2023 2 8
2022 12 31
1
2023 2 21

2022 2021
3.87

Us$
2022 2021 2020
330
AB
AB
AB 1 0.77
3
1
2023 3 16
2020
3.86 3.08
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1,020
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SEC
3.
2022 2021 2020 12 31
12 31
2022 2021 2020
2,825,791 2,949,405 2,462,810
145,247 245,119 132,626
416,273 452,017 459,744
290,740 350,674 331,268
12b-1 69,041 83,920 75,973
247,414 217,646 122,540
86,661 90,225 82,317
18,120 16,034 21,240
4,099,287 4,405,040 3,688,518
56,653 35,048 35,273
(102,413) (636) (16,401)
763 2,150 1,146
(44,997) 36,562 20,018
4,054,290 4,441,602 3,708,536
4.
99
99
12 31
2022 2021 2020
AB 831,813 1,148,623 865,952
273,943 271,729 269,058
AB
1 11 27
273,944 271,740 269,085
AB 3.01 4.18 3.19
AB 3.01 4.18 3.19
12 31
2022 2021 2020
- - 29,056
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5.
2022 2021 12 31 15¢3-3 15
6.
12 31
2022 2021
21,055 32,237
138,012 133,992
1 - 18,243
1 - 1,893
26,815 31,602
15,711 19,318
7,750 21,024
8,175 15,109
217,518 273,418
@ 2022 12 31
24
2022 2021 12 31 4,790
6,380
2009
AB
VIE
VOE
15
2022 2021 12 31 960
7,900
2022 2021 12 31 ASC 321-10
12 31
2022 2021

(23,855) 19,240
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17,960 23,697
(41,815) (4,457)
ASC 815-10
2022 2021 12 31
154,687 1,768 162 19,994
34,597 4,446 5,047 1,965
16,847 386 262 70
225,671 17,507 7,302 (1,000)
28,742 605 933 14,828
50,000 - 6 5,211
510,544 24,712 13,712 41,068
131,876 392 1,186 (5,072)
66,058 7,344 6,980 1,746
13,483 497 833 (316)
155,757 6,594 6,967 (2,914)
63,817 595 527 (6,433)
50,000 - 430 (309)
480,991 15,422 16,923 (13,298)
2022 2021 12 31
840 290
1SDA

1SDA

193/315
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AUM
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560
24
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15
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
1 62,063 - 62,063 (62,058) - 5
24,712 - 24,712 - (8,361) 16,351
1 _ _ - - - -
2021 12 31
19,899 - 19,899 (18,327) - 1,572
15,422 - 15,422 - (2,872) 12,550
1,893 - 1,893 - - 1,893
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
1 272,580 - 272,580 (267,053) 5,527
13,712 - 13,712 - (4,158) 9,554
1 _ _ - - - -
2021 12 31
23,911 - 23,911 (23,373) - 538
16,923 - 16,923 - (5,572) 11,351
2,774 - 2,774 - - 2,774

@) 2022 12 31
24
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15
NAV
2
95,521 - - - - 95,521
- 1,521,705 - - - 1,521,705
1,768 22,944 - - - 24,712
129,655 27,799 129 1,484 - 159,067
- - - - 42,526 42,526
- - - - 7,750 7,750
6,689 - - - 1,486 8,175
136,344 27,799 129 1,484 51,762 217,518
233,633 1,572,448 129 1,484 51,762 1,859,456
162 13,550 - - - 13,712
- - 247,309 - - 247,309
162 13,550 247,309 - - 261,021
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NAV
2
2021 12 31
151,156 - - - - 151,156
- 1,503,828 - - - 1,503,828
392 15,030 - - - 15,422
144,917 39,284 126 145 - 184,472
1,893 - - - - 1,893
3 - - - - 50,920 50,920
4 - - - - 21,024 21,024
9,094 - - - 6,015 15,109
155,904 39,284 126 145 77,959 273,418
307,452 1,558,142 126 145 77,959 1,943,824
1,054 - - - - 1,054
2,774 - - - - 2,774
1,186 15,737 - - - 16,923
- - 38,260 - - 38,260
5,014 15,737 38,260 - - 59,011
@ 2022 12 31
24
@) NAV
(3) GAAP
4) GAAP
1
2022 2021 12 31 670 910
(1) 2022
2021 12 31 30 (ii)GAAP 2022
3 2021 12 31 290
(iii) GAAP 2022 2021 12 31
120 280
[ ]
o 15c3-3
o NAV
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2022 12 31
AUM
12 31
2022 2021
126 125
3 1
129 126
12 31
2022 2021
38,260 27,750
231,385 7,800
6,563 3,310
- (600)
(28,899) -
247,309 38,260
2 2,890 24
0 6 5,000 2027 12 31 6
14.1
4.2
2.0 83.9
AUM
10.4 4.5
2.0 83.9 11.9
AUM
7.0
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11.
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2023
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2020 12 31
3,970 3,880

12 31

2020 12 31
CDSC
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12 31
2022 2021
605,567 584,161
323,982 301,036
929,549 885,197
(740,291) (716,022)
189,258 169,175
12 31
2022 2021
172,181 177,233
(66,184) (53,976)
(53,747) (48,358)
52,250 74,899
3,480 3,440
2022 12 31
28,683
17,848
5,309
410
52,250




12.
AB 8
2026 10 13
AB
SCB LLC
SCB LLC
2022 12 31
AB
2022 2021 12 31
EQH
AB EQH EQH
EQH 2024 11 AB
EQH AB
EQH AB
EQH
EQH
EQH
2022 2021 12 31 AB  EQH 4.3
5,500 2022 2021  EQH
6 5,520 4 460 1.7%
EQH
EQH AB  EQH
EQH 2024 9 1
EQH
EQH EQH
2022 12 31 EQH
2022 EQH 1
4.3% 2021
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AB

2
AB
c
AB SCB LLC
AB
/
2022 2021
EQH
AB
0.2% 9 7
1
0.2%
EQH
4.3% 9,000
70
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2021 12 31
2022 2021 1
1 8,990 1 5,700 1.5% 0.2%
2
2021 11 16 2021 1 1,330
1.1%
5 4 3 1,500
AB
AB SCBLLC 2022 2021
SCBLLC 2022 2021
140 47,000 3.7%
15
100
2021 12 31
2002 12 31 2021 12 31
360,092 414,105
415,539 482,781
18,116 10,947
(6,310) (3,072)
11,806 7,875

11,940 7,954
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

97,198 97,466

3,860 2,355

200 107

4,060 2,462

40,552 39,827

(34,420) (37,317)

107,390 102,438

97,489 4,169 101,658

104,596 3,258 107,854

37,319 2,828 40,147

35,808 1,810 37,618

32,821 324 33,145

146,319 - 146,319

454,352 12,389 466,741
(38,813) (449)
415,539 11,940

166,000 2024

7.35
3.47

2.69%
2.10%
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14.

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
)
38,875 82,379
7,791 7,782
@)
13
IT 2022 12 31
2023 107.6 (31.9) 75.7
2024 108.9 (30.9) 78.0
2025 58.3 - 58.3
2026 55.7 - 55.7
2027 51.3 - 51.3
2028 487.7 - 487.7
869.5 (62.8) 806.7
13
2022 12 14
4 AB
2016 12 14
1974
ERISA

AB

AB
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2,240
1

2022 12 31

AB AB

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
19,751 90,326
516,536 613,025
44,424 30,461
580,711 733,812
55,529 87,000
368,656 421,169
156,526 225,643
580,711 733,812
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
129,706 386,830 - 516,536
1,529 6,023 - 7,552
131,235 392,853 - 524,088
14,932 6,608 - 21,540
14,932 6,608 - 21,540
2021 12 31
165,415 444,253 3,357 613,025
622 5,265 - 5,887
166,037 449,518 3,357 618,912
16,291 2,051 - 18,342
16,291 2,051 - 18,342
12 31
2022 2021
3,357 619
(3,351) (717)
®) (205)
248 3,675
(248) G}
- 3
- 11)
- 3,357
2022 2021 12 31 VIE 1,400 1,250
2022 2021 12 31
940 70
2022 2021 12 31 VIE 270

90
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2022 2021 12 31 VIE 540
180 VIE

2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31

7,552 - 7,552 - (2,731) 4,821
2021 12 31

5,887 - 5,887 - (904) 4,983
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31

21,540 - 21,540 - (5,444) 16,096
2021 12 31

18,342 - 18,342 - (1,824) 16,518

VIE
2022 12 31 VIE 464
VIE 570 VIE
5,420 2021 12 31 VIE 689
VIE 880 VIE
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SEC SCB LLC
100 2%
2022 12 31 SCB LLC 3 2,310 3,820
2 8,490 SCB LLC SEC
2022 12 31
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5,100
ABI
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2022 2021 2020
1,020 980
12 31
2022 2021
141,862 151,124
3,958 3,794
(4,524) (5,803)
(37,839) (4,447)
(2,977) (2,806)
100,480 141,862
130,939 125,022
(27,448) 14,526
(4,524) (5,803)
(2,977) (2,806)
95,990 130,939
(4,490) (10,923)
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2022 2021 2020
2022 2021 2020
6,519 15,858 (4,089)
24 24 24
6,543 15,882 (4,065)
(33) 87 (216)
6,510 15,795 (4,281)
2022 650 3,870
170 100
3,400 50
40
2021 1,580
820 560 200
150 100 20
2020 430 1,670
1,040 100
140 40
AB AB
2022
ocl
ocl
( )
6,519 107 296 6,922
24 - - 24
6,543 107 296 6,946
(33) - (62) (99)
6,510 107 234 6,851
2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
( )
(37,249) (43,768)
(659) (683)
(37,908) (44,451)
177 210
(37,731) (44,241)
27.9

24,000 100
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2022 2021 12 31 1 50 1 4,190
2022 2021 12 31 5.50%
2.90%
2023 10,121
2024 6,767
2025 8,058
2026 7,865
2027 8,743
2028 2032 38,404
12 31
2022 2021 2020
3,958 3,794 4,443
(6,591) (6,351) (6,084)
24 24 24
1,678 2,024 -
1,042 1,447 1,386
111 938 (231)
12 31
2022 2021 2020
2.90% 2.55% 3.35%
5.25% 5.25% 5.50%
5.25
2022 12 31 MP-2021 2021
2021 MP-2020
Pri-2012
IRS 2022
2023 IRS
2006 RP-2014 MP-2021 2023
12 31
2022 2021
46% 52%
42 38
12 10
100% 100%
10 35% 24%

15 40% 27% 5 35% 10% 10 35%
211/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21% 5 35% 18%
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
1,441 - - 1,441
STRIPS - 15,634 - 15,634
2,149 - - 2,149
- 22,478 - 22,478
26,074 - - 26,074
10,928 219 - 11,147
40,592 38,331 - 78,923
- - - 17,067
40,592 38,331 - 95,990
2021 12 31
47 - - 47
STRIPS - 32,355 - 32,355
17,477 - - 17,477
43,786 - - 43,786
14,801 - - 14,801
76,111 32,355 - 108,466
- - - 22,473
76,111 32,355 - 130,939
2022 2021
o STRIPS
o 2022 2021
2022 2021
2021

o 2022 2021
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° u.S
10
[ ]
o 2022 2021 2
/
19.
2022 2021 2020 1 6,430 1
8,410 1 7,740 2022 2021 2020 12 31
1 6,010 1 7,340 1 7,680
2017 30 2017 29 AB
2017 AB 2017 2017
i AB AB
AB ii AB
iii AB AB
2017
i ii
i AB
iv AB
AB 2017 2027 30
2017 2017 AB
6,000 3,000 AB
2022 12 31 AB 29,795,964 AB
2017 2017 9 30
2010 AB
2022 12 31 30,204,036 AB
2017 AB
2021 12 31 AB 28,109,084 AB
2017 2017 9 30
2010 AB
2021 12 31 31,890,916 AB

2017 AB
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2022 2021 2020 AB
AB 20
AB 33.3
2022
AB
2021 12 31 5,774 20.12 0.33
(5,774) 20.12
2022 12 31 - - - -
2022 12 31 - - - -
2022 12 31
2022 2021 2020 20 220
32,368
2022 2021
2020 2022 12 31
AB
2022 2021 2020 AB
AB
3 2021 4 )
AB
2022 2021 2020
30,870 35,358 50,232
38.55 44 .29 23.69
1.2 1.6 1.2
2017 4 28
AB 2021 12 31
AB
2021 2020 12 31 30 90
2022 420 2022 12
AB 380 2021
AB 40 AB
38.84 50.94
2021 350 2021 12 AB
330 2020 AB
20 AB 1 32.10 50.94
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2020 530 2020 12 AB
500 2019 AB
30 AB 1 28.75 32.10
2020 AB
4 12 1 25% 2021
3 12 1 33.3%
AB
10
2022 2021 2020
0.5 3.4 0.4
$34.86 - $49.90  $29.06 - $53.86  $18.80 - $35.42
35.0 40.9 32.1
AB
AB 2022
AB
AB
2021 12 31 18,130,740 33.98
4,709,600 40.31
(7,671,109) 32.10
(396,995) 36.15
2022 12 31 14,772,236 36.92
2022 2021 2020 AB
2 4,620 1 9,900 1 5,500 2022 12 31
AB 14,772,236
10,148,408
4,623,828 2022 12 31 AB
1 1,400

6.1
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20.
2022 2021 12 31 AB
2022 2021
271,453,043 270,509,658
5,774 143,211
1 17,326,222 3,917,437
2 (2,805,126) (3,117,263)
12 31 285,979,913 271,453,043
() 15,321,535
@) 2022 2021 2,500 5,400 AB
21.
AB
AB 4.0 UBT
AB
AB AB
AB AB EQH
EQH
1 AB
AB AB
AB AB
AB
AB AB
12 31
2022 2021 2020
689,278 1,007,847 743,687
125,818 208,615 163,749
815,096 1,216,462 907,436
UBT 5,996 6,951 3,356
1,457 750 1,495
931 956 904
34,327 58,080 44,086
42,711 66,737 49,841
(3,072) (4,009) (4,188)
39,639 62,728 45,653
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UBT

2017
ASC 740

UBT

2022 2021

2021
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2022 2021

2018
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12 31
2022 2021 2020

32,604 4.0 % 48,659 4.0% 36,297 4.0 %

1,460 0.2 1,322 0.2 2,025 0.2

32,664 4.0 43,019 3.5 33,969 3.7

i} i} - - (1,886) (0.2)

(98) - 23 - 8 -

1,089 0.1 1,003 0.1 (887) (0.1)

(1,535) (0.2) 1,492 0.1 3 -

- - - - (221) -

5,366 0.7 1,799 0.1 2,654 0.3

(5.275) (0.6) - - i} _

(26,636) (3.3)  (34,589) (2.8)  (26,309) (2.9)
39,639 4.9% 62,728 5.2% 45,653 5.0%

12 31
2022 2021 2020

2,838 2,838 5,706

i} - (2,868)

2,838 2,838 2,838

2020 12 31
2022
2020
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
2017 2019 AB UBT
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2022 12 31 12 280
12 31
2022 2021

4,918 7,833

17,524 24,468

10,286 5,523

3,071 3,942

4,911 5,327

26,479 -

6,171 -

6,860 4,917

80,220 52,010

(38,110) (3.828)

42,110 48,182

10,190 7,622

- 4,084

4,191 4,490

2,808 2,075

17,189 18,271

24,921 29,911

2022 12 31 3,810
2021 12 31 380
NOL
2022 2021 12 31 NOL 3,030
5,510 5
2022 12 31 2,960

620
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2022 2021
12 31
2022 2021 2020
659,983 587,017 512,914
2,000,908 2,223,829 1,811,948
1,004,003 1,126,142 882,672
416,273 452,017 459,744
39,561 56,283 56,908
4,120,728 4,445,288 3,724,186
66,438 3,686 15,650
4,054,290 4,441,602 3,708,536
2022 2021 2020
2,381,958 2,558,592 2,106,636
1,672,332 1,883,010 1,601,900
4,054,290 4,441,602 3,708,536
4,067,991 3,331,572
72,466 45,796
4,140,457 3,377,368

219/315
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23.
12 31
2022 2021 2020
1,452,885 1,644,757 1,368,484
590,580 637,076 516,336
79,167 85,745 79,394
8,366 8,364 8,314
- 2 3
2,130,998 2,375,944 1,972,531
EQH
EQH EQH
EQH EQH
EQH
12
12 31 EQH
EQH
2022 2021 2020

148,377 133,074 115,901
688 675 1,330
149,065 133,749 117,231
3,897 4,550 3,952
2,882 2,373 2,281
14,069 3,953 5,463
20,848 10,876 11,696

7,732 8,607

385 545

EQH (4,206) (1,534)

EQH (990,000) (755,000)

(986,080)  (747,382)
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2022 2021 12 31
770 1,120
24.
2022 7 1 AB 100%
122 2022 7 1 AB
100% AB AB
AB AB 320
1,210 4 5,640 2022 11 1
2022 7 1 2022 3
AB AB 100% AB
2027 12 31 6 AB
2,890 AB
AB
1 5,610
510
5

3 300

221/315

EDINETOOOO

o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AB

AB

1 3,280
2022 11 1
10- Q

1,530

AB
AB

6 6,610
10

AUM

AB

5 8,920
AB

4,080
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2022 4

AB 589,169
228,885
818,054

40,777
82,523
947
2,464
16,482
10,600
5,073
303,000
666,130
1,127,996

(17,793)
(219,726)
(42,661)
(16,571)
(13,191)
(309,942)

818,054

2022

2022 11 22 AB SocGen

2023 AB 49% SocGen 51%
5 100% AB

740
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2022 12 31

159,123

44,717
29,243
22,988
24,507

4,128
107,764
1,552
4,903

159,826
(7,400)

551,351

32,983
10,232
50,884
13,853
107,952

2022 12 31
1 5,910
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Partll

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

ears Ended December 31

I
{in thousands,
wcepl il amoantil
ASSETS
Cagh and cash equivilents 5 g 1,285,700
Cash and securilies segregabed at fair value (cost 51.511.916 and 51.503.554) 1503957
Receivables, net
Brokers and dealers B5.897
Brokerage dienls 1 2058642
AB funds Tees 340,158
Crihar fees 185,653
Investrments
Lonig-term incentive compensation-relaled ] 63830
Orihar 169 545 208,579
Assels of consciidated company-sponscred imeestiment funds:
Cash and cash equivalents 19,754 90,326
Irvggimients 516,53 613025
Other assels dad 424 30,461
Furmiture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net 169,175
Gaodwll 3081, 763
Intargitie assels. net 41,531
Defisted sales commissions, net 74,859
Right-of-use assets 421 880
Assets held Tor sale =
Oher assets 2230
Total assets 5 § 1050088

224/315
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Tatiw of Contants
Par Il
Years Ended December 14
{in thewsands,
eacept Wil amounts)
LIABILITMIES, REDEEMAELE NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST AND CAPITAL
Liabiities:
Payables
Brokors and deslers 5 Je9.828 % 285957
Securites sobd mol yel purchased B3
Brokarage dients 3322803 3.803,558
AB mutual funds 1 94,062
Contingent consideration lisbility 38,2680
Accounts payable and socnued expenses 219047
Leass liabidites 490,735
Liabikities of consalidaled company-sponsored investmeant funds 7,000
Accrued compensation and benefits 369649
Dbt 755,000
Liabilities hedd for sale 107 952 -
Total liakilities 6,252 835 5,927,098
Comiritments and contingendes [See Nole 14)
Redaernable non-controlling indenest of consclidated entities TER 56 421169
Capital:
General Paniner 45,985 42,650
Lirmited panners: 285,978,913 and 271,453,043 units is50ed and culstanding 4548113 433821
Receivables from affiliates 2700 {8.333)
AB Helding Unsts held Tor long-berm incentive compensaton plans. [119.470)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {80.335)
Partners’ capital attributable to AB Unitholders 4485033 4,160,823
Mon-redeemable non-contnalling interests in consolidated entities 12607 -_
Total capital 4477 840 4,180,823
Total liabilities, non-controlling interest and capital § 11438831 § 10510088

Sea Accompamying Mabes to Consolidated Finandal Statements

&2 AllianceBermsiein
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Tabie of Contants

Partll

AllianceBernstein L.P. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31

{in thowsands, xcept per unit amounts )

Revenues.
Irvestrment advisory and services fees 5 5 31845M 5 259543
Bermstein research services 452017 450,744
Disfribution revenues G52 240 529,781
Dividend and inlerast income BT 50,923
Irverstment (losses | (636} {16.401)
Orther revenues 108,409 104,703
Tatal revenues 4,445 788 3 T24185
Less; interes! expense 3,656 15,650
el revenues 4.0 4,441 802 3,708,538
Expenses:
Erployes compensation and benelils 1,656,626 1,716,013 1,494,158
Fromoticn and senddng
DCaswrbution-redated payments TR 117 569,283
Amorsization of defermed sales commisRons 84 27,355
Trade execution, marketing, TAE and other 197 485 189, 7E7
General and adminisiative 555,808 491,070
Contingent payment amangements 2710 1,655
Interest on bomowings 5.145 G180
Amoriizaton of infangible assets 26,584 5,697 1,372
Tolal expenses 3230, 154 3.225.140 2.801,100
Crperating income 815,086 1,216,462 07 A
Income tax 38,629 E2.728 45683
Neat income TTEAST 1153734 851,783
het [loss) income of consolidale] entities attnbutable (o non-contnglling nlerests (56,355} 5mM {4, 183)
Met income attributable 1o AB Unitholders 5 B8l 5 1143623 8 855952
Nirt income par AB Unit:
Bagic 5 i 5 418 8 319
Diiluted 5 amm 5 418 5 318
See Accomparrying Mates to Conschdated Finandal Statements
2077 Anrual Repost 63
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Tabie of Contants

Part I

AllianceBernstein L.P. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

{in thousands)
Net income ] TEAST 85 11537 S5 851, T3
Ofher comprefsensive inCome:
Forsign cumency transiation adpesiments, bifors reclassification and tax (47, 208) (7,835} 23,882
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) induded in net income upon liquedation - 4458 {216)
Forgign cumency transiation adusiments. before lax (47 308) | 12,287} 24058
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,215 457 {854]
Foredgn cumency transiation adsiments, ned of fax [45 993) {11,840} 23,244
Changes in empityes benefit related ifems:
AmOMEaon of pror Sendoe oost 24 24 24
Recognized acluanial gain [loss) B,92] 15.743 (4280}
Chaenges in employes benedt related lems 6.546 15,767 {4.256)
Income tax {expense) {351 1520 (187}
Employes benelit related items. net of tax 8,851 15,708 (4,443}
Ofhir comprehersive (1055} gain [39.142) 3868 18.801
Less: Comprehensivi (1055) inoome in consolidated entities atiibutable to non-coniraling
mnlerests |56.356) 5111 {4.1849)
Comprohansive income attributable to AR Unitholders 3 TILET 5 115040 5 B TE
See Accompanying Mates to Consclidated Finandal Stalements
B4 AllianceBemstein
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Tatiw of Contants
Partll
AllianceBernstein L.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partners’ Capital
Years Ended December 1
I I T
fin thousands)
General Partner's Capital
Balancae, beginning of year H 42850 % MTTE § 41,225
Ml income 3,318 11,486 8660
Cash distributions to General Partner (10,7153 {10.605) (8376}
Long-term incentive compensation plans acivly 25 17 {23}
{Retirerment) issuance of AB Lnits, net | 385) 76 200
Issuance of AB Units for Caral acquisiion 5,80 — —
Balance, end of year 45,985 42,850 41,778
Limited Parnors' Capital
Balance, baginning of year 4,338,211 4,233,485 4,174,201
Het income -] 1137437 B57.292
Cash distnbutions b Unisholders (1,048, 287) (828.503)
Long-term incentive compensation plans acthity 11,566 {2147}
(Retirerment) issuance of AR Lirits. ned 7.290 28642
Issuancd of AB Linits for Carvial acquisition BE3.277 - -
Balanca, end of yoar 4,648,113 4,336,211 4,229,485
Receivablea from Afflliatas
Balanca, beginning of year (8.333) (B, 316) 19,011}
Long-term incenthve compensation avwards expendgs BOT 41 anz
Capital contributions from (o) AB Helding 3.456 (958) (107}
Balarca, snd of year (4.270) (B,333) [B.316)
AB Holding Units held for Long-tarm | neentive Compensation Plans
Balanca, beginning of year (118.470) (57,219) {TE.310)
Purchases of AB Holding Linits 1o fund long-ténm compensabon plans, net {210 528} (261,825) (148,624}
Refrement (Issuance) of AB Urits, ned 356 {7, 348) (28,606)
Loong-term incentive compensation awands sxpense 215,484 194,840
Re-valuaion of AB Holding Units hedd in rabbs trust {9,650 1,556
bt 1,128 15
Balance, snd of year (115,470) (57,219)
Accumulated Other Comprahensive (Loss)
Balance, beginning of year i@ |84, 2003 (113,004}
Foreign currency franslation adjusiment, net of tax 4 {11.540) 23244
Chisnges in employes beneht related items, nel of fax 5.851 16.708 (4.443)
Balance, end of year {128477) (90,235) (54, 200)
Total Partners” Capital atfributable to AB Unitholders 4 485032 4,160,923 4,111,523
Hoenvedesmabla Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Entitles
Balance, beginning of year - = —
Cariiel acquisiion 12,507 - -
Balanca, and of yaar 12,6807 _ -
Tatal Capital ¥ 4A7T 8B40 3 4,160,923 ] 4,111,523

See Accompanying Mates 1o Consoldated Finencial Statements

&5 AllianceBermitein
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Tatiw of Confants
Partll
AllianceBernstein L.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Wears Ended December 31
T
§in thousamds)
Cash flows from operating activities
Mt income 5 Tr5457 3 11537Tm 0§ 861,783
Adustments 1o meooncle ned income o nel cash provided by operating activites:
Amorfization of deferred sales commissions 24,782 34,364 27355
MNon-cash long-term incenive compensalion expense 216425 195,642
Depreciation and ofher amorizetion 44,955 61,028
Unrealized losses on imestments 4,454 10,4065
Unrealized losses (gains) on invesiments of consolidated company-sponsoned
inrEsment funds 1,882 {1854)
MNon-cash lease expense 98,773 48 78
Loss om assels held for sale — —
Chwr, ro 2580 {2814)
Changes in assets and liatlites:
(Increshge) decraass in Secunbes, segregaled 18,474 249521 {E58.812)
Decrease (increase) in receivables 5410 {360.789) {182, 684)
(Incresase) decrease in investmenis (27000 75087
Decrease (increase ) i investments. of consclidated company-sponscoed imesiment
Tunds 23295 (312.325) 270276
(increase) in defemed sales commissions (12,113 [&5,197) (55,125)
(Increase) decrease in other assets (5,487 ) [6.578) B9, 160
(Incresse) decrease in other assets and lishilities of consdidated company-sponsoned
invesiment funds, ned 45,8025 38,161 7,169
Increase in payables 110,112 214138 861,502
(Decrease ) increase i aocounts payable and socnsed expenses [8.424) 35877 10666
[Decrease) incrisise in sccnaed compensation and benefits 150.285) 50,545 46 845
Cash payments 1o refieve operating leass liabilites {109, 152) {114,7649) {115.656)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,121,231 1,288,782 1,521,421
Cash lows from investing activiles
Purchases of equity method investments — {4.073)
Purcheses of fumiture, equiprment and leasehold improvements (62.308) [61.8931) (41,504)
Acquisition of businesses, nef of cash acquired 40, 282 (2.793) (13,552)
Net cash usad in investing activities {22.026) (65 T24) {59,138)
Cash Nows from financing actihilies.
Procedds from deb!, net 235000 20,000 115000
{Decreasa | increase in overdrafis payable 25,411) 16,192 {12633)
Disiributions to Genersl Partner and Unitholders (1,055 832) (836.879)
Subscriptions [redemptions ) of non-controling interests of consolidated company-
sponsored investment funds, et 3 B43 213,689 {219.033)
Capital contributions from (o) afilates 1,580 [2.348) (BET)
Addiional irmvestments by AR Holding with procisds from euercise of compensatany
oplions fo buy AB Holding Liniis: 178 3,402 147
Purehases of AR Holding Uinits to fund long-lem incentive compensation plan swands,
it 210.568) (261 825) (148,624)
Penyrnent of goquision-refated debt obligation (42661 ) — —
Otheer, ned (2131 (2.186) 06
Nut cash used in financing activities (1,109,980} {912,858) (1,102,583}
Effect of exchange rale changés on cash and cash equivalents 56.23) (17882 23032
Net {decraase) increase in cash and cash equivalents (67,008 302,120 382,TIS
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of the perdod 1,376,026 1,073,906 531,171
Cash and cash eqguivalents as of end of the period § 13807 0§ 13TE02E 1,073,008
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Cash paid:
| ) H TE434 § 5283 S 18658
n el 55473 55,656 SaT

Non-cash investing activities:
Fair vakee of assels acquired {exduding cash acquired of 540.8 milkon, 52 & milkon and

0.8 million, for 2022, 2021 and 2020, respecively) 13.235 18.389
Fair vaiue of deferred tax asse! recorded = —
Fair valee of kabilities assumed 1,642 437
Fir visiuntr of non-fedesmmable non-confroling intéres! recanded — —
MNon-cash financing activities:

Payables reconded under contingent payment amangements 251,335 7.800 4 400

Equity consideration issued in connection with acquisition 588 169 — —

Sea Accomparying Mates to Consolidated Finendal Statements

AllianceBemsiein
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Partll

AllianceBernstein L.P. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The words “we’ and “our” refer coliectively fo AllanceBemstain L P and fis subsidianes “AB’), or lo their officers and empiopess. Simfary, the wond
‘compamny” refers to AB. Cross-references are in Jlalics

1. Business Description and Organization
Wi provide diversified irvestment management. research and refated sendoes globaly o a broad range of dients Cur principl sendors indude:

= Institwtional Sarvices—sendicng our institutional dients, induding private and public pension plans. foundations and endowments, Insurance companies,
céntral banks and governments worldwide, and affiliales sech as Equitable Holdings. Inc. ("EQH") and its subsidianes. by means of separately managed
Bocounts, sul-advisory refationships, structured products, collective imvestment trusts, mubual funds, hedge funds and other investment vehides.

Retail Services—senvicing cur retail clients, primanity by means of retsl mutusl funds sponscred by AB or an afifisied company, sub-advisery

refationships with mutual lunds sponsored by Tind paries, separately managed actount programs sporsored by finandal inemedianes worldwide and
other investment vehicles.

Private Wealth Managemant Services—seniang our prvase dients, induding high-nel-worth indnidusals and Tamilies, nests and estates, chantable
foundations, parnerships, private and famidy coporaions, and other entibes, by means of separately managed accoents, hedge funds, mutug funds and
other investment vahicles.

Bornstein Ressarch Services—serddng instiutional investors, such as pension Tund, hedge Tund and mutual fund managers, seeking high-guakty
fundamental research, quantitative services and brokerage-related services in equities and Ested cplions.
Wiz also provide dsinbution, shareholder sedvicing, ansher agency Senices and adminisiralive senvices Lo the mutual Tunds We Sponsor

Cur high-quality, in-depth research is Twe foundation of our asset managerent and private wealth management businessas. Our reseanch disciplines indude
economic, fundamental equity, fived income and quantitalive research. In addition, we have expedise in muli-asset strategies, wealth management,
ervdronmental. $ocal and corporate govirmancs (TESGT), and allemaive investmnis

Wi provide a broad range of invesiment senices with expertise in:

* Actively managed equity stralegles across global and regional universes, as well as cepitalizaton ranges, concentration ranges and investment
strategies, induding walue, growlh and core equities;

* Actively managed raditional and uneonstrained fixed income stratégies, including taxable and tex-exempl sirateges;

+ Actively managed altemative investments, indluding hedge funds. fund of funds and direct assets (e.g., dinect lending. real estate and private equity)

« Potfelios with Purpose, induding sctvely managed, impactfocused snd Responsbli+ (chmate-conscous, S0 leaders, change catalysts) equily, fxed
ifctene and mulli-asset siralegies that acddress our dients eveiving need 1 ifvest heir cagital with purpase while purswing Sirang investment refums,

= Multi-asse! services and solutions, induding dynamic asse! alocalion, customized tangel-date funds and targelrisk funds. and
= Eome passive menagement, including index, ESG index and enfanced index siralegies.

2022 Anrual Repord B
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Part I

Organization

A% of December 31, 2022, EOH owned approvimately 25% of e issued and cutstanding unils representing assignments of beneficial ownership of lmited
parinership interests in AllanceBamstan Holding LF. ("AB Holding Unita”). AlkanceBemsiein Corporation {en indirect wholty-cwned subsidiary of EQH,
“General Pariner’) is the general pariner of both AlllanceBemstein Holding L.P. ("AB Holding”) and AB. AllianceBemstein Corporafion owns 100,000
genenal parinership units in AB Holdng and a 1% geneml parnership interest in AB. As of December 31, 2022 the cwnership strectune of AB, induding
Ernited parinership units cutstanding as well as the general pariner's 19 inberest. was as folows:

EQH and its subSdianes 53.9%

AB Holding 9.4

UnaMliabed holders 0.7
100.0 %

Including tofh thee general partnership and limited parnership interests in AB Holding and AB. EQH and its subsidiaries had an approdmate §1.3%
ELonGmIc interest in AB a3 of December 29, 2022,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Thir consclidated financal statements have been prepaned in accordance with accounting princples generslly accepied in the Unibed Stales of Amedca
("US GAAP"). The preparation of the consolidated financial stalements requines management 10 make céran estimales and assumpions il affect the
reporied amounts of assets and lablities and disdosure of contingent assets and liabilites at the dates of the consolidated financial staternents and he
reporied amounts of revenues and expensas during the reporing perods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated fnancial staternents include AB and its majodity-camed andior controlted subsidanes, and the consolidated entities hat ane consdenad o
be variable inlenes! enfities ("VIEs"™) and voling interest enflies ("WVOEs") in which AB has a contralling finandal inenest. Non-confnolling inberests on the
congolidated statements of firancial condifion indude the portion of consdidated companmy-sponsored investiment funds in which we do nod have dinsct
Uiy cwnership. A8 Significant inter-company transactions and balances among the consolidated entities have been eliminated,

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements or Accounting Pronouncements
Mot Yet Adopted

Curing 2022, there have been no recendy adopbed sccouniing pronouncements o pronouncermants not yet adopted that have or are expected 1o have a
il impisct on our consolidated resdls of openations,

Revenue Recognition

I Investment Advisory and Services Fees

AR provides assel management sericks by managing customer assebs and seeking to dediver investment returms to investors. Each investrment
management conrict between AB and & customer oeates o Stincl, separately idensfiable perfarmance cbligation for each day the customers assels ane
managed &5 the curstomer can benefil from each day of sendce, In actondance with AZC BB, a senies of disingt goods and sendoes thal are substantially
the same and heve e same patten of transfer 1o he customer are tresled as a single performance cbligation. Accordingly, we have delermined thal our
imvesiment and advisory sendces are perfomed over time and entitie us 1o varable consideration eamed based on the value of the investors’ assets under
minagerment (AUMN)

Wi caloutate ALIM wsing established market-based valuation methods and fair valuation (non-chserable mamkel) methods. Markel-based valualion methods
include: last salefsatie prices from an exchange for actively-traded listed equities, oplons and fulures: evaluaied bid prices from recognized pricing vendors
for fixed income, assed-backed or marigage-backed issues; mid pices from recognized pricing vendors and brokers for credit default swaps: and quaoted bids
or spreads from pricing vendors and brokers for olher derhative products. Far valuation methods indude; dscounted cash flow models o any ofher

L] Alliance Bermatein

232/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Partll

methodaogy thisd is validated and approved by olr Vilustion Commithes {see paragraph immedalaly befos for addiional information about o Valuation
Cornmiftes), Fair valuation methods are wsed only where ALM cannot be valued using merket-based valuation methods, such as in the case of privete
exquity or iliquid securifes.

The Valuation Committes, whidh consists of senior officers and employees, is responsible for overseeing the pricng and vahmton of al imesiments hedd in
cient and AB portlolics. The Valuation Commiltes has adopled & Statement of Pricing Polices desonbing principles and pelicies hal apply to pricing and
valuing Imvestments held in these portfoios. We also have a Pricing Group, which reports 1o the Valuation Comitles and 15 responsible for overseeing the
pricing process for all investments. We record as revenue investment advisory and sendces base fees, which we generally calcufale as a percentage of
ALM, At month-end, &8 the companents of hi Fansacion prce (fe, e Dase Tee calculation) ane no longer variabbe and e value of S considenation is
detlermingd. These fees are nol subject to daw badk and thene is minimal probability that a significant reversal of the revenue recorded will ooour

The transacton price for the assed management performance obligation for cartain investment advisory contracts, including those associated with hedge
funds or oiher altemative investments, provide for 8 performance-based fes induding camied intenest), in addition to a base advisory fee, which is calouated
s gither & perosntage of absolute investmen? resulls o a perceniage of irvesiment regulls in ecess of 8 siated benchmark over a specified period of time.
The pestorrnance-tased feds are Torms of virable consideration and ane thetefore exduded from he transaction prce until it becomes probabie that there
will not be significant reversal of the cumulabive revenue recognized. AL each reporing dale, we evaluale the constraining factors, discussed Below,
sumounding the varable consideration to determine the extent towhich, f any, revenues assocleted with the performance-based fee can be recognized

Constraining faciors mpacting the amount of variable consideration included in the ransaction price indude: the contraciual clew-Dack provisions 1o which
the vanable consideration is subject, ®e length of Sme 1o which the uncertamty of the consideration Is subject, ®e number and range of possible
consideration amounts, the probability of significant fuctuations in the funds market value, e level al which the fund's value exceeds the contraceal
threshold required o earm such a fee. and the matenality of the amount being evaluated.

I Bernstein Research Services

Bemstein Research Services revenue consisis princpally of commissions recesved, and 1o a lesser but increasing extent, dinect payments for trade
emecuton senvices and equity research services provided o institutional clients. Brokerage commissions for trade execution services and related

are reconded on & trade-date basis when the pérformance obligations ane salisted. Generally, 1he transaction price is agnedd upon 1 the time of each trade
and is based upan the number of shares raded of the valse of the consideration Faded Research revenues ane recognized when the transacion pace is
quantified, collectability is assured and significant reversal of such revenwe is not probable.

In the fourth quaster of 2022, AB and Société Générale (ELURONEXT: SCGLY, “SecGen’ |, @ leadng Eurcpean bank, anncunced plans fo form a joint ventune
cormbining their réspective cash equilies and resesrch busingsses. A% a resdl. The Bemsiein Reseanch Senices ("BRS") business has been dassfied as
eld for sale. For further discussion, see Mole 24 Acguizitans and Divestiums.

I Distribution Revenues

Two of car subsidanies acl as distinbutors andior placement agents of company-sponsoned matual funds and receive disiibution services fees from certain
of those funds a% Tull or parlial reimbursement of the distibulion expenses ey incur. The vadable conssderation can be determingd in dferen ways, a5
dizcuzsed helow, a5 we salsly the performance obligation depending on the contractual amangements with the customer and the specific prodwct seld.

Mot open-end LULE. funds hive adopled a plan under Rule 1201 of the Investment Company Act thal allows the fund 10 pay, oul of assels of the fund,
distibution and serich Tees for the distribution and sale of it shares (™12b-1 fees”). The cperrend ULS. funds have such agresments with us, and we have
selling and desinibusion agresments pursiant i which we pay sales commissions 0 the finandal intermedianes that distritate our oper-end LS. funds.
These sgreemnents are terminabée by either party upon notice ¢ generally 30 deys) and do not abligate the financial inlermediary to sell any spedcific amount of
fund shares.

We record 12b-1 fees monthly based upon a percentage of the net assat value ("MAY) of the funds. At month-end, the varnable consideration of the
transaction price is no longer consirained as e NAY can be calculated and the value of consideration is determined. These sanvces are separate and
dstinct from other asset management services as the customer can benafit fom these services independently of other services. We acorue the
comesponding 120-1 fees paid to sub-disiibutors monthly 8% the expenses ane incumed. Wi are acting in a prncipal cipacity in hese ransactions; as such,
these revendes and expenses are reconded on & gross basis.
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Wi offier bircki-gnd lod Shares in limited instances and change i invesior a contingént defemed Sales charge (FCDSCT) i e investment i redeeméd within
@ certain period. The vaniable consideration for these conlracts |5 contingent on the Bming of Se redemption by the investor and the value of the sale
proceads. Cue fo these constraining faciors, we exclude e CDSC fee from the tansaction price untl the invesior redeems the investment. Upon
redempbion, the cash consideration recaived for these contractual amangements are reconded as reductions of unamontized defemed sales commissions.

Cur Lunembourg subsidiary, e managerment company for most of our nen-ULS, funds, eams a management fee thal is accrued dally and paid montily, af
an annual rate, based on the average daly nel assals of the fund. With respect to certain share dasses, the management fee may also contan a component
that is paid to distibutors and ofher financial intermedanes and service providers 1o cover sharsholder sendcing and ofer administaive expenses (also
referred to a5 an AlHn-Fee) As we have conduded that assel management ks distingt from distribufion, we aSocate a portion of the invesiment end advisony
e 10 distribution revenues for the servicng companent based on standalone salling prices.

I Other Revenues

Rewvenues from confracts with customers include a portion of other revenues, which consisis primarily of sharehcider servicng fees, as well as muteal fund
reimbursements and obher brokerage noome.

Wi provide shareholder sendoes, which indude Fansier agency, admmisirative and recondeeping Senices provided 1o company-sponsoned mutual funds,
The consideration for these senvices is based on a percentage of the MAY of e fund of a fixed fee based on the number of shareholder soccolmts being

serviced. The revenues ane recorded at month-end when e constraining factors involved with determining MAY or the number of shareholders’ accounts
Bre regoivid

I Mon-Contractual Revenues

Dinddend eewd inberest income is acorued 85 eamed. Invesiment gains and losses en the consolidated statements of income include unrealized gains and
hosses of rading and pivale equity invesiments siated at fair value, equity in eamings of our limiled parinership hedge fund invesiments, and realized gains
and lasses on irvesments old

I Contract Assets and Liabilities

W use the practical expedient for contracts that have an eriginal duration of one year or less. Accordingly, we da not consider the Bme value of money and,
instead, accrue the incremental costs of oblasning the contract when incumed. As of December 31, 2022, the balances of contract assets and contract
Eabilities ane nod considersd matenal and, sccordngly, no further disclosures ane necegsany,

Consolidation of Company-Sponsored Investment Funds

Fer legal entiies (company-sponsoned investment funds) evaluated for consolidation, we first determing whether the fees we receive and the interests we
Inold gualify es A variabie mberest in the entity, induding an evaluation of fees paid 10Us 85 8 Jeoision Maker of Sendoe provider to Te entity Deing evalusied,
Fees recelved by us are not variable interests if (i) the fees are compensation for sendces provided and are commensurabe with the level of effort required to
provide those services, (il) the service amangement inciedes only terms, conditions or amounis thet are customarily present in amangements for similar
senices negotiabed at amm's length, and (iil} our other econamic interests in the entity held directty and indisectly Shrough our related parties, as well as
Economic imterests hild by related pardes under common contral. would nol absart mane than an insignificant amount of the entity’s I05565 of rective more
than an insigndficant amount of he enlity's benefits,

For hose entities in which wé hive a wanisble interest, we pedom an anahesis fo detéfmineg whether the entity is a VIE by considédng whather he entity's
equity imvestrment at sk is insuffident, whether e investors lack dedcision making rights proporfional fo Their ownership percentage of the entity, and
whelher the invesions lack he obligation 1o absom an endly's expected losses or the Aght 10 recesve an enlity’s expected income
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A NE must be consolidabed by its pimary beneficiary which gendrally is definéd as the party that has a confralling finandgal interest in the VIE. We ane
deemed 1o have a confrolling Snancial inenest in a WIE if we have (i) the power 10 direct the acthvises of the VIE thal most significantty affect the VIE'S
economic perfomance and (#) the obligation 1o absorb losses of #ve VIE or the right 1o receive income frem the VIE that could potentally be significant to the
VIE. For pumposes of evaluating (i) above, fees paid to us as 8 dedsion maker of sendoe providier ane excuded i the amount of Tees s commensurate with
the level of effort required 1o be performed and She amangement indudes only arstomary fenns, condfions or amounts present in amrangements for similar
SerdoRs negotiated o arm's length, The prmany beneficiary evalsalion generally is perfommed qualitatively based on all facts and droumstances, a5 well &
quantitatively, a5 eppropnate,

I wer hawe & variable inferest in an enfty that is determined not to be a VIE. the enity is then evaluated for consolidation under the VOE model. For limited
parinerships and smiar entities. we ane deamed 1o have a controliing finandal intenest in a VOE, and would be required 1o consolidate the entity, if we own a
majority of the entty's kick-cut righis through voting limited pamnership imMenests and limited pariners do not hold substantive participating righis (or other
nghts that would indicate that we do not contra the entity). For entiies other than kmited partnerships, we are deemed 1o have a controlling financial interest
in 8 VOE if we cwn & majority voling interest in the entity.

The analysis performed regarding the defermination of variable inferests held, whedher entities are VIES of VOES, and whethér we have a controlling
Fﬁnﬂdﬂ inferest in such entiies, requires Me ederase of judgment, The analysis is updated continuolsly a3 drcUmMStances change of New enfites are
oy

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hend, demand deposits, money market accounts, owemight commerncial paper and highty liguid Imvestments with
original matunities of three months of less. Due to the shor-temn nabure of these insiruments, e recorded value has been determined 1o approximate fair
v (and considened Level 1 securiliesin the fair waluee hisrardhy)

Fees Receivable, Net

Fees receivable are shown ned of alowances. An allowanoe for doubtiul scoounts related to investmen! advisory and services {ees is determined through an
anahysis of the aging of recehvables, assessments of collectability based on historical frends and other qualitative and quantitative factors, induding our
relationship with the cient. Se financial nealth (or ability to pay) of he client, curent econamic conditions and whether the account is active of dosed. The
Allowanoe Tor doubiiul socounts is nob matenal to fees recessabla,

Brokerage Transactions

Customers’ securiies ransactions are recorded on a setiement date basis, with related commission income and expenses reported on a rade date basis,
Receivables from and payables to clients incwde amounts due on cash and mangin ransactions. Securiies owned by customers are heid as collateral for
recefvables; such collateral 5 et reflected in the consolidated finandal statements. Ve have the ability by coniract or cusiom fo sell or repledge this
collateral and have dong 50 8 vadous tmes. As of December 24, 2022 and 2021, we had 52671 million and 5234 million of re-pledged securities,
respectively, Princpal securities ransactions and redated expenses ane reconded on a trade date basis

Securlies borowed and sacuriies lcaned by our broker-dealer subsidares are recorded at the amount of cash collateral advanced or received in
connection with the transacion and ane induded in receivables fom and payables fo brokers and dealers in the consclidated statements of finandal
condilion, Secunties bomowed Fansacsons requine u 10 depost cash collaterad with the lender. Wit respedt [0 SECURBES [oRned, we NEcEve cash collatera
from e bormower. See Note 8 for secuntes bomowed and loaned amounts recorded in our consobdated statements of Snancid condiion as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021. The inifial collatersl advanced or received approddmates or is greater than the fair value of sacurites bomowed or loaned. We
monitor the fair value of the securities bomowed and foaned on a daily basis and reques! addibcnal collateral or retum excess collateral, as approprate. As
of Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, there is no allowance provision required for the collateral advanced. Income or expense is recognized over the life of the
Transaction.

Cash on deposit with dearning crganizations for trade faciilation purposes is reported in assets hedd for sale as of December 31, 2022 and other assels as of
Decernber 31, 2021, in our consolidated statements of financial condition, As of December 21, 2021, we had 5114.9 million of cash on depesit with deanng
organizations. A% of Decemiber 21, 2022 and 2027, we held no LS, Treadery bils pledged as collateral, These deaning organizetions have e ability by
contract o cusionm 1o sell or re-pledge the coBateral, if ary.
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Current Expected Credit Losses- Receivables from Brokerage clients

Recervables from dients primeary consisis of mangin loan bafances. The value of the securities owned by clients and held as collateral for fvese recedvables
is not refecied in the consclidated financial slatemenis and the colateral was not repledged or sold as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, We consider these
financing recenvables 1o be of good ced! quality because these recehvables are primarily collateralized by the related dien investments.

To estimate expecied credi losses on margin loans, we applied the colateral mainlenance practical expedient by comparing the amorlized cost basis of the
margin loans with the Tair value of the collateral a1 the reporting date, Margin loans are limited to a perceniage of he total value of the securites heid in the
dients account agemst those koans. AB requires, in he event of a deding in the mankel value of the secunbes in a margn acsount. the cient 10 deposit
additiomal Securities or cash 5o Mal al al

timés, the value of the Securibies in i Bocount, & a minimum, coeer the lcan o the cient. A% Such, AB reasonably ects Tl e bomower will be able 1o
connuaily replenish collatersl secwring the Snancial assel and does not expect the Tair valve of collatersl 1o fll below the amorized cost bess of the mangin
kans and, a5 a resull we consider he oedl risk associated with these recevables o be minimal In driumsiances when a loan becomes
undercollateralized and the dient tails 1o deposit addiional secuntes or cash, AB resenves the right to Bguidate the account

Current Expected Credit Losses - Receivables from Revenue Contracts with Customers

The majority of cur revenus recevalles are from imvestment advisory and senvice fees, and disiribuion revenues, thal are typically paid out of the cient
eccounts of hird-party preducts consising of cash and securies. Dus 1o the size of the fees in relafion fo the value of the cash and securities in acocount or
funds, e account value abways exceeds the amorized cosl basis of the receivables, resulting in a remote risk of loss. These receivables have a short
duration, generaly due within 30-90 days and there s mirimad restonical evidence of non-payment or marnket declines tat would cause the fair value of the
undedtying secunties fo dedine below e amonzed cost of the recervables, AB mantains an allowance for credit losses based upon an estimate of the
amount of polential credit |os5es in exising acocounts receivable. a5 delérmined from @ review of aging schedules, past due balances, historicsl colleciion
experience and ofer speciic account data. Once detemined uncoBiectible. aged balances are written off as loss expense. This defermination is
based on conehul analysis of indvidudl recevables and aging schedules, and generally octurs whin the recenible becomes over 360 dovs past dug. O
aged recefvables and amounts wiitten off related to credit losses in sy year are mot materdal.

Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, Net

Fumiture, equipment and leasehold improvements are sialed at cost less accumulated deprediation and amorization. Deprecialion is recognized on a
mlmﬂbaisml}nasﬁmumdusafullhusdainh furmiture and three o six years for equipment and software. Leasehold improvements ane
amortized on a straighi-line basis over the lesser of heir estimated useful lives or the terms of the related leases.

Goodwill

Cur acquisifions ane accounted for under the acquisiion method of accourting, where the cost of the acquisifion is allocated on the basis of the estimated
fair value of the assels acquired and the liabilites assumed The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of idgentifable assels soquired, net of
kabilities assumed, resulls in the recogrition of goedwill

On July 1, 2022, AB Holding acquned a TD0R6 ownership interest in Cerval Invesions L P ("CarValy Immedately Toliowing its acquisition of Carldal {the
"CarVal acquisition™), AB Helding contributed 100% of its equily inerests In CarVial &0 AB In exchenge Tor AB Unils (see Mole 24 Acquisitions and
Divestiies)

On Novesmier 22, 2022, AB and SocGen, a leading Ewopean bank, announced plans to form a jaint venture combining ther respective cash egquities and
research businesses. As a resull the BRS busness has been classifed as held for sale and 31598 million of goodwil recorded on the consclidated
statement of finandal condition has been aBocaled to e held for Sale disposal group, As AB §s a single reporting wail, we have allocated goodwill to the
disposal group based on the relative Tar values of (1) the disposal group and (2) the partion of the reporting unit that will be retained. For further discussion,
s Nobe 24 Acquisiions and Dheslitures.

As of Decernber 31, 2022 we had goodeill of 53.6 billion on the consolidated statement of financial condition which included S566.1 milion as a result of the

Carval acquisition in the third quarter of 2022, 52 8 billion as a nesult of the Sentord C. Bemstein Inc. ("Barnstein”) acquisition in 2000 and 5291.9 milion in

ﬂmgmmu-wmm smaller acquisstions. Approxdmately, $155.8 million of goodwill has been dassfied &5 assels held for Sale on the consolidated statement of
rancial condbon.

ﬁmmm:um-m_lmusms_qmmmru-:rﬁairrnmutlujngmmwmmmamrmammmmuﬂisnmwns
unadusted marke! valuation (AB Units outstanding muliplied by AB Holding's Unit price) and adusied market valuatons assuming a confrol premium (when
BppEcable). The price of a publicly raded AB H Uini1 serves as & reasonable staming point for valung an AB Linit Decause each represents the same
frasctional in in our undestying business. e vear, the camying vslue of goodwal is also ed for impaimment if certain events or changes
in drcumstancas ocour and gger whether an inlenm impairment test may be required. Such ch s in dreumstances may induds, but are not Emided to,
significant transactions induding acquisitons of dvestiures. a suslained decreass in he price of an AB Holdng Unit o declings in AB's markel capitalization
that wiould suggest that the Tair value of the
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reporing unit is less 'Ihm ﬂ'lu mrnrng. amaun; ﬂmllmnt and unanaupabe-:l dadines in AB's assets under managemnent or revenues; andior lower than
expecied eamings per th 5 changes in cifcumsiances could e possibliity hat goodwill |s Empaired, bul none of these evenis or
amwnmrnubfﬂﬂfwm Il:ab&lmtrt;snmhmy1hmmmatpw |sm'q:|a|md Instend, they are merey recognized ummmwm
consideraton of impairment and must be viewed in combinaton with any mitigating o pesitve factors. A holistic evaluation of all events since the mest
recent quantitative impainment test must be done 1o determine whether it i mone ﬂ'lmmlﬂ'ﬂtlherepmlﬁgmltls mpa-reﬂ As of Seplember 30, 2022,
the impasmuent test indscated thal goodwill was nol impared, The announcement of the planned joint veniure betw and SocGen and dassfication of
the BRS business as held for sale on the consolidated statement of financial condition during M'Fmrha mrdMMEutmmmlmqumgm
interim impairment test; as such, we lested our goodwill &s of December 31, 2022 The impaimment test | e that goodwill was not impaired

Under ASU 2017-04, En'lglfmg the Test for Goodwill Irnpaimment, a 1 mnent will be the amount by which a %ﬁrﬁ carmying value
excids ils far vk, nol 1o excead he carmying amournt of goodwill Er 1his gusdance, the goodwll mpairment ntrlﬂ'lﬁ_l @ deberminabon
management of whether & deding in fair value is lemporary, however, if i important thal managements determination of fair valiee reflect the impact
changing market condifions. induding the severity and antidpated duration of any such changes.

Business Combinations

Wi account for business cormbinations using the acquEstion method of acoounting whersby T identifiable assets end liabdites of the acquired busingss, as
wsilasm nonconiraling inferest in the acquired business, are recanded af thelr estimaled fair valwes as of the dale tat we obiain control of the acquired

purchase consideraton in excess of the estmaled fair values of the net assats acquired is recorded as Wﬂ Acquesilion-related expensas
u'eaaq:urmdasmm'ud

Oflen, as part of the busness combination. mtangible assels ars recorded bised on their ésimated fair value at the me of acquisstion and primanily reate to

atx}wed invesiment management contracks. We pedodically review indefinde-Sved ibbe assets fior im ienl &5 events or changes in droumstances
indicate thal the camying value may nol be recoverable I the ca walue excieds Rair value, we additonal impairment § 10 measure the
arnount of the Implll'mw bogs, if ary. During 2022 and 2021, eperses induded an intangible asset impairment charge of $5.6 million and

510 million, respectively, related 1o vanous histoncal acquisions.

Wie pericdically enter info coningent payment amangements in connection with cur business combinations. In these amangements, we agree o pay

addibonal consideration to the seflers 1o the exlen! hal certain performance BEE achieved, We estimate the fair value of these polential fulre
mammmumsmmﬁmlswmma ility on a disccembed basis on our corsciidated slatement of fnancal

Wig hen acorate the obligaion o ils expected [ armount over S measunement pefod. ﬂmmmmmmtmtmmw
aﬁmad]m is modified in the curment pesiad Inamlnalussﬂuhgmsmlmsmﬂlmm o expected 5 g
he accreton of cbligatons [o their expectad payment are reflected within contingent payrment arangements meldﬂ staternents

of income. The CarVal acquisition resulted in the ml::l‘dngmu contingent consideralion payable of 5228 9 milion if cerain performance targels are
adnieved gver a slx-year period (see Nole § Fair Walve and 24 Acquiisitions and hﬁrm] Cunng 2022, there were no impairmenis of contingent
congdenaton p lé: recorded in the consolidaled statements of income. During the fourth quanters of 2021 and 2000, wi recorded an impairment of 1he

il"-ﬂm m erafon payable of 0.6 milion and 51,4 million, respectively. These impairments wene rdated to our 2016 acquisition of Ramius Altermitve

Several valuaiion methods may be used to determing the fair value of assets acquired and lisbiliies assumed. For intangible assets, we typically use a
mefthsod that s a form of the income approach, whereby a forecast of fuiure cash fiows atiributable 1o the asset are discounted 1o present value using a nsx-
adjusted discount rte. Similarty for contingent lisbilites. we devdop & forecast of future cash Bows altibutable to the performance objectives that are then

discountad fo present value using a &d discount mie. Some of the more significant estimates end assumptions inherent in the income approach
nclude te amount and trming of projected cash lows and the discoun rate e 16 Fragsasaine thee risks inherent in the fethure cash Nows. See Nole
24 Acguiditions and Dhsesiilines

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible asseds consist primanly of cosls assigned fo acquired vesiment management contracts based on their estimated fair value al the me of
soquisiton, less accumulated emonzaton Infangible assels are recognized at fair value and generslly are emorfized on 8 sraightine basis over ther
estimated wsehd lile ranging from 5 1o 20 years.

The Caral acquisiion resulted in recording of S303.0 million of finitedived intangible assets Mi-l'il]l’ fdﬂﬁl‘lﬂ o Invesiment managemen) coniracts and
irtstor relationships with usatul lves ranging from 5 10 10 years (see Mol 24 Acguisitions and

As of December 31, 2022, intengible assels, net of scoumulated emortzation. of $310.2 million on the consoidaled statement of financal condifion consisis
of 5265 0 million of Snite-lhved intengibe assels subject to amortizaton and $15.2 milion of indefinite-lved intangble assels not subject 1o amonization.

As of Decesrber 31, 2021, ntangible assels. net of acoumuleted amortization, of 541.5 million on the consolidated statement of financial condtion consisted
of 526.3 million of Enitedhved intangibie assels subject 1o amomzation and 5152 million of indefiniteived intangible assels nol subject 1o amartization in
regarnd o other acquisitions.
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The gross camying amount of finite-ived intangible assets tolaled $327.9 million as of December 31, 2027 and $53.8 milicn as of Decamber 31. 2021, and
accumudated amortization was 3329 milkon as of December 21, 2022 and 527.5 million as of December 31, 2021,

Armorization expense was 5266 milkon for 2022 357 million for 2021 and $21.4 million for 2020, Estinated anmel amortizaion expenss is appraximately
S47 million annsally in years one through e, S4B million in year four and approamately $25 milion in e five

‘W peniodically review indefinite-lived intengible assets for impairment as events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the camying vaiue may not be
recoverable. If the camying value excesds fair value, we perform additional Impairment tests to measure the amount of Swe enpairment loss, il any, During the
fourth quarter of 2022 we performed an impakmment assessment and recorded an impaiment of 356 millicn redafed to cur 2014 acquisiion of CPH Capital.
Caxing the fowrth guarters of 2021 and 2020, we recorded impairments of $1.0 million and 51.5 million. respectively, related to our 2016 acquisition of
Rarmius Allemative Soltions LLC. Due o the loss of acquired Imvestrent menagement contracts duning each respective year, the camying value of the
firite-lived intangible assets excesded the fair vaiue of the contracis. We delemined the fair value of the contracts using B discounted cash flow model. The
impairment charge was reconded in general and adminisrative expenses in e consolidated statemeants of income

Deferred Sales Commissions, Net

Wi pary commissions fo financal intermédian e in connection with the sale of shares of open-end company-sponsoned mutual funds sold without a front-end
sales change (back-ond load shares”). These commissions are capilalized as defermed sales commissions and amorntized over penods not exceeding one
yestir fof LS, fund shares and four years for Non-LLE. Fund shares, the penods of time duing which defemed sales commissions generally ang recoventd,
We recover these comniissions rom @isinbudon sendces Tees received from those funds and from COSC received from sharehciders of those furds upon
the redemplion of thesr sheres, COSC cash recoveries ane recorded as reductions of unamortized defemed sales commissions when received. Since Jenuarny
31, 2009, cur LS. mutual funds have nod offered back-end lcad shanes 10 new invesions.

Wi periodically review the defermed sales commission assed for impasrment as events or changes in droumsiances indicate tat the camying vabee may not
be recoverable. I these factors indicate impairment in value, we compane the carmying vahse fo the undescounbed cash flows expected o be generated by the
sl over fS rerdiring Me. 11 we determing the defemed sales commisson asse is not fully recoveraible, the assel will be dedmed impaired and & loss will
I rexcorded in the amount by which the reconded amount of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. There were no impairment charges recorded during
2022 or 2021,

Leases

Wi dedesmning if an arangement S a lease &l inceplion, Bolh cperating and finance leases ane induded in the rghl-cl-use (“ROU") assels and lease
Eabilities in owr consalidated statement of financial condition.

ROU assets represent our fight 1o wse an undeying asset for the Mease term and lease lHabilies napresent our obligation 10 make leass payments ansing
froem e lease. ROU assets and lease Babilities are recognized al commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over Tve lease tem.
Wi U our congolidated inchimental bomowing rate based on e information avafable ad of e lease commencamin] dale in didermining the present
vl of lease payments. Cur lease terms may inclede options fo exdend or temminabe the lesse. These options. to extend or terminate ane assessed on a
lesage-by-lease bass, and e ROU assets and lease habiliies are adusied when it is reasonably certain that an option 'will be exenased

Wihen calouiating he measurement of ROL assets and lease Babilites, we ulilize he fved payments associaled with the lease and 0o nol indude ofher
variable conractual obligations, such &s operating expenses, real estate taxes, deanng and utlites. These costs ane accounted for as pened costs and
expensad as incumed.

Additionaily, we exdude any intangible assets such as software llicensing agreements as siated in ASC B42-10-15-1. These smangements will continue to
Tailow the guidance of ASC 350, infangibes - Goadwill and Other.

Loss Contingencies

Wiith respect 1o all signifcant Migaion matters, we corsder the likelinood of a negalive outcome. IT we determing the likelinood of 8 negalive outoome is
probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimaled. we record an estimaled loss for the expected outcome of the kgation. If the likelinood of
a negative outcome is reasonably possible and we are able io determine an estmate of the possible loss or mnge of loss in excess of amounts already
eccnued, (f any, we disdose that fact togefer with the estimate of the possible loss of range of loss. However, It Is often difficult to predict the oulcome or
eslimate a passible l0ss or range of 1055 becalise Figation s subject 1o inherent uncertainties, pariculamy when plamtils alege substantal or indetenminate
damages. Such is aiso the case when the Wigafion is in its early stages or when the hgation is highty complex or broad in scope. In these cases we
disciopse that we are unable to predict the outcome or estimate & possble ioss or range of loss
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Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

The Company classifies assets and kabilites o be soid {dsposal group) as held for sale in the period wiven all of the applicable cnieria are met, incuding: (i)
management commits to a plan to sell, i) the disposal group is available to sell in its present condifion, (i) there is an active program %o locste a buyer. (iv)
The disposal group |5 being actively marketed ai & redsorable price in relation o its fair value, {v) significant changes 1o the plan b Sell are uriikely, and ()
the: sale of the dsposal group is generly probable of being completed within one year, Management performs an assessment of held for sale at least
gquarterty or when events of chenges in business dreumstances indicate that a dange in dassification mey be necessary. Assets and liabilites held for sale
are presented separately within the consolkdated siaternents of financial condtion with amy adjustments necessary o measure the disposal group at e
bower ol ils Garyirg viskes or fair value less costs o sl Depreciation of property. plant &nd equiprment and armorfizabon of intangible and nght-ol-use a55ets
are nol reconded while these assets ane dassified as held for sale. For each reponting peniod the dsposal group remans dassified as held for sale, the
camying value of the disposal group is adjusted for subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sefl. A loss is recognized for any subsequent decreasa in
fair value less costs bo sell, while 8 gain |s recognized in any subsequent persad for any subsequent increase in fair value less cost bo sall, but not in excess
of the cumulative loss previously recognized. If. in any periad, the camying value of the disposal group exceeds the estimated fair value less costs to sell. a
et 15 recogrized on Sale rathes than an impainment loss,

Assets and ligbilities dassified as held for sale on the consolidated statement of finandal condition as of December 31, 2022 were 5551 4 milkon and $108.0
million, respectively, The 2021 consolidated statement of financial condition was not recast for assets and kabikties dassified as held for sale in 2022

Mutual Fund Underwriting Activities

Purchases and sales of shares of company-sponsored muthsal funds in commecton with the underwriing actviies of cur subsidianes, induding related
cormimission income, ane recorded on the trade date. Recervables from brokers and dealers for sale of shares of compeny-sponsored mutual funds generally
@re nealized within three business days from the frade date, in conjuncion with the settiement of the related payables to company-sponsored mutual funds
Tor share purchases, Distibulion plan and ather promolion and senvicing payments are recognired as expense when incurmed

Long-term Incentive Compensation Plans

Wik maintan several uniunded, non-qualiied leng-dem incentive compensation plans. under which we grant annusal awands 1o employees, generally in The
Tourth quarter, and to members of the Board of Direchors of the General Partner, who are nol employed by our comparny of by amy of our afliates ["Eligible
Directors”).

Awards granted in December 2022, 2021 and 2020 allowed employees to allocaie their awerds between resiricied AR Heiding Units and defemed cash.
Participants (excepl cerlain membens of senion menagement) generally could allocabe up lo 50% of Thelr swands to defemed cash, notl to excesd a total of
250,000 per award. Each of cur employees based culside of the United States (other than expatriaies), who received an award of 5100.000 or less, could
have allocated 100% of their @wand to deferred cash. For these awards, the number of AB Holding Unils awardad was basad on the dosing prce of an AB
Helding Unit on the date as of which the awands were approved by the Compensation and Workplace Practices Commifiee (lhe “Compensation
Committee”) of e Board of Direclors (the "Board”). For swards granted in 2022 2021 and 2020,

= We engaged in open-market purcheses of AB Holding Units or purchase newly issued AB Holding Units from AB Holding thet are awarded to paricipanis
#nd ke them in a condolidated rabbi trust

= Quaredy disributions on vesled and unvested AE Holding Units were paid to paridpants, regardiess of whether or not a long-term defermal election has
besery made

= Interest on defered cash was accued monthly based on owr monthly wesghbed everage cosl of funds

Wi recognize compensation expense refaled to equity compensation grants in the financlal statements using the far value method, Fair value of restricted
AB Holding Linit awards k5 the dosing price of an AB Holdng Unit on The gram date; Tar vaiue of opBons is determined using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. Uinder the faér value mefhod, compensatory expense is measured at the grani date based on the estimated fair value of the award and is
recognized over the requined service period, For year-end long-enm incentive compensation awards, employees who resign or ane teminabed without cause
iy retain thir awards, Subject 1o compliance with certain agresmens and covenants set forth in the applicable award agréement, induding the impostion
of forfefture as a result of post-employment competition. prohitetions on employes and cient soliciation, and a potential daw-back for faling 1o follow
existing risk managjement polices. Because here is no service requirement. we fully expense these awards on the grant date. Most equity replacement,
sign-on of smilar defemed compensation awands included in separate employment agreemenis o amangements inclede a required senvice period.
Regardess of whether te award sgreement includes empioyes Sendoe nequirements, AB Holding LUinits typically are delivered 10 ernployees rmiably over
Three years (o four years, unless the employes has madée a long-1ermn defermal electon
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Grants of restricted AR Holding Linits can be awarded to Eligible Dirgclors. Generally, thess resiricled AB Holding Lirets vist ratably over three yoirs. Thase
restriched AR Holding Units are not forfeitable (except if the Eligible Director is terminatedd for “Cause,” as that term is defined in the applicable award
agreement). We fully expense these awards cn grant dale, as there is no sendca reguirement

Wi fured our resiricied AB Holding Unit awands either by purchasing AB Holding Linits on e open marked or purdhasing newty-issued AB Holding Units from
AB Heiding, and hen keeping these AR Holding Unils in a consolidated rabbi rust unil delivering them of retiing them. In accordance with the Amended
and Restaled Agreement of Limited Parinership of AB ("AB"), when AB punchases newly-issued AB Holding Unils from A8 Hoding, AB Hoiding Is reguired
o use e proceads i receives from AS 1o purchase the equivalent nuember of newly isswed AB Units, thus increasing its percentage ownership interest in
AB. AB Holding Units held in the consolidated rabbi st ane coporiie a556ts in the name of he tnus and ane vailable 1o the gineral creditors of AB

Repurchases of AR Halding Uinits for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 oonsisied of the Sollowing

Years Ended December 11

i maliang)
Tolal arvount of AB Hoiding Units Purchased ' 0.2 56
Total Cash Paid for AB Holding Units Purchased ' ] 2B 5 2623
Open Manket Purchases of AB Holding Units Purchased' ! 23 26
Totel Cash Pad for Open Marke Purchases of AB Holding Unils'! 5 =’/ 3 179

T Purchased on a rade date basis. The difference between open-marioe! purchases and units retained reflects the refention of AR Holding Units fom employees 1o wifl
stahutany b m”ﬂﬂ rEquirements & e time of ﬂi\"bﬁ' of Img-ur-m incentive compensation Faards.

Each quarter, we consider whether 1o Implement a plan 1o repurchase AE Heoiding Unils pursuant 1o Rules 10b5-1 and 10012 under the Securibies
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act”). A plan of this type allows a company to repurchase its sheres at @mes when il otherwise might be
prevented from doing 50 because of seflimposed trading blackout periods o because it possesses materdal non-public information. Each broker we Select
has the autharty 1o repurchase AB Hoiding Units on our behalf in accordance with the lenms. and limitations spedfied in the plan. Repurchases ane subjedt to
reguiaions promulgated by e SEC as well &g certain price, markel volume and liming constrants specified in the plan. There wag no plan adopted during
the fourth quarter of 2022 \We may adopt additonal plans in S fulure o engage in open-market purchases of AB Holding Units to hefp fund anticipated
cbligatons under cur incentive compensation award program and for other corporabe pUIPOSes.

Curing 2022, we granted to employess and Elgible Directors 4.7 million restnicted AB Holding Unéls (includeng 3.8 million gramed i Decernber for 2022
yepr-end awands 1 emplonees). Duing 2021, we granted 1o emplovees and Elgible Directors 7.0 million restricted AR Holdng Unis (including 2.4 million
granted in December for 2021 year-end awards o employees) We used AB Holding Unils repurchesed during e penods and newly-issued AB Holding
Linits 1o fund these awands.

During 2022 and 2021, AE Holdng issued 5,774 and 0.1 milion AB Holding Units, respectvely, upon exercise of options (o buy AB Holging Units. AB
Hedding used the procesds of 50.2 milfion and 534 million, respectively, received from award recpients as payment in cash for the exerdse price o
purchase the equivalent number of newly issued AB Uinits.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Aszsets and Babiliies of foreign subsidanies are fransiated from funclional currendes into Uiniled States dollars ("USS) af exchange rates in offect af the
balance sheet dates, and related revenuas and espenses are ransiated into USS at sverage exchange rales in effect during each period. Net foreign
CUFTEnCY gains and losses resulting from e ranslation of assets and liabiliies of foreign operations into USS are reporbed a5 a separaie componént of other
cornprehensive income In the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Net faregn cumency ransaction [osses were $10.2 milion, $3.5 million
and 53.3 milkon for 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are reported in general and administraive expenses on the consolidated statemenis of income.

Cash Distributions

AB is required 1o distibute all of its Avaflable Cash Flow, as defined in the AB Partnership Agreement, 1o (s Unifwlders and to the General Parner,
HAyailable Cash Flow can be summarnzed as the cash fiow recaved by AB from operations minus such amounts as the General Partner dedermines, in its
sole discretion, should be refained by AB for uss in its business, or plus such amounts as the General Partner defermines. in its sole discretion, should be
released from previousty retained cash Niow

7 AllianceBernstein

240/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tabie of Contents

Partll

Typically, Available Cash Flow has been the adiussted diuted net income per uril Tof e quanes multiplied by the number of genenal and limited parnérship
inferests at the end of the quarter. In futre pefiods, management anficipales thal svailable Cash Flow will be based on adusied diuted net income per unit,
unless management detarmines, with the concurrence of the Board, thel one of more adustments at are made for adusted net income should not be
made with respedt to the Available Cash Flow calculaiion

On February 8, 2023, e General Pariner declared a distibuton of $0.77 per AB Unit, representing a distibufion of Available Cash Flow for the three
months ended December 31, 2022 The General Pariner, as & resull of its 1% general parinership inferest, |s entitied to recefve 1% of each dstibution. The
dstribution |s payable on March 16, 2023 to haders of record on Febmeary 21, 2023,

Totd cash diskibutions per Linit pasd fo the Genersl Partner and Unithalders during 2022, 2027 and 2020 wane 5267, 5386 and 53.08, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

Wi report 88 changes in comprihensve income in the consalidaled statements of comprehensie income. Comprehenshe income iIncludes nel Income, a8
widl 8% fonsegn cumency Fangation adjustments, acluanial gaing (losses) and prior Service o8l Defemed taoes were nol recognized on forsgn cumency’
transiation adpstments for foreign subsidianes which had eamings that wene consitersd perranenty invested outside the United States

Subsequent Events

W have evaluated subsequent evenis through e date Sat these firancial statements were filed with the SEC and did not identity any subsequert events
that would have requined disclosure in these finandal statements.

3. Revenue Recognition

Rievenues for the years ended Desember 31, 2022, 2021 and 2000 consisted of the follswing:

Years Ended December 31

{in thowusands )
Subjisct bo contracts with customers
Irversirment advisory and services fees
Ease fees 5 2EXEVHY § 2940405 5 Z4B2B10
Performance-based fees 145247 245119 132626
Bemistein reseanch senices 418,273 452017 459,744
Distribution revenues
All-in-management fees 290,740 3B0674 331,268
12h-1 lees 53,041 £3.920 75973
Crther distnbution fees 247414 M7 66 122 540
Crihar inviniags
Shareholder sendcing fees 85,661 80225 82317
Crther 18120 16,034 21,240
4 (53 287 & 405 040 3688518
hiot subject 10 contracts with QUSIomers:
Divvidend and interes! income. net of interes expense 58 662 35048 35,273
Investenent (losses) {102,413} (B3E) {16, 404)
Crher revenues 763 2150 1,148
(44,597 36,562 20,018
Total net revenues § 4054290 § 44441802 $ 3 T0E536
2072 Anrual Report T
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4, Net Income Per Unit

Basic nit income per urel is dermved by reducng nel income for the 1% general parnership inenest and dividing the remaning 99% by the basec weighted
fverage number of limited parership units cutstanding for eich yesr, Diutéd el income per Uil S derved by reducing ned ncome for the 136 genersl
partnership interest and dviding the remainmg 39% by the total of the diluted weighted average number of Emited parnership units outstanding for each
eI,

Years Ended Decombar 1

| w0
{in theusands, sxeept per usd amounts)
et income afiributable to AB Unithalders 2 831,613 $ 148623 5 865,952
WVilsghted average unils outstanding—basc 273,843 2729 269,058
Dilutive effect of compensatory opbens to buy AB Holding Urils 1 " e
WVisighled avaraige unils outstanding—diuted 273,544 271,740 260,085
Basic met income per AB Un# 5 i % 418 5 318
Dilutad met incomes par AB Undt 5 M § 418 § 319
Vears Endad Decermber 3
IR T
in Hypusands)
Antldilutive options excluded from diluted net income = — 29,055

5. Cash and Securities Segregated Under Federal Regulations and Other Requirements

As of both December 31, 2022 and 2021, $1.5 bilion of U5, Treasury Bills were segregated in a spedial reserve bank custody account for the exclusive
beernefit of our Drokerage cusiomens under Fube 15¢3-2 of the Exchange A

6. Investments

Imvestreents consist of
Years Ended Docember 31
{n thousands)
Equity securites;
Lorg-lerm incentive compensaton-reabed 3 21,08 ] 32237
Sead capiial 135,012 133,882
Cathert| 18243
Exchange-traded opSons! - 1853
Irvesstrnenits in Brmited partnership hedge funds:
ng—:lu-‘m incentive compensation-reahed 26,815 31,802
Sead capiial 15:711 19318
Tirme deposils T, 70 21024
Other BATS 15,108
Total Investmaents 3 27,518 § 23418
' Ameunts have been classifted as beld for sale on the lidated statemant of § d position as of D ber 31, 3022, For further dscussion, Sew Noke 24 Acquistions
ang Dimstiures
7B AllianceBermsiein

242/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Partll

Total invvestments relatid bo long-term incentive comparsation cbligations of S47.9 milkon and 583 8 million &5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respécively.
consist of company-sponsored mutual funds and hedge funds. For long-lem incentive compensation awards granted before 2009, we hypically made
imvestments in company-sponsored muiual funds and hedge funds thatl were notionally ecied by plan perticipants and maintained them (and continue o
mairtain them) in a consolidated rabbl frust or separate custodal acoount. The rabbd tust and cusiodial account enable us 1o hold such invesiments
separate from our other assats for the purpase of sefling cur obligations o parScpants. The investrments held in e rabbi tnest and custodial account remain
nvailable 1o the general criditors of AR

The underfying investments of hedge funds in which we irvest indude long and shor positions in equity secunties, fived income secunties (induding vanous
agency and non-agency assel-based SeariBes) cumences commodites and dervalives (incudng wvarous Swaps and forward conracts) These
mvestments ane valued @ quoled market prices or. whene quoled market prices ang not available. are fair valued based on the pricng polides and
procedures of the undertying furds

Wi allocate seed capilal to our imiestiment teams to help develop new products and senvices for our dients. A porSion of our seed capital fading investmenis
ere equity and fxed income products, primarly in e form of separately menaged account porticiios, US, mutusl funds, Luxemboung funds, Japanese
investment trust management funds or Delawans business tusts. We 850 may allocahe seed capital 10 invesiments in privabe equily funds, Regarding our

Seed capital investments, the amounts above rellect those RS in which we are not the prirmary benefidany of a VIE of hold a controllng financial inenest in
aVOE. See Note 15, Consolidated Company-Sponsoned Investment Funds, for a description of the seed capital investments thet we conscildated. As of
Decomniar 31, 2022 and 2021, our total seod copital imeesiments wore 52086 million and S375.0 million. respectively, Sed capital imeestments in
uncongolidated companmy-sponsonsd vestment funds ane valued using published net assel values of non-published ret assel values if Ty are natb listed on
an active exchange but have net asset values that are comparable to funds with published net asset values and have no redemplion resrictions.

In addiion, we also have long positions in coporale equities and long exchange-fraded oplions traded throwgh our cplions desk,
Thee partion of unrealized gains (losses) related to equty semunbes. as defined by ASC 321.10, held 85 of December 31, 2022 and 2021 wene &5 fallows:

Years Ended December 31

T T
{in thousands)
Met (lcsses) gains recognized during the peried g (23.855) § 19,240
Lesis: ned gaing recogriZed during the period on equity securnilies $old during the pesiod 17,960 23,697
Unrealized losses recognized during the peried on equity securities held § (41,815 % (4,45T)

7. Derivative Instruments

Soe Note 15 Consolideted Company-Spensoned Invesiment Funds, ko disclosune of derivative insirumens held by our consclidated company-sponsered
imcestment funds

‘Wie enter into warious: futures, forwarnds, options and Swaps 10 economically hedge certain seed capital investiments. Also, we have cumency forwands that
help us b0 economically hedge cerlain balance sheet exposures. 0 addfion, our options desk rades long and shor exchange-traded equity oplions. Ve do
riod old sy desivatives designated in a formal hedge relationship under ASC 81510, Devivalives and Hadging.

202 Anrual Repon i
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Thee nodional value, Tair value and gains and o556 recognized in investment gains (losses] a5 of December 21, 2022 and 2021 for desivative instruments
(exduding derivative ingtuments refaling b our options desk rading acthilies Bfscuss od beiow) nod desgnated as hedging indruments were as follows:

Dierivative
Lishifties

Dierivalive

Dacamber 11, 2022

Exchange-raded iiwes 5 154687 5 1768 5 5 5 10,904

Cuerency forwards 34,597 4,446 7 1565

Interest rate swaps 16,847 386 70
Credit defaull Sweps 225871 17,607 1,000)
Total retum swaps o8 742 BG5S 14828

Option swaps 50,000 B 1L

Tetal darivatives 5 50,580 3§ 24712 5 Bz 3 41,068

December 31, 2021

Exchange-fraded fulures 5 131876 § wz 8 1186 § {5.072)
Curmency forwands E5.058 7.244 5.980 1,746
intenest rate swaps 13,483 457 =R (316)
Credit default swaps 55,757 5564 5967 2.513)
Total retum swaps 63,817 585 527 {6.433)
Option swaps 20,000 - 430 {309]
Total derivatives Ll 480981 5 15422 5 16823 35 {13.288)

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the derhvalive assets and lisbilites ere induded in both receivables and payables 10 brokers and dealers on our
consolidated staterments of Anancial condition. Gains and losses on derfvative instruments are reporied in imvesement gains (losses) on the consolidated
statements of income

W ey be esposed to credi-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterpares to derivalive financial insiruments. We minimize owr
counterparty exposure through a credi review and approval process. In addifion, we have executed vanious collaleral amangernents with counterpartes io
the over-the-counler derivative ransaclions that require both pledging and accepting collateral in the Tomm of cash. As of Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, we
held S84 million and 529 million, respectively, of cash collaberal payable o rade counterpartes. This cbligafion to retum cash is reported i payables fo
brokers and dealers in owr consolidated statemens of inandal condition.

Althaugh notional amount is the typical measure of volume in the derivatives market. it is not used as a measure of cradit fisk. Generally, the cument credit
exposure of our dervative confracts is limited b the net positive estimated fair value of dervative contracts at the reportng date after taking into
consderaton the existence of netting agreements and any collateral received. A dedvalive with positive vaiue (8 derhaive asset) indicales existence of
credit risk becayss the counterparty would owe us if the confract wene closed, Allematively, a demalive confract with negative value (& demvative lisbility)
indicates we would owe maoney to the counterparty I the conftract were dosed. Ganerally, If there s more than one denvative fransacton with & single
courtterparty, & masier neting amangement exists with respect fo derivative transactions with that counterparty 1o provide for aggregale nel settlernent.

Certain of our standandized contracts for overthe-courter dervative transactions (1S0DA Master Agreements”) contain crédil sk related contingent
provisions pertainng to each counderparty’s credil ratng. In some [504 Master Agreements, [ the counledparty’s credil raing, or in some agreements, our
AUM, falls below a specified threshold, either a default or a fesmination event permitting the counterparty fo terminate the ISDA Master Agreamen! wolld be
tiggered. In all agreements that provide for collaterslization, various levels of colateralization of net liability posiions ane applicable, dependng on the credit
raing of the counterparty. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we delivered $4.2 million and 85,6 milion, respectively, of cash collatenl inte brokemge
eotounts, Ve report this cash collateral in cash and cash equivalents in our oonsolidated statements of inencial condtion

As of December 31, 2022 long and short exchange-irmded equity options were dassfied as held for sale on cur consolidaled statement of financal poston

For further discussion. See Nole 24 Acquisitions and Divestitwes, A5 of December 31, 2021, we held 51.9 million, respectively. of long exchange-traded
equity options, which are included in ofver imvestments on our consolidated statements of fnancial condtion. in addiion, as of December 31, 2021, we held

52,8 million, respectively, of
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short exchange-traded equity aptions, which are intluded in secuities sold notl yel purchased on cur consolidaled statements of findndal condition

Cur opfions desk provides our clients with eguity dervative stralegies and execution for exchange-traded oplions on single stocks, exchange-iraded funds
and indices. While predominately agency-based, the options desk may commit capital to faciFtate a dient's tronsaction. Our oplions desk hedges the msk
assocaled with tis sctivity by taking offsetting posilions in equities. For the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, we recognized 522 1 million of losses
ard Zero gains of lsses on equity options acthily, respectively, Thess losses afe recognized in investiment gaing (losses) in the consolidaled statements
of income

8. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

See Node 15 Consolidated Company-Sponsoed Investment Funds, for disdosune of offsetting assels and labiites of cur conslidated company-sponsorad
ivrestmien funds

Offsetting of assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

HNet
Amounts of

Fimariial
of Financial Instruments| Cash Collateral
Condition Collateral Recened

{in thousands)

Decamber 31, 3023

Secunties bomowead ! B2 0 5 = 206 S
Dertvislivis

Long exchange-iraded options’’

Dacamber 31, 2021

Sacurities bomowed 1 19893 § - 5 19853 5 [18327) § — 5 1572
Dervalives 15422 - 15.422 - (2872} 12,550
Long exchange-traded aptons 1.853 — 1.893 - - 1,853

Cfsatting of Babilities as of December 21, 2022 and 2021 wirs as follows

A nts
Ciffzet in the

Eafoss
Armounis of i Statement| Finaricial
of Financisl Ieva b, Cash Collateral Med
Liabilities Condition Condition Collateral | Pledged | Amount

in theudands)

Dacamber 31, 2022

Securties |caned” - 272 BAT : : 5 Ea : 2670

Derivalives 1371 i 3
Sharl exchange-traded options’'

Discamber 31, 2021

Secunties |oaned 5 23911 S - 5 23911 8 [23373F § - 5 538
Denivatives 16.923 — 16,923 = (5572 11,351
Short exchange-traded options 2774 — 2774 - — 2774

! Cefain amoanls bave been classfed as held for sale on the consobdaled statement of Snancial poskion as of December 31, 2022 For drther discussion, see Mole 24
Acguistong and Dhestiwes
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Cash cofateral, whithar pledged of receivid on derivalive inslrumints, s not considensd mateial and, accordingly, s net disdlosed by courttmanty.

8. Fair Value

Sea Nole 15, Consoidaled Company-Sponsomed Irmvestment Funds, for dsclosure of fair vatue of our consolidated company-sponsoed investment funds.

Fair value is defined as the price thal would De received 10 Sell an asset or pad 1o fransfer a liability (/2. the “exit prica”} in an ordery iransacton Detween
marked paricipants ® fe measurement date. The three broad levels of fair value hierarchy ang as Sollows:

= Level 1—CQuoted prices in active markets are available for identical assets or liabllities as of $e reporied date.
* Level 2—Ouoted prices in merkets that ane not active or ather pricing Inputs that ane eifer drectly or indirectly observable as of the reported dafe.

= Level 3—Prices or valuation lechmiques haf are both significant 10 Me fair value measurement and unobservable as of the reported date, These fnancial
instruments do nod have two-wary markets and are measured using menagement's best estimate of fair value, where the inguts into the determination of
fair value require significant management judgment of estimation.
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Waluation of our finandal instrurmens by picng cbseralbility levels as of Decsmber 31, 2022 and 2021 was a3 follows (in thousands):

I T, N 7 A I

December 31, 20220

Money markets $ a5 § — 5 — 5 — & — 5§ 85,521
Seaunties segregated (.S, Treasury Bills) - 1.521,708 - - - 1,521,705
Derivatives 1.768 - = 24 712
Investments:
Ecuaty securiies 125,655 an e 123 1434 159,067
Limited parinership hedge funds™ -- - -- .- 42 526 42
Tierv deposits’™ - 7.5 7.750
Crhatr irvesiments 6588 - - - 1,485 5,175
Total invesimens 1265 244 20898 129 1434 51,762 27518
Total assets monsured at Eair value 3 231833 % 1.5T2448 % 128 % 1484 § 51,7862 % 1859458
Derivatives 162 13550 - - - 3712
Conbingen] peniment arangements 247,309 247,308
Total liabil ties measured at fair valua 5 182 % 11550 % 247,300 % — 5 — % 1.0
Decamber 31, 2021:
Money markets 5 15195 5 - % - 5 - § - 5 151,156
Securities segregated (LS. Treasury Bills) — 1,503,828 — - - 1503828
Derivalives 332 15,030 - - — 15422
Innvestments
Equity secuiities 1449147 30284 126 145 —_ 134,472
Leong exchange-traded options 1883 — — — - 1,863
Limited partnership hadge funds™’ — — —_ —_ 850,920 50,920
Time deposits’® — - — — 21,004 21024
Crher emestments 2084 — — .- G015 15,109
Tl investiments 155,904 28284 126 145 77,958 273418
Total assets measured at falr value § oTa52 § 1558142 § 126 § 145 § TTesa § 1843834
Securties sold not yet purchased:
Short equities — corpomte 5 1084 % — % — 5 — 5 — 5 1,054
Short exchange-traded options 2774 — — — - 2774
Derivalives 1,186 15737 - - — 16,923
Contingen] peniment arangemeris = e 18,260 — - 38,260
Total linbilities measured at fair valus L] 5014 § 15737 % |/260 0§ — § — § 58,011

U Cerain amoants hawe been classfed as held for sake on the consobdaled statement of dnancial postion as of December 31, 2022 For rther discussion, see Male 24
Acquistions and Divestitures

A lvedtments medduned at far valie uding NAL (oF i squivalinl) 44 & pracical expadent.
Investments in equity method imvestees that ane not meassned at fair vabse in acoordanoe with SAAP.
A investments carmed af amertized cost thal ane not measured at fair value in accordance with GAAP.
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O invesirnents included in Level 1 of the fair vilue higrarchy indude our invesimint in & mutel fund measuned o faie vahee (55,7 million and S59.1 million

&5 of December 31, 2002 and 2021, respectivety). Other investments not measured af fair valug include (i) investments in slarup comparnies Tal do not

have a readéy available fair value (these investments were 50.3 million a5 of Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021), (i) investments in equity method invesiees that

are not measured at fair value in accordance with GAAR (during he therd guarter of 2022, we sold thes investment and the balance was reduced 1o zefo, as
fo 52.9 million as of Decernber 21, 2021). and (i} broker-dealer exchange memberships that ere nol measured of fair value in accordance: with

GAAP ($1.2 million and 32.8 million a5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respecively)

Wie pvowide balow a description of the fair value methoddogies used for instruments measured et fair value, as well as the general dassificatéon of such

Instrummenls pursuant 1o the valuslion hierarchy

= Movey markels: We nvest excess cash in vanous money manket funds thal are valued based on quobed prices in acive markels, these are induded in
Lewel 1 of the valuation hieranchy.

= Treasury Bills: W hoid LLS. Treasury Bills, which ane primanty segregated in @ special resene bank cusiody acoouent as requened by Rule 15¢3-3 of the
Exchange Act These securities are valued based on quoted yisids in secondary markets and are included in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy

= Equity securities: Our equity secunties consis! pnncpaly of company-sponsored mutusl funds with Nay's and vanous separately menaged poriolios
consisting primarily of equity and fived income mutual funds with quoted prices in active markets, which ang induded in Level 1 of the valeation hierarchy.
In addition, scme secunties ane velued basad on chservable inputs from recognized pricing vendors, which are induded in Level 2 of the valuation
higrancivy.

* Denvatives: We hold exchange-traded futures with counterparties that are induded in Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. In addiion, we also hoid
cumency forwand contracts. inberest rate swaps, credil default Swaps. option swaps and fotal retum Swaps with counterparies that ane valued based on
ooeservabie inpuls from recoghiz éd prcng vendors, which are incuded in Level 2 of he valuation hierandy.

= Chptiors: W hold exchange-iraded opions thal ang included in Level 1 of the valuation hieranchy

« Securities sold not yet punchased: Secunties sold not yet purchased, primanty reflecting shon positions in equities and exchange-raded options, are
inchuded in Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy, As of December 31, 2022 these stcurilies have been cassiied as heid for sale on e consclidated
statement of financial positon,

= Condingent paymen! arangements: Contingent payment amangements refate to contingent payment kabilities assocated with vanous soquisitons. Al
sach reporing date, we esimabe Se fair values of the conlingent consideration epeched 10 be pald upon probability-wieighted AUM and revenus
projections, using uncbservable market data inputs, which are induded in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy,

During thi years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, Shere wiste no Transfens between Level 2 and Level 3 secunties

The change in camying value associated with Level 3 dnancal insiruments camed at fair value, dassified as equily secunies, is as follows:

Decemibar 31

{in thesands )
Balance a5 of beginning of penod 5 126 % 125
Purchases - —
Sales — —
Realized gains (losses), ni - —
Unrealized gains (losses), net 3 1
Balance as of end of period ] 129 § 126

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on Level 3 finendal instruments are recorded in irsestiment gains and losses in e consoidated statements of
BCome.
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Our sequisitions may indudé contingent consideration drmangements as part of the purchase pdce. Thi change in cimying vk assocated with Livel 3
financial instruments carmied &1 tair valug, dassified &5 contingsnt payment arangements, is as folows:

December 31

{in thousands)
Balance as of begnring of period 3 /O 5 27,750
Addition Mz 7800
Accrebon 2 3,310
Changes in esimates = (£00)
Held for sale redasafication {28,859 -_—
Balance as of end of period 5 MTiE 0§ 38,260

In e third quarer of 2022 we acquired Carial and reconded & conlingent congiderabon labdty of S2209 milion (see Nole 24 Acquisilions and
Drvestiies). The liability, ranging Irom 2end 1o $850.0 milbon, i5 based on Carval achievng cenan perfoimance objscives vl & Siyear paniod ending
Decernber 31, 2027, The liability was valued using a forecast of future cash flows atinbutable 1o e perfomance objectives hat are discounted to present
value using a risk-adjusied discount rate. The expeciad revenue growth rmies mnge from 3.9% o 31.5%, with a weighted average of 14.1%, calculated using
curnulative rinvenues and range of revenue growth rates. The discount rabes range fom 4.1% 10 46%, with & weighied average of 2%, caltulated wsing
total contingent liabdities and range of discount rates,

As of December 31, 2022, induding the CarVal acquisition, e expected reverue growth rales range from 2 0% fo £3.9%, with a weighled average of
1.5%. calculsted using cumulative revenues and renge of revenue growth rates (exduding revenue growth from addiional AUM confributed in year of
eoquisifon). The dscount reles ranged from 1,956 1o 1004%, with @ weighted average of 4.5%. calculated using tolal coningent liabilities and range of
discourt rates, As of Decamber 31, 2021, the expecied revenue growth rates range from 208 1o £3.9%, with a weighied average of 11.9%. calculated using
cumulalive revenues and range of revenue growth rales (excudng revenue growth from additional AUM confribuled in year of acquisition). The discount
rates mnged from 1.9% to 10.4%. with aweighted everage of 7.0%, caloulated using total contingent lisbilities and range of discount mtes.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nenrecurring Basis
‘e did not heve any material assefs or liabilites thal were measured al fair value for imparment on a norrecuming basis during e years ended

Decemnber 31, 2022 or 2021,
10. Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, Net
Fumiture, equipment and leasehold nprovements, net consist of

Years Enced December 31

{im thousands)
Furnilure and equipment T  BDSSET 5§ 834161
Leasshold improverments 3 N0
Tedal B85, 187
Less: Accumuialied depreciabon and amorization [716,022)
Fumiturs, equipment and leasshald improvements, net 5 H 169,175

Depredation and amortization expense on fumiture, equipment and leasehold improvements were $39.7 million. 538 8 milion and 5282 milicn for the years
ended Decermber 31, 2022 2021 and 2020, respectively
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11. Deferred Sales Commissions, Net

Ther components of defermed sabes commissions, net for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were a5 follows (excluding amounts refated 1o fully
amorized defermed sales commisdons]

Years Ended December 11
{in thousands )
Carmying amount of defermed sales commissions % 172181 % 177,233
Less: Accumulated amorizaton (66, 164) {53.976)
Cusrulative COSC received |53, 74T 1448,358)
Deferred sales commissions, net 5 52,250 % T4.859

Amartizalion expense was 534 8 milion, $24 4 million and 527 4 millicn for the years ended December 31, 2022 2021 and 2020, respectively. Estimaled
fullre amorizaton expense refated io the December 31, 2022 net asset balance. assuming no addiional COSC ks recefved in fulure periods, 15 as lollows
{in thousands)

2003 §  DapE
2004 17.848
2025 5,308
2026 410
Total 5 5229
12. Debt

Credit Facility

AH has an 5800.0 millon commitied, unsecured senior revolving credi faciity (the "Credit Facility™) with a group of commerdial banks and other lenders,
which matures on Qctober 13, 2036, The Credit Fadlity prosides for possible increases in the principal amount by up to an aggregate incremental amount of
3000 million; any such increass is subject o the consent of the affecied lenders. The Cradit Faclity is available for AB and Sanford C. Bemsten & Co.,
LLC {"SCB LLC") busingss purposes, induding the suppor of AB'S comméndal paper program. Both AB and SCB LLC con driw dinectly under the Credit
Facity and managemeni may draw on the Creds Facility from e 1o e, AB has agreed 1o guaranies the obliga®ons of SCB LLC wnder the Credit Fadility

Thee Credit Facility containg affirmative, négothes and Snancial covenants, which ane cusiomany for faalibes of this type, induding réstriclions on dispositions
of assels, resiniclions on Bens. a minimum inerest coverage ratio and a madmum leverage rabo. As of December 31, 2022, we were in compliance wilh
these covenants. The Credil Fadlity also indudes customany events of defaull (with customary grace periods. as applicable), induding provisions under
which, upon the ocourmence of an event of default, afl outstending loans may be accelerated andior lender's commitments may be terminated. Also, under
such provisions, upon e ccowTmence of certain inschvency- o bankuptoy-related events of default, all amounts payable under the Credit Fadlity would
automatically become immedEately due and payable, and the lender’'s commitments aulomatically would temminate.

Amaounts under the Credit Facility may be bomowed, repeed and re-bomeswed by us from ime o ime un@ the mateity of te facility. Violuntary prepayments
and commitment reducions requestad by us ane permitied at amy Bnve without & fee (oiher than cuslomary breakage oosts releing 1o the prepayment of any
drawn loans) upon proper nolice and subject o a minimun dollar requirement. Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest a1 a rabe per annum, which
will e 2t our option, @ rte equal 1o an appicable margin, whech is subject 1o adjustment based on he credit ralings of AB. phus one of The Tallowing Indices:
Lendon inferbank Offered Rate; a ficating basa rale; of the Federal Funds rate.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had ne amounts cutsianding under the Credit Facility. During 2022 and 2021, we did not draw upon the Credil
Fascility.
EQH Facility

AB alsa has & T2000 million commifed, unsecined semor oedit Fadlity ("EQH Facility™) with EOH. The EOH Facility malires on November 4, 2024 and is
available for AB's general business purposes. Bormowings under the EQH Facility generally bear interest af a rate per annum based on prevailing evemight
cormmercial paper rates.

&6 AllianceBernstein

250/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Partli

The EQH Facility containg afirmative. negative and Snancal covenants which are substanSally similar 1o o in AB'S committed bank faciliies. The EQH
Faaity also indudes custormany events of defaull substantially similar 1o Swose in AB'S commifled bank fadlifes, incuding provisions under which, upen the
cccumence of an event of default. &l cuistanding loens may be accelerated andfor the lender’s commitment may be terminated.

Amounts under the EQH Fadility may be bomowed. repaid and re-bormowed by us from time to ime untl the maburity of the iaclty. AB or EQH mary reduce or

terrrinate the commitment al ary ime withoul penalty upon proper notice, EQH also may terminate the fadlity immedately upon a change of contrel of our

general pariner.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, AB had S500.0 miflion and 57550 million outstanding under Sw EQH Facility with mlerest rates of appradmabely 4.3%

end 0.2%, respectvely. Average daly bomowings on the EQH Facility duning 2022 and 2021 were S855.2 million and S404.6 milkon, respecively, with

weighled everage ineres rates of approximately 1.7% and 0.2%, respectively,

EQH Uncommitied Facility

In addiion o the EQH Facity, AB has a 5300 0 milllon uncommitied. unsecured senior aredit fadiity ("EQH Uncommitted Facility™) with ECQH. The EQH

Uncommitted Fadility matures on September 1, 2024 and is avalable for AB's general business purposes. Bomowings under the EQH Unsecured Facility

genemlly bear interest a1 a rle per annum based on prevailing ovemight commerndal paper rates. The EQH Uncommitied Facility contains affirmative,
end financial covenants which are substantally similar 10 those in She EQH Faciity, As of December 31, 2022 we had 250.0 millien outstanding

under the EQH Uncommitied Faclty with an inerest rate of approximately 4.3%, Average daily bomowings on the EQH Fadlty during 2022 weng
50 7 million with 8 weighted average inerest rate of approximately 4. 3%. Dunng 2021, we did not draw on the facility.

Commarcial Papar

As of both December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had no commerdal paper cutsianding. The commencial paper is shorl temm én nature, and as sudh, recorded
value is estimated to approvdémate fad value {and considersd a Level 2 security in the fair value hierardhy). Average daily bomowings of commercial paper
during 2022 and 2021 were $189.9 million and $157.0 milion, respectivily, with weighted avemge interest rates of spproimately 1.5% and 02%,
respectively.

Revolving Credit Facility

AB had & S200.0 million commitied, unSecured Senior revaiving credit Tacity {the “Revolver™) with a leading intemabional bank. which matured on November
16, 2021. Average daily bomowings under the Revolver for 2021 were $13.3 million with a weighted average interest rate of approxdmatehy 1.1%.

SCB Lines of Cradit

SCB LLC currenty has five uncommittied Enes of credit with five financial institutions. Four of these lines of cedt pamit us 1o borow up to an aggregate of
spprondmately S315.0 milion, with AB named as an addiional borower, whie the ofver Ine has no steted limit. AB has agreed fo guaraniee the obligafions
on SCB LLC under hese Ines of credl. As of Decermber 21, 2022 and 2021, SCB LLC had no oulstanding balance on these lings of aredil. Average daily
bomowings on the lines of credt duing 2022 and 2021 were 51.4 milion and 34T thousand, respectively, with wesghted average interest rases of
approdmately 3.7% and 0.99, respectively.

13. Leases
Wi bease affice space, oMoe equiprment and nemmiogr under vanous operating and finandng leases, Our cument leases hine nemaming lease terms of one

wyear 1o 15 years, some of which indude options to extend the leases for up to five years, and some of which indude eptions 1o lerminate the leases within
oné year. Since 2010, we have subJleased over one million square feet of office space.
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Leases induded in e condolidated statements of finandcal condition &5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021 wene &5 follows

m December 3, 2022 December 31, 2021

(im Eheusands)

Crperating Leases

Operating lease night-of-use assets Right-ol-use assels 5 414,105

Cpemating lease labiliies Lease Eabilites 482781

Finance Leases

Praperty and equipment. gross Right-ol-use asses 18,115 10,947

Amartization of Aght-of-use assats Right-ol-use assels B.310 {3.072)
Froperty and equipment, net 7675

Finance lease kabilties Lease kabilties 11,840 7.954

Thie Cornponents of lease expenss included in the consdidaled stalements of income for fiv years ended Dectmber 31, 2022 and 2021 were a5 follows

Years Ended December 31

Classification

{in thogsands )

Operating | ease cosl General and adminisirative 5 7198 B 97 465
Financing lease cost

Armorfizabon of Aght-ol-use assats Ganeral and adminisrative 3880 2355

Imberest on ease |iabilities Irteres! expense 0 107
Tital finanoe beage cogl 2462
‘ariable lease cost | General and administrative 39,827
Subleasa inoome General and adminisirative {37.317)
Met lease cost 5 5 102438

U ariabde lease expenss ncluces Speraling expentes real estate laxes and employes parking

The subleass income represents all revenues recesved from sub-lenants. it is primarily fixed base rental payments combined with vanable reimbuwrsements
such as operating expenses, real estate taxes and employes parking. The vast mejority of sub-tenent income is denved from our Mew York mefro sub-tenant
agreements. Sub-tenant income redated bo base rent is recorded on a siraight-ine besis.

Manantes of lease kabilities ane &s follows

Operating Leddss Frnancing Ledses

Year gnding Decamber 31, (in housands)
2023 5 ar488 5 a1 3 101,658
2004 104,596 3258 107,854
2025 Tae 2828 40,147
2006 35,808 1,810 37618
207 328 324 33,145
Thereatter 146,319 — 146,319
Totial lesses payTreents 454 352 12389 S 456,741
Less imterest {38.813) (449)
Presant value of leass lisbilites 3 415533 & 11,940
B AtlianceBemsiein
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W b sitried @ st thist commences in 2024, relating to appecdmatedy 166,000 square Toel of space in Mew Yok City. O estimated total base rent
cbligawn I:'&‘Iﬂl.ﬂtﬁﬂ 1acEs, npu‘a!ng expenges and ulibes) over the myﬁarlem ey iS5 approxdmately 5356 0 milkon

Lease term and discount rate:
Wveighted average remaining bease borm iyears);

Operating leases 125

Finance leases 34T
Weighted average discount rata:

Operafing leases 2589 %

Finance leases. 210%

Supplemenial mon-cash acivity related to leases are a5 follows:

Years Enced Decembar 11

(i thousands)
Right-of-usa assets oblaned in exchange for leass obligations''
Operating [eases 3 AMETH B 82,379
Firdince |aases 773 7782

! Repredants non-cath acivEy and, sceordinghy, is acl refecied in the sonsebdied slatements of cash flows,
14. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

A indicited in Nobe 13, we ledse ofice space. office equipment and technology under vanou s easing amangements. Th Rilune minimum payments under
nor-canclable leases, sublease commitments and related payments we are obligated to make, net of sublease commitments of third party lessees o make

payments 1o us. as of Decernber 31, 2022 are as fallos:

Sublease Receipls Met Payments

2023 5 1076 5 319 5 757
i el ] 1088 130.9) T8.0
2025 K] — £33
2026 557 — 557
2007 513 — 513
2028 and Tersafler A87.T — 4877
Total future minmum payments 5 BEALS 5 (g28) 3 BOG.T

Sea Node 13 for material lease commitments.

Legal Proceedings

On Decernber 14, 2022, four indrvidual pericpants in the Profit Sharing Plan for Employees of AkanceSemstein LP, (the "Plan”) filed a dass action
complaint (the “Complabnt™y in the LS. Districl Court for e Scuthem District of New York against AB, curent and former members. of the Compensation
Cornmatten, @nd the Ineesiment and Administralive Commifiess under the Flan. Plaintifs, who seek 10 represent & cass of all participants in the Plan fom
Decerber 14, 2016 1o the present. allege hal defendants vidialed ther fidecary duthes and engaged i prohdbited ransactions under the Employes
Redirernent kncome Seawity Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), by inciudng proprietary collecive investment trusts as investment options offered under
the Plan. The Complaint seeks unspealed damages, dsgorgernent and other egquitable relied. AB is prepared to defend itsell vigorously aganst these
daims. While the Wtimate outcome of this matter is cumently not deferminable ghven the mather remains in its sarty stages. we @0 nol believe this iigason
will i & malenal adverse efféct on our results of operations, financial cond@ion of liquidity.
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AB miry be invelved in viriois olber matiers, induding reguiatony inquires, administrathe prociadngs and lifgation, some of which may allége Sgnificant
damages. i is reasonably possible that we could incur losses pertaining 10 these olber matiers, but we cannal curmently estmate ary Such losses
Managernent. after consultation with legal counsel, cumentty balieves that e oulcome of any other individeal matter that is pending or threatened, or al of
therm combined, will not have a metenal adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condiion of liguidity. However, any inguiry, proceseding or
tigation has an element of uncertainty. managemaent cannot determine whether further developments relating to any other indnidual matier that is pending
o threatenéd, or all of thern oomibingd. will hive & mabénal adverse efliect on our resulls of operation, inancal condition of iquidity in &y Tulune repaning
peniod

Other

Curing 2010, as general partner of AllianceBamslan LS Red Estate LP (Real Estate Fund'), we comemittéd 1o irmest 3250 milion in the Real Estale
Fund. As of December 31, 2022 we had funded 522 4 milllon of this commitment, During 2014, as general partner of AlllanceBermnstein ULS, Real Estate i
L P ("Real Estate Fund Iy we commitied to irmeest 5273 million, as amended in 2020, in the Real Estate Fund I, As of December 31, 2022, we had funded
521.6 million of this commitment.

15. Conscolidated Company-Sponsored Investment Funds

W reguiarty provide seed capital 10 new company-sponsored investrent funds, As such, we may consolidate or de-consalidate a vanety of company-
sponsored investment funds each quarter. Cue to the smdanty of nsks related to our involvement with each compeny-sponsored Ewestment fund,
disclosures requined under the VIE model ane aggregated, such as dsclosures regarding the carmying amount and dassificaion of assels.

Wie are not reqguired to provide financial support 1o compamy-sponsored imvestment funds and only the assels of such funds are avaliable to setle each
fund's own Eabiliies. Our esposure 10 loss reganding consolidated compamesponsored (mvestment funds is Emited b our imeestment in, and our
managernent fee eamed from, such funds. Equity and debt holders of such funds have no recourse 10 AB's assels or to the general credt of A,

e balances of consolideted VIES nduded in cur consolidated statements of inancal condition were as Tollows:

December 3, 2033 December 31, F021

{in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents 5 12751 % 90,326
Investments 516,538 &13,025
Oner assets 44424 30,461
Total assels 5 S80T1N § Tane
Liabites 5 55520 S &7.000
Redeernable non-corroling imeesst 68 656 421,165
Partriers” capital atinbutable ko AB Unitholders 185,506 235643
Todal liabilies, redeemable non-controlling inerest and partners” capital 5 580711 % TaLEI2

During 2022, we deconsolidaied fve funds in which we had seed invesiments tolalng appresdmately 551.8 million as of December 31, 2021 due bo no lenger
having a contrailing Snancial inferast.

Fair Value
Cash end cash equivalénts indude cash on hand, demand deposits. owemnight commerdal paper and highly Bquid investments with original maturities of
thoes months or less. Due to the short-term natune of these insiruments, the recorded value has been defermined o approcdmate fair value,

a0 AllianceBermstein
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Viduation of consalidatid company-sponsontd investment funds' Snancial instruments by priding observability levels & of December 21, 2022 and 2021 was

a5 follows (in housands)

Dacomber 31, 2022:

ISt s s 125,708 s I35 520 s £

Dedivaives 1.524 6,023 7500
Toal assets moaswred at fair value 5 131,235 % 392853 % 5 524,068

Deivatves 5 14032 S B60RE 3 - 3
Todal lEabilfies measined & Tair valoe L 14,8932 L1 B B0 ] £ 21,540
Decomber 31, 2021:

Irrvisirments 5 165415 8§ 444253 8 3357 8 B13.025

Detivatves 622 5265 — 5587
Total assets measured at fair value 5 165037 % H%HE 5 3357 % Q‘Isﬂ

Derivadves -3 1829 5 2081 8 — 5 16,342
Tedal liabiliies msaswned ot fair valus 5 16,281 % 2051 % - % 18,342

Seo Note § for a description of the fair value methodoogies used for insiruments measuned al fair valye, a5 well a5 he general cassification of Swedh
instruments pursuant fo the valuation hierarchy,

The change in camying value associated with Level 3 financial instnuments camed at Tair value within consolidated company-sponsoned imestment fumds
was a5 fofows:

Deeeinbar 3T,

{in thoasands )

Balance as of beginning of pesiod = 3 619
Deconsalidated funds i {717}
Transfers {out) {206)
Purchases IETS
Sales (248} (7}
Resalized gains. net 3
Unresitzed {losses), net — 13
Balance as of end of period 5 - 3357

The Level 3 securitias primarily consist of corporate bonds that are vendor pricad with no mtings available, bank loans, non-agency collateralized morigage
cbligations and asset-backed securities.

Transhers info and oul of all levels of the fair value hierarchy ane reflected ot end-of-period fair velees. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on Level 3
financial instruments are recorded in imvestment gains and losses In the consolidated stalements of mcome.
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Derivative Instruments

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the VIES held S14.0 million and $12.5 million (nef), respectively, of flures. forwands, cpions and Swaps within thesr
portfolios. For the years ended Decernteer 31, 2002 and 2021, we recognized 59.4 milken and 50.7 million of losses, respectively, on Tese demvatives.
These gains and Josses are recognized in nvestment gains (losses)in the consolidated statements of imcome.

A5 of Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, the VIES held 527 mlllon and 509 million, respectvely, of cash colialéral payable to rade countempares This
chligation fo retum cash is reporied in the fiabdities of consolidated company-sponsored investment funds in cur consclidated stalements of finanaal
condition

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the VIES delivered 554 milion and $1.8 milkon, respectively, of cash collateral info brokerage accours. The VIES
report this cash cofateral in the consolidated company-sponsoned investment funds cash and cash equivalents in our consolidated statements of Tnancial
comdition,

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities
Cifsetting of derivative assels of consolidated comparry-sponsored investment funds as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

i A ounis Hed Amounts of
Offset in the| Assels Presented

Statemnert of| in the SEatement of
Amounds af Financial Fiman-cial
ized Assels Condition Condition

Cashh Colaberal Med
Received Bmeouant

(i thowsands

Dacember 31, 2022

Dertvalives < E T 5 a1 - 4
Dacember 31, 2021:

Derivalives 5 5887 § - 5 5B8T % - 3 (904y S 4983

Cefseting of denvative llabilities of consolidated company-sponsoned investment funds as of Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021 was as folays

Met Amounts
Gross Amounts of Liabililies
Critset in the

Amounis Btabenn e i
Recogr Financial Med
Liabil = Condition g Amount

(i thowsandsy

Decamber 31, 2023

Dervalives o4 : 5 4 : £ 5444 : 16,05
Decamber 31, 2021:
Derivalives ] 18242 § - & 18342 % = § (1824} & 16.518

Cash colialeral, whether pledged o received on derivalive instrurents, is nol consdersd malenal and, acoordingly, s nol disdosed by courleqparty

Nen-Consclidated VIEs

As of Decermber 31, 2022, e net assets of compeny-sponsoned inestment products thal are non-consaidated VIES are approdmalely 5464 bilion. our
mmisderunn mek of loss ks eur inmvestirent of 55,7 million in these VIEs and our advisory fees recevable from these VIES are 554, 2 milkon, A5 of December 31,
2021, the net assels of company-sponsoned invesiment products al were non-consolidated VIES was approodmately SE8.9 billion; our madmum sk of loss
‘WS our investment of $3.8 millicn in these VIEs and our advisory fees recefvable from ese VIEs were $75.7 million
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16. Net Capital

SCB LLC s registersd a5 & broker-dealer under e Exchange Act aind i3 subject 1o the minimum ret capital requirements imposed by the LS. Sedaurities
and Exchange Commission ("SECT), SCB LLC computes its nel capitel under he allemative memhod permitted by the applicable nde. which requires sat
mmimum net capital, &s defined, equals the greater of 51 million or two percent of aggregate debit items ansing from customer ransactions, as defined. As
of December 31, 2022, 5CB LLC had net capital of $323.1 milion, whech was 5284 9 million in excess of e minimum nel capital reguirement of 5382
million. Advances, dividend payments and other equaty withdrawals by SCB LLC are resiicled by regulations impesed by the SEC, T Financial Indusiny
Riguiatony Autority, Inc., and other Securilies dgences.

Cur UK -based broker-dealer (s a member of the London Siock Exchange. As of December 31, 2022 il was subject to finandal resources requirements of
£45.4 million imposed by the Finandal Conduct Autherty of the Uniled Kngdom and had aggregate requistory Snancisl resources of S51.0 milion, an
excess of 556 milkon over the required bevel

AllianceSemsiedn Imvestments, inc. ("ABT), another one of our subsidianes and the dsinbutor andior undereniter for certain company-sponsared mutusl
funds, is registered as a broker-dealer under the Exchange Act and is subject 1o the minimum net capital requirements imposad by the SEC. As of
Decernber 31, 2022 AR had net capital of 553 5 million, which wis 5522 milion in exoidss of s required net capitad of 0.3 millien.

Many of our subsidiaries arcund the world are subject to minimum net capital requirements by the local law's and regulations to which they are subject As of
Decernber 31, 2022 each of our subsidianies subject o B minimurm net capital requirement satisfied the applicable requirernent.

17. Counterparty Risk

Customer Activities

In the normal course of business. brokerage acihilies invalve the execulion. setlerment and finandng of varous customer securities trades. which may
expose our broker-dealer cpemtions to oftbalance sheet nsk by requinng ws to purchass or sl securities at presading market prices in the event the
Ccushomer is unable to Tuifill its contractual ohiigations

Cur customer secunties acivities are fmnsacted on efther 8 cash or margn basis. in margn rensactions, we extend credit to the customer, subjedt o
various regulatory and intemal mangn requinements. These transactions are collateralized by cash of securities in the customes’s account. In connection with
these activities, we may execule and dear cusiomer ransactions imalving the sale of securities nol yel purchased. We seek to condrol e risks assocated
with Fdrgin iransactionsg by requiing customerns 10 maintam collateral in compliance with the alorementionsd reguiatony and intémal quidslings, YWe monilor
required margn levels daily and, pursuant o Such guideines, require custormers 1o deposit addiional collateral, or reduce positons, when Necessary. &
majority of cur customes margin accounts ane managed on a discreélionary basis whaneby we maintsin contral over the investmeant activity in the accounts.
For these discretionary accounts, our margin defidency expoesne is minimized by our maintaining a diversified portiolio of sequrfies in thi: accounts. our
discretonary authenty and our U5 -based broker-dealer's role as custodian.

In accordance with indusiry practice, we record customer transactions on a setiement dale basis, which generally s two business days after frede date for
our LK and LS. operations. We ane exposad o nisk of loss on these ransadions in the event of the customer’s inability o mesd e tenms of their
confracts, in which case we may have 1o purdhase of Sall inancial insiruments a1 prévaling makel phoes. The ks we assume in conhecion with these
transactions ane not expecied fo have a malenal adverse effect on cur financial condtion of results of operations.

Other Counterparties

Wiz are engaged in various brokerage, futures, forwards, oplions and swap activities on behall of clients, in which counterparties prmarily incude broker-
dealers, banks and other fnancal insitutions, In the evenl these courterparies do nod fuifill thesr obégations, our dients and we may be exposed 1o loss.

The risk of defaull depends on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. It is our policy fo reviiw, as necessary. sach counterparty’s creditworthiness.

In connection with Securty borrowing and lending amangements. wi enter into collpleralized agreements, which may resull in polential boss in T cvend the
counterparty 1o a fransaction is unable to flfill ils confracheal cbligaions. Security bomowing amangements require us to deposit cash coltateral with the
tender. With respect to security lending amangements, we recetve collaleml in the form of cash in amounts generally in excess of the marked value of he
securiBes loaned. Ve atternpt fo mitigate credit risk assocated with these activities by establishing cred! limits for each broker and monitoring thiese limits on
& dally basis, Addtonally, security bomowing and lending collateral is marked 1o market on & daily basis, and additonal collatersl i deposited by of retumsd
10 LS 85 necessary
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Wi enier indo various fulwnes, forwands, aptions and Swaps primanly fo economically hedge cortain of our Seed money imesiments. Ve may be exposed 1o
credil losses in e event of nonperlommance by courlerparties to these denvatve Bnancial instruments. See Note 7, Devvatve Instruments Tor Rether
disCussion

18. Qualified Employee Benefit Plans

‘W maintain a qualifed profit sharing plan covenng LS. employees and certain foreign employees. Employer contributions ane discrefionary and generally
Birmnited 1o the medmurn amoun] deductible for federal income tax puposes. Aggrgate contrbutions wise S17.5 million, S16.5 million and §15.6 millien for
2022, 2021 and 2000, respectively,

Wi maintan several defined contribution plans for foreign employees working for our subsidianies in the United Kingdom, Australia. Japan and other
lozatons outside e United Stales. Emplover contnbutions generaly afe concistent with regulatory requrements and tax limits Defned contributon
expense for forgign entbes was $10.2 million, 59.8 milion and SE.4 million in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively

W maintain a gualified, nencontibutory, defined beneS! retirement plan |"Retirement Plan”) covering curment and former employees who were employed by
AB I the United States prior to October 2, 2000, Benefls are based on years of credided service, average final base salary (85 defined in the Retinement
Flan) and prmary Social Security benefits, Sendce and compensation afer December 31, 2008 are nod taken info account in determining partcpants
refirement benefits.

Qur pedicy i to salishy cur funding clbligition Tor ddch year in an amount ot kess than e minimum requined by ERISA and nol griater than the masdmum
amount we can deduct for federal income fax purposes. We did not make a confribution to the Refrement Plan dunng 2022, We do not curently anticipale
that we will confribute 1o the Retirement Plan during 2023, Contribution estimates, which are subject to change, are based on regulatory requirements, fubre
markel condilions and assurnplions wsed for achuarial computations of the Retirement Plan's obligations and assets. Management, al the present ime. has
nof determingd the amount, if 8y, of addiional future contributions that may be requingd.

The Relirerment Plan's proecied benelil obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status {amounts recognized in the consolideled stalements of
financial condton] were as folows:

Yoars Encded Decembar 31

{in thousands )

Change in prajected benafit obligation

Prajected beneht obligation af beginning of year

s 141862 8 151,124

ISt cost 3958 3,784
Flan sefllements 4, 524) {5.803)
Actuadial (gain} {37.839) {4.447)
Benefits paid (2877} {2.806)
Projected benefit obligation af and of year 100,450 141,862
Change in plan assets:
Fian assats &l far vaiee al beginning of year 130,939 12502
Actual refum on plan assels {27,448} 14,525
_Erruuyerwmmrtlm — —_
Plan setflernents (4.524) {5.803)
Benedits paid (2977} {2.806])
Flan assets at fair value al end of year 25990 130,933
Fundad status 5 (h460) 3§ {10.823)

Effective December 31, 2015, the Relrement Flan was amended to change the acheanal basis wsed for comearting a life annuity benafit ta opSonal forms of
payment and cormeering benefits payable al age 85 o eadier commencement dafes. This prior senvice oot will be amortized over future years.

a4 AllianceBernstein
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The amounts recagnized i ofner comprehansive income {less) for the Retirerent Plan for 2022, 3021 and 2020 were as follows:
{in thouisands)

Unrecognized net gain (loss) from expenence diffenent from th assumed and effects of changes
and assumplions 5 5 15858 & {4.0889)
Prior service cost 24 24 24

G543 15882 {4.085)
InCome tix | Expense) (33) (BT} {216]
Other comprebansive incoma (loss) ¥ G510 % 15,785 5 (4,281)

Thee gain of 56.5 million recognized in 2022 was primanily dué o changes in the discount rate and lump Sum inlerest rates of (338.7 million), setement 0ss
recegrized of ($1.7 million) and the recognized actuanal loss of (31,0 milion), offset by actual eamings 1E55 than expected eamngs on plan assels (334.0
millign), changes in the corsus data (505 milion) and changes in adustments for participants who recsived their pension 25 & lump sum (S0.4 millier ),

The gain of 5158 mdlion recognized in 2021 was primarily due to actual eamings exceading expected eamings on plan assets {582 milion), changes in the
discount rate and lump sum interest rates of (556 milkon), setiernent loss recognized of (52.0 million) and the recognized actuadal less of (51.5 milfion),
offsat by changes in the census data (51.0milllon) and changes in the mortalty assumption ($0.2 milkon),

The loss of $4.3 milion recognized in 2020 primarity was due fo changes in the discount rate and lump sum interest rates (S16.7 million). offset by achual
eamings exceedng expecied eamings on plan assets ($10.4 million), changes in the mortality assurmption (31,0 million), the recognized ackeanal loss
{514 rfllion) and changes in census data (50,4 million)

Fergign refrement plans and an individual's retinement plan maintained try AB ane nol material 1o AB"s consdlidated finanaal statements. As such, disdosure
for these plans is not necessary. The reconaliafion of the 2022 amounts recognized in other comprehensive incorme for e Retirernent Flan as companed o
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (“0C) Statement™) is as falows:

m Retired Individual|

(in busands)
Recognized actuerial gain 3 6518 % wr s ez 6922
Amortization af prior senice oot a4 - - 24
Changes in employes benefit refated items 5.543 107 256 6,946
InGome tax |Expense) (33} — (62} 1351
Employes banalit rlated items, net of tax 3 6510 3 107 3 345 5851

Thee amouns incuded in accumulated olher comprehensive boss for Te Retirerment Plan a5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as folows:

{im thowsands)
Unrecognized riet bloss from expéience diferent from that assumed and effecls of changes and assumplions -3 (37,249} 8 {43.768)
Prior senvice cost (B8] (683]
{37.908) 144.451)
Incoame tax benefit 177 210
Accumulatad other comprehensive loss 5 (3T, 731) % (44,241)

The: amortization period over which we ane amortizing the koss Tor the Rerement Plan from accumuiated olher comprehensive income is 27.9 years. The
estimated prior sendce oost and amortization of 10ss Tor the Retirement Plan hat will be amortized from accumutated alher comprenensive income over the
et year gne 524,000 and 51,0 milkon, respectively,

The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan was 510005 million and $141.8 milien as of Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, respectivety

22 Anrual Repodd a5

259/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tabie of Contents

Part I

The digcount rales wsed 10 detéming benefil obligations as of Decembaer 31, 2022 and 2021 (measurerment dabis) wene 5500 and 2 20%, respecthihy.
Benedt payments are expected to be pasd as follows (in thousands |

2023 5 10,121
2024 B.TE7
20025 8058
2006 7B
207 8743
2005- 2032 38,404

Med expense under the Retirement Flan conslsted of:

Wears Eniled December 31

in Hypusands)
Intenesi cost on projected beneff cbiigations 5 3md % 4443
Expected rétum on plan assets (6.351) {5.084)
Amortization of prior senvice cost 24 24
Satgement boss recognized 1 2,024 .
Recognized achuarial loss 1,042 1,447 1,386
Mot pansion sxpanse 5 11§ aE § (231}

Actusrial computations used to determine net paniodic costs were made Utilizing the fallowing weighted-average assumptions:

YWeads Endlod Decembier 31

255% 3.5 %
5.25% 5.50%

Cescount rate on benefit obligatons
Expecied long-term rate of retum on plan assels

In devedoping the expected long-term rate of retum on plan assels of 5.25%, management considered the historcal relums and future expectations for
refums. for each assel category, as well as fhe farget asset afocation of the portiolio. The expected fong-term rate of retum on assets is based on weighted
average expected reiums for each assel dass

Asof December 31, 2022, e moriality projection assumplion used he generaional MP-2021 improvement scale, which ks consistent with Te improvement
scale used in 2021, Prior to 2021, mortality was projected generaiionally using the MP-2020 improvernents scale, The base mortality assumption used is the
Sociaty of Aduares Pri-2H2 base moraility table for private secior plans. with a whilecollar adjustiment, using the coninganl annuitant table for
beneficianes of deceased participants

The Intemal Revenue Service (“TRS) recenty updated the mortality tables used 1o determing lump sums. For fiscal year-end 2022, we reflected the most
recentty published IRS table for lump sems assumed to be paid in 2023, We projecied futune mortality for lump sums assumed 1o be paid after 2023 using
the cument base mortality tables (RP-2014 backed off to 2006 and projection scale of MP-2021

The Retirernent Flan's assat allocation percentages consisted of

Yoars Ended December 1

Equity 46 % £2%
Dedt secirities 42 ]
Omher 12 10
Total 100 % 100 %

Thié guidelings regarding allocation of assels are formalized in e Invesiment Policy Statemént adopted by the Imedsment Comemities for the Retirement
Fian. The chiective of the investment program is to enhance the portiolio of the Retirement Plan throwgh total retumn (capital appreciation and incomee),
ﬂ'ueretq'rgiomuung the ongoing ability of the Retrernent plan to meed future lisblifies and cbligatens, while minimizing Twe need for addtional conbutions.
The guicelines specify an allocation
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weighting of 108 10 35% for llabéity hedging investments (fangat of 24%) 15% to 4086 for refum seeking investments (larget of 27%) 5% to 35% for nisk
meligating mnesiments Lrged of 10%:), 1086 to 355 for dn.-erslﬂ-ln? msﬂmmts{ of 21%) and 5% 1o 35% for dynarmec asse! alocation (lamget of ls%h
||‘Nﬁh'nﬂ'r'f|$ in muhaal % ds (and other altemative investments), and olher m&d Investment vehdes are permitted Imvestirment P
Saternent. Investments are pém in overlay portiolios (reguiated mutual funds). which ane designed 1o manage shart-lerm portfolio risk and mitigate e
effect of extreme oulcomes By vanying he allocation of & portioso.

Sew Note 8, Fair Vaive for a descniption of how we measure the fair value of our plan assets.
The valuation of cur Retirement Flan assels by pricing observability kevels as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was as follows (in thousands)

Decambier 31, 2022

Cash

L5, Treasury Sinps

Firied incorme mutual lunds

Fixed incorme securiies

Equety madual funds

Equity securites

Tolal arssels m the Tair value hierandy - [ 3
Investments measured 8l net assets value — — — 17,067
Investrments at fakr value ] 40,582 % 38,531 ] 5 a5, oo

Decamber 31, 2021

Cash 5 a7 5 — 5 — 5 47
U5, Treasury Sinps — 32 355 - 32385
Fied incorme mufual unds 17 477 —_ —_ 17477
Equety masual funds 43,786 — - 43,786
Equity securites 14,501 - = 14,801
Total essets in the fair value hierandhy TEAN 32 355 — 108,466
Investments measured &1 net assets value — — - 22473
Investments &t tair value ] eI % 32355 3% — 5 130,939

During 2022 and 2021, the Refrement Flan's investments include the following:
= LS. Treasury stips, (2ero-coupon bonds),

= ond foed income mutual fund in 2022, 85 compired 10 two foed income mutssl funds in 2021, The Tund induded in bolh 2022 and 2021 pursues an
Bgressive invesiment mmﬂﬂng a vm of msset dasses. This fund secks inflation profection from imvestments around the giobe, both in
developed and em counines, The a monm fund inciuded in 2021 saughl ta g Income consistent with preservation of capital.

= 5 equity mutual funds in boih 2022 and 2021, which focus on both U 5.-based and non-U.S.-based equity securies of verious capitalization sizes
ranging from small to large capitalization and diversified portiolics within thase capitalization renges;

= one asset allocabon muteal fund, which seeks fo moderate overall volatifty and limit extreme outcomes in times of market siress. without sacrificing long-
term growth polential. This fund continuousty adjusts the mix of global equities. bonds and reated “opporunistic” assets based on our view of prospective
mirked condtions:

ond Separalely mans BECOUNT, iR Lot ﬂlmmb-eg L L& Corporate indéx This portiaio imvests in ULS doliar denominabed
imeesstment grade fiy mmmnaﬁmﬂa?gas 10 years to matur "‘ﬂ

= o albemalve imesiment. securtized assels hedge fund with & fﬂ:us on molgage ofedit, Ity Through investment in Credil Risk Transfer
Securities, residential mongage-backed securties. commerndial morigage-backed secunties and other esset-backed securfes. and

invesiments measured a1 nel asset value, anmwmusnmmz and 2021; one fund 15 8 longshon equity-fotused mult-manager hedge
fund invesling across indusiries and geographies. The second fund sesks 1o provide afractive risk-adjusted returms over Rl market cycles with |ess
velatity han thal of broad equity markets by aliocating all or substantially all of thesr assats among portiolio managers Birough portiolo furids thal employ
abroad range of irmvestiment mhﬂlﬂ.
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19. Long-term Incentive Compensation Plans

Ve maintsn an unfunded, non-qualifed incentive compensaion progrim known 85 the AllanceBemsten ncenthve Compensation Award Program
{ Incantive Comperaation Program”) under which annual awards may be granted to elighle employess. See MNole 2. "Summary of Significant Accounting
Poilicies — Long-Termn Incentive Compensation Fians” for a discussion of e award provisions.

Under the incentive Compensation Program. we made awards in 2022, 2021 and 2020 aggregating $164.3 milion. $184.1 million and 51774 million,
respectively, The amounts chiarged b employes compensation end benefits expense for the wears ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 were $160.1
million, $173.4 milkon and 51768 million. respectvety

Effiective a5 of Seplember 30, 2017, we eslabished the AB 2017 Long Temm Incentve Flan (2017 Plan’), which was adopied at a special mesing of AB
Helding Unithiciders hild on September 20, 2017, The folloang forms of awards may be granted 1o employess and ERgible Directors (drectors who satishy
apphcable indépendence slandands) under the 2017 Pland (i) resiricied AB Holding Uinits of phaniom resticted AB Holdng Unils (a “phantom” awand i5 a
confractual right to receive AB Holding Units at a later date or upon a specified event) (il) options fo buy AB Holding Unids; and (i} other AB Holding Unit-
based awards (nduding. without limitation, AB Holdng Unit apprediation rights and performance awands). The pupose of the 2017 Plan is to promole he
interest of AB by (i) atiracting and retaning talented officers. employess and direcions, (i) motvating such officers. emplovees and direcliors by means of
perfomance-reated ncentives to achheve longer-range business and operational goals, (iil) enabling such officers, employees and directors 1o parbcipate in
the longelermn growth and financied success of AB, and (v) aligning the interests of such oMcers, employees and direcions with thase of AR Holding
Unitholders. The 2017 Plan will expire on September 30, 2027, and no awards under the 2017 Fian will be made afler that date. Under the 2017 Plan. the
aggregate number of AB Holding Units with respect to which aweards may be granted is 80 million, induding no mone than 30 million newhy-issued AB
Helding Linifls.

A5 of Decemnber 31, 2022, no options 1o buy AB Holdng Units wene cutstanding and 28,795,964 AB Halding Units. net of withholding tax requirements, were
subject to other AB Holding Unit awards made under the 2017 Flan or the AllisnceBernsiein 2010 Long Term Incentive Fian, as amended. an equity
compensation plan with similar terms that was canceled on September 20, 2017, AB Helding Unit-based awards (including oplions) in respect of 30,204,038
AB Holding Units were avalable for grant under the 2017 Plan &5 of December 31, 2022

As of Decernber 31 2021, no options to buy AB Helding Linkts had been granted and 28,109,084 AB Holding Linits, net of withholding tax requirements. were
subject 1o other AE Holding Unit awangs made under the 2017 Flan or the AllenceBemsien 2010 Long Term Incenlive Flen, as amended, an equity
cornpensation plan with similar lerms that wes canceled on Septemiber 20, 2017, AB Holding Unit-based awands (including options) in respect of 31.800.91E6
AB Holding Units were avalable for grant under the 2017 Plan as of December 31, 2021,

Option Awards

Wi did ol grant any options to buy AR Holdng Uinits duning 2022, 2001 or 2020, Historically, options granted o employces generally were exencisable ata
rate of 20% of the AB Holding Units subject o such options on each of the first fve anniversary dates of the date of grant, oplions granted to Eligible
Dineciors generally were exercisable at o rate of 22.3% of the AB Holding Linits subject to such cpBons on each of the first Three anniversary dates of the
dafe of grant
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Th cption-relatid actvity n our eauity compensation plins during 2022 is a5 follows

Cutstanding a8 of December 31, 2021
Granhbed = -
Exercised (5,774) X012
Forfetted —_ —_
Expired — —
Oudstanding as of Decernbaer 31, 2022 e -3 - - 5 —
Exarcisable as of December 31, 2002 e 5 — — 5 —
Vestad or expacted 10 vest as of December 31, 2022 s 5 — — 5 —

The total intrinsic value of options exendsed during 2022, 2021 or 2020 was 30.2 million. 52 2 milkon and $32 368, respectively.

Lirder the fir vafue method, compensalion expense is messured af the grant date Dased on the estirmabed fair value of e oplions awarded | delemingd
using the Black-Scholes option valuation model) and |s recognized over the reqguisile service penocd. As we did not grant any oplion awards in 2022, 2021 or
26, no compansation expense was recorded. As of December 31, 2022, there was no compensation expense related 1o trwested oplion grants not yet
recognized in the consolidated staternent of inCome

Restricted AB Holding Unit Awards

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Board granted restricled AB Holding Uinit swards to Eligible Direclors. These AB Holding Unils give the EBgible Dineclors, in
st instances, all he rights of oiver AR Holding Unithalders, subiect ba sueh resticions on ransher as the Board may impese

Wie award restricled AB Holding Urits to Eligble Direciors that vest ratably over three years. (four years for awards granted in 2021 and previous years), We
fully expensed these awards on each grant date, as there is no sendce requirement. Grant detais related to these ewards is as follows:

2020

Restricted Units Awarded 30,870 5,358 50,232
‘Welghted Average Grant Date Fair Value 5 3;BEE 5 4424 5 2369
Compensation Expense (in milkons) 5 12 % 16 5 12

On Aprl 28, 2017, Seth Bemmstein was appanied President and Chiel Executive Officer. In connection with the commencerment of his employment, Mr
Bermstein was granied restricted AB Holding Units; these Unils were fully amortized as of December 31, 2021, Compensation expense related to Mr.
Barrestein’s resticted AR Holding Linit grant was $0.3 million and 0.9 million for the years ended December 31. 2021, and 2020, respectively.

Under the Incantive Compensation Program, we awarded 4.2 milion resticted AB Haoldng Units in 2022 (which induded 3.8 million resfricied AR Hoiding
Lnits in December for the 2022 year-end awands as well as 0.4 million addifonal restricted AB Holding Units granted earier durng the year relating fo the
20 year-end gwards), with grant date fair values per resfricted AB Holding Unit ranging between $35.84 to 550.94.

‘W awarded 3.5 million restricted AB Holding Units in 2021 (which included 3.3 million restricted A8 Holding Unils in December for the 2021 year-and
ewards as well a5 0.2 million addtional restncled AB Hoiding Units granted earfier during the year redaing fo the 2020 vear-end ewards). with grant dabe fair
visllies pef resiricled AR Halding Unit ranging batwisn S32 10 to $50.94
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W awarded 5.3 million restricted AR Holdng Units in 2020 (which included 5.0 million nestricted AB Holding Units in December for the 2020 yedr-end
ewards &3 well as 0.3 million addiional restricted AB Holding Units granied eanier dunng the year refated 1o the 2019 year-end awards), with grant date fair
values per resiricled AB Holding Lnit ranging between 528 75 to 53210

Ressiricied AB Holdng Units awarded under the Incentive Compensation Program in 2020 and years pnor genenally vested in 25% inrements on December
1% of each of fhe four years immedately Tollowing the year in which the award was granted, Awangs granted in 2021 and subsequent years generally vest in
3335 Increments on Decemibser 1% of each of the three years iImmediately following the year in which the sward is granted.

Wi also dward resticted AB Holding Units in conneclion with certain employment and separation agreements. as well as relocation-rélated performance
Bwards, with westing schedules generally ranging betwesn two and ten years. Grant details relaled 1o these awarnds is as Tollows

(in milbons excheding share prices)

Restriched Unils Awarded (0 24 0.4
Grani Date Fair Value Range 234,66 52006 - 553 86 $18.80 - 53642
Compensation Expense 3 - 408 3 321

The fair value of the resfrictad AB Holding Unils is amortized over the requisite sarvice pencd as compensalion expense. Changes in unvesied restncted AB
Helding Linits durng 2022 are as follows:

Unvested as of December 31, 2021 18,130,740
Graned 4,700 600
Vesbed {(TET1,109)
Forfered (396.995)

Unvested as of December 31, 2022 14772238 & 38,82

T total grant dale fair valwe of resticted AB Holding Undls that vested was S246.2 million, 51990 milkon and $155.0 million duning 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respecively. As of December 31, 2022, the 14.772 236 unvested resricled AB Holding Units consist of 10,148,408 resfricled AB Holding Units that do not
have a service requirement and hawve been fully expensed on the grant date and 4,623 825 restincled AB Holdng Units hat have B senice requirernent and
will be expensed over the required sendce penod. As of December 31, 2022 there was 5114.0 million of compensafion espense related o urnvesied
restricted AB Holding Uil awards granted and not yel recognized in the consolidated staternent of Incame. We expect 10 recognize the expense over a
weighted everage period of 6.1 years

20. Units OQutstanding
Changes in AB Linits outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows

w2 | 2o
Cutstanding as of January 1, 271,453,043 270,500,658
Options axercsed 5774 143,211
Uniits issued ' 17.32 3.917.437
Units retired’ ! {2,805, 1286) (3,117, 263)
Outstanding as of December 3, 285,879,913 271,453,043

U Inchudes 15321535 Units issued as a resull of the Carval acquisiton.
A Durng 2022 and 2021, we purchased 2,500 and 5400 AB Unis, respectively, in private iransactions and retined them,
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21. Income Taxes

AB 5 a private partnership for fedeml income: tax purposes and, accandingly. i5 not subject 10 federal or Slate copomie income Moes. However, AB is
subject 1o @ 4.0% New Yo City unincorporated business tax (“UBT™ ). Domeste oofporate Subsicianes of AB. which ane subject 10 federal, state énd local
income taxes, genermlly are induded in the fing of a consolidated federal income tax retum: with seperate state and local income tax retums bedng filed.
Forelgn corporate subsidaries are generally subject to laxes in the forelgn jurisdicions whene they are loceted

In orded 1o presere A8'S stalus as a private parinership for federal income la purposes, AB Units must nol b2 considersd publicly raded. The AB
Fartnership Agreement provides thef all ransfers of AB Units must be approved by EQH and the General Pariner, EQH and the General Pariner approve
only those ransfers permitted pursuant io one or more of the safe harbors contained in the refevant Treasury reguiatons. i AB Units were considered
readity radahle, AR'S net income would Be subject 1o federnl and Stote corporate income fax, sigrificantly reducing its quartery distibusions to AE Haldng.
Futhermane, should AB enter inlo a subsiantial new line of business, AB Holdng, by virkee of its ownership of AB, would lose its siatus as a publicly fraded

partnership and would became subject 1o corporate intome tax. which would reduce matenally AB Holdng's net incorme and its quanieny dislmbutions to AB
Halding Unitholders.

Earmings baford income s and incoems T e ense const of,

ears Ended December 31

I N TR
{in thowsands)
Eamings béfone income taxes
United States 5 2 5 1007847 § 743687
Fersign {25818 208,615 153,749
Total 5 B15098 § 1216482 % BOT A
Income tax expenssa:
Parinership UBT 5 LEe 5 688 &5 3,35
Corporate subsdianes
Federal 1457 TED 1,495
Slate and focal o431 956 o04
Foreign .37 58080 44088
Canment tax exqense ] 66,737 40,841
Desfesmed tax | 4,008) {4.188)
Income tax axpanss ) 3638 % B2TH  § 45,653
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Thete principal feasons for thi Effierence between the effechae tay rates and Se UBT stabutory tax rate of 4 0% ane as Tolows

Yeads Ended December 31

(in thpusands)
UBT statuory rate 5 IzEM 40% § 48859 40% § 36297 4.0%
Corporate subsdianes’ federal, siate, and local 1,450 02 1,322 02 2,025 0.2
Foreign subsidianies taxed at different rates 32 554 40 43,019 35 33 963 37
FIM 43 reserve (release) — - — — {1.886) [0:2)
LIBT bassingss allocalion percentoge rade change - 23 —_ ) —
Defesred tax and payable write-offs 01 1,003 01 {837} (0.1}
Foreign outsde basis difference {1,635} 0.2} 1,492 o1 3 —
Amended 2017 relum - - - — {21} =
Effect of ASC 740 adjusiments, miscellanecus taxes, and
offver 5,366 a 1,789 01 2 654 03
Tax Credis 15.272) [0 E) — - - =
Income nol taxable resulting from use of UBT business
apporionment faciors and effect of compensaton charge {26.636) (3.3) (34,589} (2.8 (26,303 (28]
Income tax expense and affective lax rate § 38538 48% § 6278 52% § 45553 5.0 %

Wi recognize the effects of & fax posiion in the fnandal stetements only if, &5 of the reporing dale, it is “more likely than noll” to be sustained based on its
technical merits and their applicability 1o the facts and dreumstances of te tax position, In making this essessement, we assume that the taxing authonty will
Examine the tax position and have Tull knowledge of all relevan infonmation

A reconcliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is a5 follows:

Yeurs Emded December 31

{in housands)

Balance as of beginning of pariod 5 2B 3§ 2838 3§ 5,706
Addiions for pior year e positions - — —
RiedUcsons for pROT year tax postions s —
Additions for curment year tax positions - - -
Reductons for cument year {an postions. - — —
Reductions rilated to dosed years/setlements with tio authonSes = — {2.868)

Balance as of ond of period § 2BE & 2838 § 2838

The amount of unrecognized tes benefits as of December 31, 2022 2021, and 2020, when recognized, is recorded as a reduction to iIncome 1ex expense
and reduces the company's effective lax rate,

Inleres and penaties, if any, refating 1o tax positions are reconded in income [ax expende on Te consdidated statements of income. There was nd inbenast
expense recorded in 2022 or 2021, The total amount of interest expense recorded i income fax expense (credit) during 2020 was $(0.4) milllon. As of

December 31, 2022 and 2021, thera is no accnued interest recorded on the conscidated statements of firandal condition. There wene no penaities as of
Decernber 31, 2022 2021 and 2020

Ganerally. the compary |s no honger subject 1o LS. federal, state or local income tax examinations. by tax euthonties for any year prior to 2018, except as sat
forth below.

Durirg Sue fourth quarter of 2020, the City of Mew York notfied ws of an examnation of AB's UET returns for the years 2017 firdugh 2019, The examination
is ongaing and no provision with respect to this examination has been recorded
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Currendly, héne an no income tax eaminations of our sgnificant nonULS. subdidinfies. Years thal remain opén and may be subject to examination vary
under bocal ew and range from one b0 Seven years

As of December 31, 2022, It is reasonobly possible that 528 million of our wrecognized tax benefits will change within the need 12 months due to the
expiration of the statute of kmitations.

Dederred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the camying amounds of assets and kabilites for finencal reporing
purposes and e amounts used for ncome tax purposes. The tax effect of significant items compasing e net defered tax asset (Eability} is as follows:

Yeurs Ended Decomber 31

[ Eausands)
Defesmed tax asset
CeMMgrences between book and tax bass
Benefits from net operaling loss camyfonsands 5 4 7833
Longsterm incentive compensation plans 24,468
Investment basis differences 5,523
Depreciation and amortization 3,942
Lesise labity 5327
Investment i forengn subsidanes -_
Ta credit camyforwarnd -
Criher, primarity Bcorued expenses deductble when paid 4917
80,220 52,010
Less: veluation alowance (38110 {3,828)
Defered tax asset 42,110 48182
Dedesmed tax liabikty:
Differences betaeen book and tax basis
Intangile assets 0. 150 TEZ
Invesiment in foreign subsidianes — 4084
Right-of-use ad5e! 4,191 4450
Crthier 2 504 2078
Defemed tax kability 17,189 18,21
Mt disferred tax asset 3 24, 531 5 8911

The valuation allowance of 5381 millon was established as of December 31, 2022 primanly due to significant negative evidence hat copitel losses
anficpated in fe held for sele fondgn subsidanes will not be UBzed, ghen the natre of income sxpected 1o b incumed by the appheable subsicanes. The
valuaticn aliowance of $3.8 milion was esiablished as of December 31, 2021 primarity due io significant negative evidence that nel operating loss ('NOL™)
carmyforwards will nof be uliized. given the future (osses expecied 1o be incumed by e applicable subsidiares. We had NOL carmyforwards at December 31,
2022 and 2021 of approdmately 3303 milllon and 5551 milion, respectively, in certain foreign locations with @ five-year cxpiralion perod

The defemed tax assed is included in other assels in our consolidated stalement of finencial condfon. Management believes Mere will be sufficent fulure
texabie income to realize the tax benefits related to the remaining net deferred tax assets recognized hat are not subject to valustion allowances

The company provides income taxes on e unremitied eamngs of non-UL5. cofporate subsidianes except 1o the exlen that such eamings ane indefinitety
reinvested cutsde the United Siates. As of Decemnber 31, 2022, $29.6 million of undistibuted eamings of non-ULS. corporate subsidiaries were indefinitely
invested outside e LS. At existing applicable income tax rates. addtional laxes of approsimistely $5.2 milion would nidd 1o be pald if such eamings ane
remitted
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22. Business Segment Information

Management has assessed he requirements of ASC 280, Segment Reporting. and determingd thal, because we ulilize a consdidated approach 1o assess
performance and allocale resources. we hirde only oné opefating segment. Entefprise-wide disclosures a5 of and for the years ended December 31, 2022,
2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Services

Meq revernes defved from our investmen! manadement, neseanch and raaled Serices wene as iollows

fears Ended December 31

fin theousands]
Inshbulons -} &9, HE3 H 587017 5 B12914
Rt 222382 1,811.948
Private Weath Management 1,126,142 232672
Bemstein Research Sendces 452.017 458,744
Ofher 55,283 56,004
Total revenues 4445288 A T24185
Less: Interest expense 3686 15,650
Mot revenues ) § 4441802 § 3708538

Mo individudl fund accounted for mone than 10% of our investmen! advisory and serdce Teks and our net révinies during 2022, 2021 and 2020

Geographic Information
Med revenues and long-lived assets, redated 1o our U5, and inlemational opera®ons, as of and for the years ended Decermber 21, were as folliows:

fin thousands)

MNat révenuas

Uinited Stales § 233158 § 2588582 § 2106635

Inbermsaional P E7L 332 1.8E3.010 1601900
Todal 5 4054280 § 4441602 5 3708536
Longlived assets

Linfled States 5 ! 5 3331572

Imtermaional ¥ 2. 455 45 796
Todal 5 400457 § 33768

U Wy Bave necast prior period pessentation of geographic mvesues bo align with turrent period presentation by legal entity domicle as compared bo histonical pressntation
method by clienl domicde.

Major Customers
Mo single customer or indnidual dient accounted for more tan 10% of our total revenues for e years ended Decernber 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020
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23. Related Party Transactions

Mutual Funds

Wi provide imaesirment management, disribution, shareholder, admiristrative and brokerags Senices 1o individual investons by means of reta mutual flunds
sponsored by cur compary, our subsidianes and our affikaled joint venture compantes. Ve provide substanbially all of these senvices under confracts that
spedty the sendces to be provided and the fees 1o be charged. The confracts ane subject 10 annual review and approval by each mutual fund's board of
directors or tnestees and. in cortain circumstances, by e mutual fund's shareholders

Rewenues for sendces provided or related to the mutual funds ane as Tollows:

Years Ended Decembar 31

EEET.
fin thsu eands)
Investment advisory and services fees § 1452885 % 16457 5 1268484
Cestribafion revérmmes 590,580 B37 078 516,338
Sharehaider sendcing fees ! BS. 745 79,304
it revenues 8,366 8384 8314
Bemstein Research Services - 2 E]
§ 2130988 5 2375044 5 19725M

EQH and its Subsidiaries

We provide imeesiment management and cerfain administration servces to EQH and its subsidiares. In addiicn, EQH and its subsidiaries disiibute
company-sponsored mutual funds, for which they recive commissions and disinbufion payments. Als0, we are ooversd by vanous insursnce policies
maintained by EGH and we pay Tees for technology and cher services provided by EGH and ifs subsidisnies. Addiionally, see Nole 12, Debt. for discoswes
refated b our cred ity with EQH

Aggregate amounts indudied in the consclidated finandal statements for ensactions with EQH and its subsidiaries. a5 of and for the years ended
December 31, are as follows:

EQH
T T T
fin theousands)
Revenies
Irvesirment advisory and services lees 5 ME3TT % 13004 5 115,801
Crher revenues B2 875 1,330
5 143,065 § 13748 0§ 1rem
Expenses:
Commessions and distibution payments i finendal inlermedianes 5 J.B87T % 4550 5 34852
General ard admirmsiralive 2,882 237 2.281
Cthar 14,065 3953 5463
5 20848 % 10,876 § 11,626
Balance Sheet:
Institutenal imvestment advisory and sarvices fees recevable 5 i 8,607
Prepaid expenses 385 545
Crther due to EQH and its subsidianes i 206) (1.534)
EQH Facility 30.000) (755,000}
5 (986083) 5 (747,380
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Other Related Parties

The consolidated staternenis of finandal condition include a net recehvable from AB Holding a5 a resull of cash ransactions for fees and expense
reimbursemments. The net recesvable balance induded in the consclideted staternents of finendcial condition as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 57.7
millien and $11. 2 milion, respectively.

24. Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisitions
On Juty 1, 2022, AB Holding acquired a 100% ownership inlerest in CarVal, a giobal privale alternatives invesiment manager primarnly focused on
cpposfunistc and distressed credil, renewable energy. nfrastnuclure. specialty finance and transportation invesiments that, as of the acquisition date.

constilutéd spprosimitely S12.2 bilion in AUM. Also. on July 1. 2022 immedately following the acquistion of Carvinl, AB Holdng contributed 100% o its
exquity interests in Carvial to AB in exchange for AB Units. Post-acquisition, Carval was rebranded AE Carval Investors ("AB Car'Val’),

©On the acquisifion date, AB Holding Isswed approdmately 3.2 millon AB Helding Units (with a fair value of 51328 milion) with the remaining 121 milion
Linits (with @ fair walue of S456.4 million) issusd on November 1, 2022 The fir vidue of the units ISseed on Movember 1, 2022 reflect final adjusiments to the
estimated wnit issuance recorded a8 of acquisiion cose on July 1. 2022 and &8 disclosed in the third quarter 2022 Form 100

AB received a 100% equity interest in Carval from AB Hoading and issued approsemately 15.3 milion AB Units (with a fair value of $585.2 million). AB also
recorded a conlingent congideration payvable of S228.9 milon (1o be paid predorinantly in AR Linits) based on AB CarVial adhiedng cenain performance
objectives over @ sx-yodr pediod ending Decernber 31, 2027, The AB Units. s discussed above, weng issued to AR Holding, AB Holding then issued the
equal amount of AE Hoding Units to Carvial. The excess of e purchase price over the cument fair value of identifiable net kabiliies acquired of
51561 million (net of cash acquired of $40.8 milion), and the recording of a net defermed tax asset of 55 1 million resulled in the recognition of $666.1 milkon
of goodwill and the récording of 53030 million of firfle-fved intangible assets pimarly redaling 1o investment managéement confracls and invesior
refationships with usaful Bves ranging from 5 10 10 years, The goodwill reconded is nol deductible for tax puposes as the Candal acquisition was an
Investment in @ paringrship
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The following table summdanizes the amourts of identified assets acquired and lisbilities assumad al the acquisition date (rellecting acquisiion adustiments
recorded in ihe fourth quarter of 2022), a5 well as the consideration ransfemed 1o acquire Canal (in fousands]

Swmmary of purchase consideration;

Fiair v of AB Holding units issued 5 589,169
Fair valee of contingent consideraton Z28.BE5
Total purchase conslderation 5 81805

Purchase price allecation:

Aszsels acquired
Carsh and Civgh equivalents 5 A07T7
Recenables, et 82,523
Irvesiments « other 47
Fumiture, equipment. and leasehold improverments, net 2484
Right-of-use assels 16,482
Crver nssels 10,600
Defered tax assat 5073
Intangitle assels 205000
Goodwill 66,130
Tolal assts acquined 1. 127556

Lighiias assurmed,

Astounts pavable and stoised expenses {17.798)
Accrued compensation and benefits (219.726)
Dot {42, 651]
Lease liabdies {18.571)
Manerededm able non-oontnolling interests in consolidated entities {13.191)
Tiotal labilifes asmumd (303,242}
Not assets acquired 5 818,054

The Carval acquisiion did not heve a significant impact on owr 2022 revenues and eamings. As a8 resull, we have nol provided supplementsd pro forma
financial information

Divestitures

On Mowember 22, 2022, AB and SoocGen, a leading European bank, announced plans to fomn a joint venture combining their respective cash equities and
research businesses. The consummation of the joint venture is subject to customary dosing condiions, including regulaiory dearsnces. The closing is
expechsd to coour before the end of 2023 Upon clesing, AB will oen & 459% inferes! in the joint venture and SocGen will own 8 51% interest in the jomt
weniung, with an option 1o resach 100% ownership afler five years, The assels and Babilties of AB's reseanch sendces business "the disposal group™) have
been dassified as held for sale on e consolidated staternent of financial condfion and recorded at fair value, less cost to sell. As a resull of dassitying
these assets as held for sale, we recognized a non-cash valuation adjustment of 57 4 millen on the consolidated siatement of income, 1o recognize the net
camying value at lower of cost or fair value, less estimated costs to sall.

02 Anrual Report 1nr

271/315



EDINETOOOO
o o {02225 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Part I

T Tallowing tablé summarnizes the assets and abilities of the disposal group cassilied a5 held for sabi on the consoldated statement of fingndal condition
&5 of December 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents 3 159123
Receivables, net
Brokers and dealers 44,717
Brokerage dients 29,243
Orther fees 22,988
Invesirments 24,507
Furndture and equipment, ned 4128
Der assels 107,764
Right-of-use assets 1,552
Intargible assels 4903
Goodwill 159,825
wvaluation adjustment {allowance) on disposal group {7.400)
Total assets held for sale 3 551,251
Payables,
Brokers and dealers % 32083
Brokerage diens 10,232
Cher liabilifes 50,684
Actied compensason and benefits 13,853
Total liabilities held for sale 5 107,952

As of Decembier 21 2022, cash and cash squivalents dassifed as held for sabe incduded in the consolideted stabement of cash flows was 515801 milion.

Wie have determined that the exit from the sell-side research busness does nol represent a strategic shift that had & major effect on cur consclidated results
of operations. Accordingly, we have not ciassified the disposal group as discontinued operations. The results of operatons of the disposal group up fo te
respachive dates of sale will be included in cur consclidated resulls of operations for all percds presented. The lower of amortized cost or fair valus
afjustroent upon ransfeming these assets o hedd for Salé was not matetal
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1 Intertrust Trustees (Cayman)
Limited
(
2023 12 150 2,133 25,025
29,910 25,025 130
(
40 160
www . intertrustgroup.com 30
4,000
2 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(
2023 12 10 6,000 1,564
(
)
(
2023 12 16 3,000
(
4
(
2023 12 1,251
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Report of independent auditors

To Intertrust Trustees (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Global High
Income Equity Fund (Non JPY Currency)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Global High Income Equity Fund
(Non JPY Currency) (the "Sub-Fund™), a series trust of AB Cayman Trust, which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2022, and the related
statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year then ended, including
the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements').

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Sub-Fund as of September 30, 2022, and the
results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Sub-Fund and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date
the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement , whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Fund"s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
December 15, 2022
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Report of independent auditors

To Intertrust Trustees (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Global High
Income Equity Fund (Non JPY Currency)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Global High Income Equity Fund
(Non JPY Currency) (a series-trust of AB Cayman Trust) (the "Sub-Fund™), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2023, and the related
statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year then ended, including
the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements').

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Sub-Fund as of September 30, 2023, and the
results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Sub-Fund and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date
the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement , whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Fund"s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
December 19, 2023
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the General Partner and Unitholders of
AllianceBernstein L.P.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of
AllianceBernstein L.P. and its subsidiaries (the““Company””) as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of
changes in partners® capital and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2022, including the related notes and financial statement schedule
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a) (collectively referred to as the
““consolidated financial statements®”). We also have audited the Company®s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (C0SO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2022 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the C0SO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company"s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management®s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under ltem 9A. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on the Company"s consolidated financial statements
and on the Company"s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are
a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects.
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Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

As described in Management®s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,
management has excluded CarVal Investors L.P. (CarVal) from its assessment of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 because it was acquired by the
Company in a purchase business combination during 2022. We have also excluded CarVal from
our audit of internal control over financial reporting. CarVal is a wholly-owned
subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues excluded from management®s assessment and
our audit of internal control over financial reporting each approximate 2% of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company®s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company"s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company"s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period
audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters
does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a
separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which
it relates.

Acquisition of CarVal Investors L.P. - Fair Value of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets and
Contingent Consideration Payable

As described in Notes 2, 9 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements, on July 1,
2022, AllianceBernstein Holding L.P. (AB Holding) acquired a 100% ownership interest in
Carval for total purchase consideration of $818.1 million, which resulted in management
recording $303.0 million of finite-lived intangible assets primarily related to investment
management contracts and investor relationships with useful lives ranging from 5 to 10
years and $228.9 million of contingent consideration payable. Immediately following the
acquisition of CarVal by AB Holding, AB Holding contributed 100% of its equityinterests in
CarVal to AllianceBernstein L.P. (AB) in exchange for AB units. Fair value of the acquired
finite-lived intangible assets was based on a forecast of future cash flows attributable
to the assets that are discounted to present value using a risk-adjusted discount rate.
Fair value of the contingent consideration payable was based on a forecast of future cash
flows attributable to the performance objectives that are discounted to present value
using a risk-adjusted discount rate.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating

to the fair value of the finite-lived intangible assets and contingent consideration
payable recognized in the acquisition of CarVal is a critical audit matter are the
significant judgment by management in developing the estimated fair value of the finite-
lived intangible assets and the contingent consideration payable. This in turn led to a
high degree of auditor judgment,subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and
evaluating audit evidence related to the future cash flows and risk-adjusted discount rate
assumptions utilized within the calculation of the present value of future cash flows. In
addition, the audit effort involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in
connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to the
determination of the fair value of finite-lived intangible assets and contingent
consideration payable recognized in the acquisition of Carval, including controls over the
development of the future cash flows and risk-adjusted discount rate assumptions utilized
within the calculation of the present value of future cash flows. These procedures also
included, among others, reading the purchase agreement and testing management®s process
for estimating the fair value of the acquired finite-lived intangible assets and
contingent consideration payable. Testing management®s process included (i) evaluating the
appropriateness of the method used to discount future cashflows to present value, (ii)
testing the completeness and accuracy of underlying data used in the method used to
discount future cash flows to present value,and (iii) evaluating management®s significant
assumptions related to the future cash flows and risk-adjusted discount rate. Evaluating
the reasonableness of the assumption related to the future cash flows involved considering
the historical performance of Carval, the consistency with external market and industry
data, and the consistency with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.
Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in the evaluation
of the appropriateness of the method used to discount future cash flows to present value
and the reasonableness of the risk-adjusted discount rate assumption.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 10, 2023

We have served as the Company®s auditor since 2006.
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